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Our Vision
A progressive region creating opportunities for all.

Our Mission
We are a council committed to continuous improvement, a sustainable
future and efficient investment in our communities.

Our Values
Respect and integrity
Building trust, teamwork, communication and a shared
understanding.
Actively listening to our communities.

Accountability and transparency
Equal opportunities, fair and open consultation and communication.
Accepting responsibility for our actions.

Providing value
Best value for money outcomes for our community.
Collaboration, managing expectations and working towards
common goals.
Deliver efficiency and effectiveness in all that we do.

Commitment and teamwork
Continually improve on our achievements and drive innovative
solutions.
Lead change and continuous improvement in delivering for our
community.
Promote a positive health and safety culture.

Key Priorities
1. Strong vibrant communities.
2. Building and maintaining quality infrastructure.
3. Supporting our local economy.
4. Protecting our people and our environment.
5. Leadership and governance.
6. Our organisation.

4

Central Highlighlands Regional Council Annual Report 2017-18

About our annual report
This annual report provides a comprehensive overview of the

Our Performance – provides a comprehensive look at

performance and activities of the Central Highlands Regional

how we performed in the six key priority areas outlined in

Council for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

the corporate plan. We look at the highlights, challenges

It is the culmination of a reporting process that begins
with the Central Highlands 2022 Community Plan, which
informs the 2017-2022 Corporate Plan and guides the annual
operational plan.

and what lies ahead. Each report contains a summary
of performance against projects and key performance
indicators. More detailed information about KPIs and
performance can be found in the quarterly reports against
our annual operational plan on the council website.

This report is designed to tell a story of the council and its
community; it commences with a guide to the region and a
concise overview of the year that was and continues with five

Financial Reports – includes the audited financial
statements of the council.

chapters that complete a 365-day picture of a progressive

Information required by the Local Government Act, 2009 and

Queensland region.

Local Government Regulations, 2012 is included throughout.

Our Region – shows where the Central Highlands region is

This snapshot of our year is enhanced with local images to

and explains some of the region’s statistical information.

bring the story to life, data is presented with easy-to-read

Year in Review – gives an overview of the year from

graphics, and the narrative crafted in plain english.

the mayor and chief executive officer and presents a
summarised performance and financial report.
Our Community – showcases the people of the region: who
lives here and who inspires us. We also talk about how we
engage, consult and communicate with the community; and
how we support the people who live here in business, as
community groups and how we prepare for disaster.
Our Council - introduces how the organisation works and the
people we employ.
Our Leaders – introduces the councillors and executive
leadership team.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Strategic planning framework
The annual report is the document that brings all the reporting together to deliver accountability for our actions at the end of

Strategic Planning Framework

each financial year. This graphic demonstrates our reporting framework.

The corporate plan is part of a framework of planning that provides a clear line of
sight to the vision to be a progressive region creating opportunities for all.

Central Highlands 2022 Community Plan

Considers the social, environmental, economic and governance themes that
contribute to the long-term wellbeing of the community.

Corporate Plan 2017-2022

Sets a strategic direction for the Central Highlands Regional Council to
deliver progressive outcomes for the region that create opportunities for all.

Planning Scheme 2016

Guides how land, buildings and structures are used and
developed in the region.

Asset Management Plan

Financial, economic and technical practices applied to the
management of council assets.

Financial Management Plan

A framework for the procurement, investment and
administration of council funds.

Annual Operational Plan

Outlines the service and project delivery actions for the coming year.

Annual BUDGET

Outlines the income and expenditures for the coming year.

Staff Performance Plans

Drives organisational performance to achieve strategic goals.

Annual Report

The outcomes of the annual operational plan and the performance on the
budget are reported in the annual report

4
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Corporate Plan 2017- 2022 – A progressive region creating opportunities for all.
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Our Region
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Our region
The Central Highlands region is in Central Queensland,

Travellers in big rigs and small abound with major freight

Australia—considered a gateway to the outback. The region’s

routes through the region that include the north-south link

central business area, Emerald, is a three-hour drive from

between Charters Towers and northern New South Wales—

Rockhampton on the coast and nearly 900 kilometres from

identified as the inland transport alternative between Cairns

Brisbane.

and Melbourne and the Capricorn Highway leading ‘grey

Our region is huge, approximately 60 000 square kilometres,
which we liken to the size of Tasmania. It stretches from
Arcadia Valley in the south to the Peak Ranges in the north,
east from Boolburra to Bogantungan in the west.

nomads’ to all points west.
This is a vibrant region with a diverse economy based on:
A globally competitive coal mining industry.
Robust and resilient agriculture and horticultural

Around 28,000 people call the Central Highlands home

industries, including beef, grain, cotton, grapes, melons,

and they live in the thirteen communities of Arcadia Valley,

nuts and citrus.

Bauhinia, Blackwater, Bluff, Capella, Comet, Dingo, Duaringa,
Emerald, Rolleston, Sapphire Gemfields, Springsure and Tieri.
Naturally our region is rich—in minerals, in grazing land, in
dryland and irrigated agricultural land, in water from the
Nogoa and Comet rivers and the Fairbairn Dam (three times
the size of Sydney Harbour), in national parks and wilderness

Dynamic small to medium size businesses.
Professional and government sectors.
Adequate availability of commercial, industrial and
residential land.
An evolving tourism offering.

areas like Blackdown Tablelands and Carnarvon Gorge, and

Major health and education services.

in gems as we claim the largest sapphire-producing fields in

Significant new infrastructure and construction projects.

the Southern Hemisphere.
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Our community
Mostly we’re a young community; the median age is 33
years. Children aged 0-14 years make up nearly 25% of our
population (Australian Bureau of Statistics 2016 Census).
Jobs in the mining sector account for the majority of our total
workforce, followed by agriculture and horticulture, the retail
trade, and education and training.
The regional unemployment remains below 5%, well below
the state average of 6.7% (Small Area Labour Markets data,
Australian Government Department of Jobs and Small
Business March 2018)
More than a third of our community reside in rental
accommodation, 24% have a house with a mortgage and 16%
own their house outright.

Our neighbours
We are surrounded by the local government areas of
Barcaldine Regional Council, Isaac Regional Council,
Maranoa Regional Council, Banana Shire Council,
Rockhampton Regional Council and the Woorabinda
Aboriginal Shire Council.

Our history
We are proud to recognise that the Central Highlands was
originally home to many indigenous people who remain the
traditional custodians of these lands.
Early European settlement in the region dates from the
1850s. The first pioneers brought sheep from down south
to the region. Growth continued into the late 1800s with the
inland expansion of the railway line west from Rockhampton
and the establishment of small ‘railway’ towns.
Significant growth occurred in the 1950s to 1980s with the
introduction of beef cattle grazing, the building of Fairbairn
Dam for agricultural irrigation, and coal mining.
Today, our region is defined by the diverse prospering
economies that support our unique vibrant communities.

The art gallery at Carnarvon Gorge National Park.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Community Snapshot

Housing

Information supplied by REMPLAN, the

In 2016, there were 22 694

Queensland Government Statistician’s

private dwellings in the region,

Office and the 2011 and 2016 Australian

Employment

of which 84.5% were ‘separate

Bureau of Statistics Census data.

Our top three employers

house’, and 5.8% were ‘flat, unit

are coal mining, beef cattle

or apartment’. The median rent

farming and primary education,

was $180/week. The number

Culturally Diverse

accounting for more than 30%

of new houses approved during

The top ten countries of birth

of jobs. The unemployment

the year was 17. The Queensland

for Central Highlands’ residents

rate at the end of the March

Valuer General’s 2018 report

include Australia, New Zealand,

2017 quarter was 4.1%. 22% of

noted that the urban land

England, Philippines, South

employed people work in the

property market in the region

Africa, Zimbabwe, India, United

mining industry and 7.3% work

was ‘more stable’ and that

States of America,

in beef cattle

grazing land sales

Papua New

farming. The

have trended

Guinea and

labour force

upward.

Germany.

participation
rate is 50.86%.

Industry

Tourism

Our economy

The economic return to the region for tourism is around $220 million.2 The

generates an

‘drive market’ accounts for most of the visitors to the Central Highlands.

estimated $8.191

Domestic visitors stay an average of four nights in the region. Nearly 70

billion representing

cents in every tourist dollar spent is on accommodation and food. There are

20.99% of the $39.013 billion

249 tourism-related businesses in the region. Our top three international

output of Central Queensland.

visitor markets are New Zealand, United Kingdom and Germany.

The top five industry sectors

In 2016, we had 645 000 visitors that stayed on average for

(generating gross revenue) in

four nights and spent an average of $113.00 per night.

1

the Central Highlands are:

Business is the primary reason people visit the region,

mining

followed by holiday makers and visiting friends and

agriculture, forestry, fishing

relatives. (2013-2016 data www.tra.gov.au)

construction
rental hiring and real estate
services
manufacturing.

Population
As at 30 June 2018, the estimated resident population
was 28 684 people. The annualised growth rate is 0.39%.
Median age is 33 years.

1. Source: Latest REMPLAN data incorporating Australian Bureau of Statistics’ (ABS) 2016 Gross State Product, June 2017 National Input Output Tables and
2014/2015 Census Place of Work Employment Data.
2. Source: 2016-17, Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS), Tourism Satellite Account.
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Year in Review

Signature art piece for the Gemfields interpretive trail.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Report from the mayor
I am pleased to report that the

The Central Queensland Inland Port continues to develop

2017-2018 message from your

and will provide a key logistical advantage to industry and

council is the continuation of the

agriculture in real terms as it matures into an intermodal

very strong strategy of providing

hub. Value-adding is the next step to make sure our region

value and opportunity and

becomes more resilient and sustainable and to insulate our

building on the strengths in our

communities from the cyclical nature of commodity prices.

communities.
We have invested in improving

The contribution of tourism to the region has stayed at
around $230 million and is a major benefit to our overall

the liveability of our towns and localities to ensure that this

economic activity. Whilst this is pleasing, we are reminded

is an attractive place to live and we continue to advocate

that year on year this level result shows that we are obligated

for industry and investment that adds to the employment

to review and refresh regional marketing and build on the

landscape.

local brand in a competitive marketplace.

The recent turnaround in resource prices has created

The region faces an exciting future.

a reactivation of mining jobs and an increase in service
businesses that support that industry, which brings new
workers, their families and other flow-on opportunities.
However, recognising the diversity of our region and

With clever innovation, smart investment, and working
collaboratively with other levels of government we will
continue to grow the Central Highlands’ reputation as a
powerhouse economy in the nation.

the significant value of agriculture and tourism and
the importance of employment in our retail sector, we
must continue to focus on seeking out funding for key
infrastructure projects and developing partnerships that
enhance value to those producers, operators and businesses
respectively.
An important part of providing incentive, and to create the
right environment for investment, is to ensure that rates and
charges, and costs are kept low and competitive and that we
provide value. There has been considerable investment in
waste, water and sewer facilities over the last four years, but
keeping our utilities charges at an affordable level remains a
constant challenge.

Councillor Kerry Hayes
Mayor
Central Highlands Regional Council

This year has seen a strong focus on the connectivity of
roads and the airport as critical parts of the region’s business
and supply chains in a bigger network that starts in the
regions and heads to ports in Central Queensland.
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CEO Report
With the swearing in of the new

The executive leadership team conducted two whole

councillors in 2016, we adopted

of organisation days in 2017 to embed the expectations,

our vision; our mission; key

understanding of, and performance indicators of our five key

priorities, and our values.

strategic priorities: customer service, safety and wellness,

My role as chief executive

technology, service planning and delivery, and governance.

officer is to continually develop

Like all local governments, we are proactive in planning

an organisational culture that

and reactive to external influences, such as changes to

underpins these strategic

legislation, successful applications for available funding, and

undertakings and ensures we deliver on our promises.

feedback from the community.

This past year has seen a vast shift in the planning, delivery

Our goal is to ensure that our staff are exemplars of customer

and performance of safety. Whether it is a community

service because it is the fundamental theme underpinning

member, a contractor, a councillor or a staff member, safety

our efforts.

is at the forefront in all that we undertake.

In addition to providing avenues for the community to

Safety remains a high priority for our contractor management

contact us, councillors and staff undertake many forms of

and a factor to ensure that all of our staff are correctly trained

community consultation to ensure that we understand the

in the use of plant and equipment.

concerns of and, where possible, provide solutions to the

In addition to the capital works and maintenance programs,

issues brought forward.

council and its economic development arm, CHDC,

Excellent fiscal management is required for our priorities

undertake advocacy and lobbying to support the local

to be achieved. This involves rigorous reviews of planning;

economy and improve the region for the community of

capital works and maintenance programs; levels of service;

the future.

provision of community services; procurement (including a

We facilitate regional investment opportunities; enhance
applications for government funding for infrastructure, costeffective available water and other community services; and

buy local policy); and reporting on how we performed against
our operational plan key priorities and our responsibility to
support the community.

boost our tourism reputation; all of which is vital to support

We look forward to continuing our service to the community

the community.

in 2018-19.

We have been hard at work to improve funding allocations
for the state-controlled road network, aged care facilities,
water storage and availability, raising of the Vince Lester
Bridge in Emerald; development of a regional sporting
stadium, enhancement of the Fairbairn Dam recreational
area; Emerald regional airport master planning, and
much more.

Scott Mason
Chief Executive Officer

We have enjoyed some real successes this year that are
proudly detailed in this report under key priority area
highlights.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Performance Scorecard
This is an overview of the targets achieved against the key
performance areas from the Operational Plan 2017-18.

Key Priority Area 1

Key Priority Area 5

Strong Vibrant Communities

Proactive Engaged Leadership

Completed

61%

Completed

54%

Carried over/not achieved

39%

Carried over/not achieved

46%

Not proceeding

00%

Not proceeding

00%

Key Priority Area 2

Key Priority Area 6

Building and Maintaining Quality Infrastructure

Our Organisation

Completed

56%

Completed

53%

Carried over/not achieved

44%

Carried over/not achieved

47%

Not proceeding

00%

Not proceeding

00%

Key Priority Area 3
Supporting our Local Economy
Completed

80%

Carried over/not achieved

20%

Not proceeding

00%

Key Priority Area 4
Protecting our People and Environment
Completed

64%

Carried over/not achieved

36%

Not proceeding

00%

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au

15

Community Financial Report
The community financial report provides a plain English
explanation of the financial statements that are contained in
this annual report.

3. The statement of changes in equity summarises changes
in our net worth during the year.
4. The statement of cash flows shows movements in cash

The financial statements have six key elements:

that occurred during the financial year.

1. The statement of comprehensive income (profit and loss)

5. The notes to the financial statements provide further

shows income and expenses from operations to give a

detail around some of the more significant figures that

net result. Included is a range of capital revenue (grants

appear in the four main statements.

and contributions) and expenses that recognise of the
movement in the value of provisions and asset valuations
disclosed in the statement of financial position.
2. The statement of financial position (balance sheet) is

6. The financial sustainability ratios provide an indication
of our relative sustainability based on the current
year’s performance and best estimates around future
operational activities.

a snapshot of what we own (assets) and what we owe
(liabilities) as at the end of the financial year, with the
difference (equity) reflecting our net worth.

Within the net result is the operating result, which is

Statement of Comprehensive Income
The statement of comprehensive income is a summary of
revenue (income) recognised during the year, set off against
expenses from the cost of our operations. The net result is
either a surplus (profit) or a deficit (loss).
One year in isolation does not accurately reflect the
true position and so the following graph shows the fiveyear trend.

calculated by deducting the normal cost of day-to-day
operations from normal operational income, including
rates, fees and charges, and interest from investment of
surplus funds.
That is total operating revenue minus total operating

expenses. Services that make up normal day-to-day activities
are outlined elsewhere within this report. The operating
result from the last five years is shown in the graph.

EXPENSES AGAINST REVENUE: FIVE-YEAR TREND ($M)
OPERATING EXPENSES AGAINST OPERATING REVENUE:
FIVE-YEAR TEND: ($M)

$180
$160

$140

$140
$120

$120

$100

$100

$80

$80

$60

$60

$40

$40

$20

$20

$0
2013/14

2014/15
Revenue

2015/16
Expenses

2016/17

2017/18

Net Result

We actively seek grants from government for both
operational and capital projects to improve the liveability

$0
-$20
2013/14

2014/15

Revenue

2015/16
Expenses

2016/17

Net Operating Result

of the region and these amounts are also reflected in the

Operational activities do not include income or costs

net result. Funds available from the net result go towards

associated with the construction, rehabilitation or renewal

investment in community infrastructure.

of community infrastructure. These elements are reflected
in the balance sheet as additional assets owned by
the community.
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Where does the money come from?

Total Expenses – Where our money is spent

We had a total operating income of $121.6 million in

We spent $123.5 million on day-to-day operations

2017-18. The following graph shows a breakdown of income

during the 2017-18 financial year. Included in day-to-

by category. The fact that we receive 69% of operating

day operations is funds received from the Queensland

revenue from rates, fees and charges means that we have

Department of Transport and Main Roads for improvements

significant control over revenue and are not highly reliant on

and maintenance of their road network, which may vary

government grants to fund day-to-day operations.

significantly from one year to the next.

REVENUE % OF TOTAL

EXPENDITURE % OF TOTAL
2%

1%
19%

30%

27%
2%
3%
53%

7%

4%

2%

13%
37%
Rates and levies

Interest Income

Employee costs

Depreciation

Sales and recoverable works

Other Operating Revenue

Materials and services

Capital expenses

Fees and Charges

Capital Grants and Subsidies

Finance costs

Operating Grants and Subsidies

Other Capital Income

Notes about expenditure:

Notes about the revenue:

Employee costs – no real movement in employee expenses

Rates and utility charges – there was no significant change in

from last year, partly due to a number of vacancies across

the level of revenue from rates and charges.

the organisation.

Fees and charges – increased activity arising from property

Materials and services – we have a local spend policy and

development and sales across the region meant a higher

approximately 69% of orders raised are with local businesses.

level of income from fees and charges for 2017-18.

The actual spend here varies with the level of recoverable

Sales and recoverable works – the reduction in revenue
when compared to 2016-17 arises from less recoverable

works undertaken on behalf of the Queensland Department
of Transport and Main Roads.

works undertaken on behalf of the Queensland Department

Depreciation – following the revaluation of assets

of Transport and Main Roads.

undertaken as at 30 June 2017, together with the impact of

Operating grants and subsidies – include grants and
contributions received for upgrades to the Capricorn

new assets such as the Blackwater Aquatic Centre, annual
depreciation expenses have increased.

Highway (not a council asset), along with state and federal

Finance costs – this includes banking transaction fees and

government grants towards operational activities.

interest on loans along with any write-off of debts considered

Interest income – includes interest on rate arrears and

to be uncollectible.

interest from investment of surplus cash.
Capital income – includes grants and contributions
received towards investment in community infrastructure
projects. This varies from year to year and includes funding
for restitution of infrastructure damaged as a result of
Cyclone Debbie.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Current assets include cash, investments and money owed

Statement of Financial Position
The statement of financial position shows clearly what we
own and what we owe (liabilities), with the difference being
the net worth of the council.
The community net worth (wealth) at the end of the financial
year has increased with total assets, liabilities and equity
shown in the following table:

to us, including trade debtors and unpaid rates. Cash
balances increased during the year from $127 million to
$137 million. While this seems to be a significant amount,
the balance includes unspent grants received, developer
headworks contributions, and other funds that are
constrained from general use. The balance also includes
funds that we have put aside towards future investment
in renewal and refurbishment of existing infrastructure,

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: FIVE-YEAR TREND ($M)

together with ensuring there are funds available to cover

1,800

any unforeseen events and to take advantage of any

1,600

opportunities that might arise.

1,400

What do we owe?

1,200
1,000

Our liabilities include money borrowed from the Queensland

800

Treasury Corporation; funds put aside to cover future

600

responsibilities for staff leave; trade creditors from normal

400

operations; and rehabilitation of landfill and quarry sites

200

currently under operations.

0
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

We paid down $3.7 million in loans during the year, but also

Liabilities (What we Owe)

borrowed a further $5 million towards the construction of the

Assets (What we Own)

Black Gully Wastewater Treatment Plant, which will be paid

Equity (Net Community Worth)

off over the next 20 years.
Total liabilities are shown in the following chart:

What do we own?

TOTAL LIABILITIES ($M)

Most of our assets consist of community infrastructure,
such as roads, bridges, water and wastewater facilities, but
also includes assets that improve the liveability of the area,

120
100

including parks, gardens, community halls, swimming pools,

80

and sporting facilities.

60

Community infrastructure and assets have increased by

40

$26 million during the year, with a total of $1.4 billion in assets
under management.

20
0
2013/14

TOTAL ASSETS ($M)

2014/15
Creditors

Roads and Bridges
Water

2015/16
Provisions

Loans

2017/18
Other

Statement of Changes in Equity

Buildings

The statement of changes in equity measures the change

Sewerage
Works in Progress

in our net worth from year to year. Equity includes retained

Site Improvements

earnings from previous years, and any movement in asset

Airport

values arising from revaluations.

Land
Other Assets
0
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Statement of Cash Flows

Financial Sustainability Ratios

This statement identifies where actual cash was received

Each year we measure our performance against budget

throughout the year and how that cash was applied or

and against the long-term forecast to ensure we remain in a

spent, whether from normal operating activities, investment

strong financial position.

in community infrastructure, or the receipt or payment of
loans. The final balance shows total cash at the end of the
financial year of approximately $100 million. Total cash plus
investments increased during the year from $127 million to

These performance indicators, or ratios, measure our
performance against industry benchmarks to ensure we
remain financially sustainable in the long-term.
By analysing these ratios over a five-year period we can

$137 million.

identify any trends or issues that may require correction.
CASH AND INVESTMENTS ($M)
160

The Operating Surplus Ratio

140

This ratio measures the extent to which income exceeds

120

expenses, which provide surplus funds for investment in

100

community infrastructure and for the repayment of loans. A

80

negative ratio means expenses have exceeded revenue and,

60

while there may be short-term or one-off issues that lead to

40

this outcome, the aim is to achieve a positive ratio each year.

20

Our operations show a deficit for 2017-18 partly related to a
number of one-off events and forecasts over the following

0
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

10-year period are all positive. The following chart shows
actual results for the past five years.

A large portion of the cash balance is restricted for future

ACTUAL RESULTS - 5 YEARS ($M)

capital investment into community infrastructure. The

11.82%
10.59%

increase in cash is partly due to the extent of capital projects
not completed within the year but carried into 2018-19.

Notes to the Financial Statements

4.54%

4.26%

The financial statements contain a series of notes that
provide important detail about our figures, policies and
accounting practices.
Where additional information in a statement is contained
within a note, the number reference of the note is shown

-1.54%
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

next to that figure. The purpose of notes is to provide a higher
level of detail and information to the reader.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Asset sustainability ratio

Net financial liability ratio

This is a measure of the extent to which property, plant and

The net financial liabilities ratio is an indicator as to

community infrastructure is being managed by council and

whether our liabilities can be serviced by our operating

are being replaced or renewed as they reach the end of their

revenue. The ratio is calculated by deducting current

useful lives.

assets (predominantly cash) from total liabilities (mainly

The ratio uses actual expenditure on the renewal and
rehabilitation of assets as a percentage of the annual
depreciation expense (which measures the rate at which
assets are being used each year). As such, it is intended to
measure whether we are spending at least as much each
year to keep the assets in good condition as they are being
used-up.

loans) and dividing this figure (net financial liabilities) by
operating revenue.
0.0%

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

-10.0%
-20.0%
-30.0%
-40.0%

The graph below shows the five-year trend for the asset

-50.0%

sustainability ratio (related to community infrastructure

-60.0%

assets only). It should be noted that restoration of
infrastructure damaged through flood events can distort

A negative value indicates that our current assets

this index.

(predominantly cash) exceed total liabilities and

180.0%

demonstrates that we remain in a strong financial position.

162.6%

160.0%
140.0%

Summary

108.6%

120.0%

93.5%

100.0%

83.5%

Central Highlands Regional Council has finished the year in a

80.0%
60.0%

39.0%

favourable financial position and, with the budget forecast for

40.0%

2018-19 and beyond also showing positive outcomes, we are

20.0%
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2015/16

Asset Sustainability Ratio
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The financial statements and sustainability ratios all show that

2016/17

2017/18

well able to deliver on our commitment to be a progressive
region creating opportunities for all.

Minimum Threshold
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Internal audit report

Internal audits undertaken by our internal auditors (Pacifica

Audit Committee

capital works program development

The primary objective of the Audit Committee (advisory

water management practices

body) is to assist us to fulfil our responsibilities relating to the

customer request management

Chartered Accountants) for 2017-18:

accounting and reporting requirements imposed under the

Local Government Act 2009 and other relevant legislation.

vendor performance management
saleyards.

The committee comprises two independent members and
two councillors. The two independent members are Chair Mr

Audit Committee Chair Report

Hayden Wright and Mr Geoff King. Council representatives

The Audit Committee has again this year actively supported

are Councillor Charles Brimblecombe and Councillor

the organisation to manage its risks and oversight its financial

Christine Rolfe.

performance.

The Audit Committee’s principles and standards include:

There are significant organisational developments

Enhancing the ability of councillors to fulfil their legal

being undertaken at the moment, principally the move
to the technologyone suite of software for the financial

responsibilities.
Adding to the credibility and objectivity of financial

and information management of the organisation. The
committee has kept oversight of the transition to the new

reports.
Enhancing the objectivity and effectiveness of the
council’s internal audit function.
Overseeing the application of appropriate accounting and

system and is mindful of the risks that need to be managed
to ensure success.
The emerging risks around cyber security have also been
of great interest and we have discussed at length the

disclosure policies and procedures.
Monitoring existing corporate policies and reviewing new
corporate policies to prohibit unethical, questionable or

processes and procedures that have been introduced to
ensure, as far as possible, the management of this issue.
I am also pleased to report that the risk management

illegal activities.
Providing a communication link between management,
internal auditors, external auditors and council.
Promoting the need for public accountability of managers
to council, the community and other interested parties.
Supporting measures to improve governance, risk and
internal controls.

framework for the organisation has been refreshed during
the year and the strategic risks identified and agreed.
While this is a start, work will continue through the 201819 year as the new approach is cascaded through the
organisation.
I wish to acknowledge the contribution of my fellow
committee members: Councillors Rolfe and Brimblecombe

Internal audit

and independent member Geoff King for their contributions

The internal audit function provides independent,

to the work of the committee. I also acknowledge the

objective assurance and consulting services to add

support of Mayor Kerry Hayes; it is appreciated.

value and improve the organisation’s operations. It helps
the organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and

Finally, I wish to acknowledge the support of the CEO and
senior managers of the organisation who have been open
and frank in our discussions.

governance processes.
The internal audit plan has been revised to reflect ongoing
priorities and address emerging trends.
HAYDEN WRIGHT, CHAIRMAN.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Winner of the water week colouring competition Lincoln from Gindie School with Mayor Kerry Hayes.
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Our Community
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Australia Day Award Winners
Citizen of the Year
Cody Ford and Russell Pitt
Cody Ford and Russell Pitt share the Citizen of the Year Award for their
continuous effort to help the community.
After TC Debbie hit in 2017, they volunteered their time and helicopters
to assist with food and fuel drops to people stranded by floodwaters.
The pair are regular volunteers at local events, including running the
bar at the annual show and organising and running the Capella Rodeo.
When the usual helicopter operator couldn’t do the annual lolly drop
for the Isolated Children’s Parents Association Camp, Cody and Russell
came to the rescue. The children at these camps often miss out on
social contact with peers and really look forward to the camp.

24
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Citizen of the Year
Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Cody Ford and Russell Pitt

Doug and Rosie Dickens

Murray and Wendy Gibson

Young Citizen of the Year
Emerald/Gemfields

Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Jacinda Fehlhaber

Not awarded

Jaxx Ryan

Springsure Stingers
Swimming Club

Cultural Award
Emerald/Gemfields

Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Daley Catip

Sophie Franettovich

Doug and Rosie Dickens

Nicole Johnson

Emerald/Gemfields

Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Jamie Smith

Wendy de Leeuw

Not awarded

Rowena Yates

Emerald/Gemfields

Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Phoebe Murphy

Emielia Jansen

Jordan Russell

Jackson Taylor

Senior Sports Award

Junior Sports Award

Community Event of the Year
Emerald/Gemfields

Capella/Tieri

Blackwater/Duaringa

Springsure/Rolleston

Emerald Go Karting Club

BullZeye Droughtmaster

BMA Blackwater Mine 50 Year

Wings, Wheels and Rugby

Australian Championships

Sale

Celebration

Day Rolleston

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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New citizens
We welcomed 45 new citizens to the Central Highlands in
2017-18.
They came from South Africa, United States, India,
Philippines, Fiji, Thailand, Zimbabwe, United Kingdom and
New Zealand.
Citizenship ceremonies were held on the:
18 July 2017
31 October 2017
26 January 2018
22 May 2018

Volunteers

The Central Highlands welcomed 45 new citizens in 2017-18

Volunteering continues to play a pivotal role in the Central
Highlands with almost a quarter of the population offering a
helping hand to our community in some capacity.
In 2017-18, volunteers from all walks of life selflessly offered
their commitment, support and experience to many of our
community programs and facilities.
We recognise and appreciate the contributions of all our
unsung heroes, who continually strengthen and enrich
our region.
Some of our volunteering opportunities include:
State Emergency Services
Visitor information centre staff in Emerald, Duaringa,
Springsure, Blackwater and Capella

Young volunteers at Clean Up Australia Day in Emerald.

Springsure Art Group
Community Open Day Rubyvale
Friends of the Emerald Art Gallery
Rubyvale, Sapphire and Scrub Lead Miners Common
Committee
National Tree Planting Day
Australia Day Celebrations
Clean Up Australia Day
Regional shows
NAIDOC Week
Youth Week
All our volunteers receive a briefing about our expectations
and their rights and responsibilities as volunteers, including
health and safety requirements and code of conduct training.
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Council came to the aid of Isaac Regional Council after a severe storm event.
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Community Reference Groups update
Our 13 place-based community reference groups

The CRGs are supported by the community

(CRGs) champion local project planning and delivery for

development team.

their communities.

Each of the CRGs have completed their ‘strategic directions’

The CRGs include councillors and community members that

(previously known as ‘action plans’), which document specific

represent a variety of sectors and play an important role in

aims and their link to regional outcomes.

supporting their communities to achieve their

Each CRG developed a list of priority projects for the year

long-term vision.

using a selection process and are now preparing project
plans and implementing activities.

Community Reference Group priority projects
Community Reference Group

Project

Arcadia Valley

Telecommunications towers and improved connectivity.

Bauhinia

Community hall master plan.

Blackwater

Old pool site redevelopment - Mackenzie Street, Blackwater
Blackwater CRG newsletter.
Support senior’s health initiatives.
Blackwater tower art.

Bluff

Children’s bicycle safety track.

Capella

Install heritage signage in parklands.
Paint Gordon Downs store.
Improve the Capella Bakehouse heritage and tourism facility.
Renew Capella signage.

Comet

Comet tales and walking trails.
Book exchange.
Water at the fire shed.

Dingo

3-phase power to hall.
Upgrade progress park.

Duaringa

Attract tourists and rural residents to Duaringa.
Duaringa town signage.

Emerald

Central Highlands art trail booklet.

Gemfields

The last miner’s common signage.
Rubyvale user-pays stand-pipe and pad.
Who we are community volunteer day.
Anakie 10,000 steps walkway.

Springsure

Disability access to Eclipse St shops.
Design 10-kilometre section of Springsure-Tambo Road.
Springsure kindergarten.
Lions’ park walking path to shopping precinct.
Therapeutic heated pool.

Rolleston

Rolleston truck stop.
Plan the Rolleston community sport precinct.

Tieri

Signage.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Grants to Community Organisations
$Amount to the

Organisation

Project

Blackwater International Coal Centre Inc

History of Blackwater display.

4000

Bluff Blackwater Amateur Race Club Inc

Shade improvement project.

5000

BUSHKids

Rain water tank project.

4708

Capella Golf Club Inc

Club house airconditioning.

3995

Dingo State School P&C Assoc

Sports day and function equipment upgrade.

5000

Duaringa Rodeo Club – Campdraft

Campdraft cattle yard renewal.

5000

Duaringa State School P&C Association

Repainting swimming pool.

5000

Emerald Golf Club Inc.

Purchase boom spray unit.

4800

Emerald Junior Motorcycle Club Inc.

Two-day rider coaching program.

2000

Emerald PCYC

Dance floor restoration.

5000

Emerald Preschool and Community Kindergarten

Concept plans for new kindergarten.

5000

Emerald Town Band

Central Highlands Festival of Bands.

2476

QCWA Blackwater Branch

Kitchen upgrade.

5000

Rolleston Roos Rugby Union

Wings, Wheels and Rugby event.

4700

Rolleston State School P&C Association

Shady lunch.

5000

Southern Cross Kid’s Camps

Creating resilience in Emerald kids.

1882

Springsure Community Kindergarten Inc.

Replace shade structure.

5000

Springsure Jockey Club

Upgrade to fencing.

5000

Springsure State School P&C Association

Electrical connection.

5000

nearest whole $

Assoc Inc.

Community grant recipient Arcadia Valley Hall has a new footpath.
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$Amount to the

Organisation

Project

Bauhinia State School Parents and Citizens’ Association

Bauhinia sports oval upgrade.

5000

Capella Pioneer Village

Replacement of wall of the hospitality

5000

nearest whole $

pavilion.
Capella State School Parents and Citizens’ Association

Purchase three marquees.

4377

Central Highlands Science Centre Inc.

Tech savvy kids Central Queensland.

5000

Central Highlands Triathlon Club

Event equipment.

4860

Comet State School P&C

Purchase two chest freezers.

1058

Emerald Brothers Cricket Club Inc.

Cricket pitch roller.

4059

Emerald Crime Stoppers Area Committee

New tent.

1062

Emerald Jockey Club Inc.

Concrete pathways.

5000

Emerald North State School Parents and Citizens’

Concrete pads/handball courts.

5000

Gems of the Outback – Photographic Society

5000

Association
Emerald Photographic Club Inc.

of Queensland Conference 2018
Gindie State School Parents and Citizens’ Association

Rejuvenated playground.

5000

Maraboon Power Boat and Ski Club Inc.

Education and training.

5000

Queensland Country Women’s Association Emerald

Purchase of new chairs.

2469

Retreat Creek Campdraft Association Inc.

Resurfacing campdraft arena at Roy Day

3740

Park, Sapphire.
Rotary Club of Emerald Sunrise

Security mesh screens.

4665

Springsure Gymnastics and Cheerleading Club Inc.

Purchase equipment for skill development

2922

and safety.
Springsure Pastoral and Agricultural Society Inc.

Upgrade of poultry pavilion.

5000

St Vincent de Paul Society Queensland (Capella)

Paving the way at Vinnies Capella.

5000

Yumba Bimbi Support Services

Purchase blinds.

3705

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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The Emerald depot staff all got behind the Doin' it for Dolly campaign.

RADF grants 2017-18
Project Title

$ Amount

Buskers Road to Tamworth

1300

Project Summary
For Mitchell Rolfe to gain industry experience and develop as a
performer and songwriter.

Buskers Road to Tamworth

1300

For Greer Webley to gain industry experience and develop as a
performer and songwriter.

Capturing local ecotourism

4680

A two-day workshop for Rolleston Photography Group with professional
photographer Steph Connell at the new local ecotourism location at
Wallaroo, south of Rolleston.

PSQ convention

14 294

For the Emerald Photographic Club to host the Photographic Society of
Queensland conference in Emerald in May 2018.

Flying Arts Weekend

4950

Council initiated project of community arts and cultural training.

Blackwater International Coal

2646

Celebration with a large community event including music

Centre 10-year History and

performances, floral and art workshops.

Heritage Celebration
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Project Title
Frances MK Underhill – local

$ Amount
1338

author

Project Summary
Limited print run on children’s book ‘Edward and Tuesday’ to local
libraries and schools to showcase talent of two local emerging artists,
author Fran Underhill and illustrator Helen Killian.

Drawing workshop

300

To Emerald Art Group for drawing workshop with Erin Dunne.

Taste of Africa Experiences

3455

Miner’s Common Museum, Arts and Culture Centre Inc. performance
and workshops during annual Gemfields Fold Festival.

Professional Development

5000

Community and professional development with Emerald Art Precinct
groups: Emerald Patchwork Group and Emerald Pottery Group to
facilitate professional development including kiln training.

Full Throttle Theatre

12 000

‘More like Astronomical’ performances will be conducted regionally in 13
communities: Acadia Valley, Bauhinia, Blackwater, Bluff, Capella, Comet,
Dingo, Duaringa, Emerald, Rolleston, Sapphire Gemfields, Springsure
and Tieri.

Emerald Photography Group

8000

Les Walkling specialised photographic print workshops.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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How we involve our community
This year we have held a number of activities to provide
opportunities for consultation and to involve the community
in our decision-making.

Councillor consultations
Councillor consultations and general council meetings are
held in communities across our region every year. These
meetings are an opportunity for residents to meet with the
mayor and councillors, ask questions or raise concerns, and
receive updates on projects in their area.
In 2017-18, consultations were held in:
Arcadia Valley

Tresswell

Carnarvon Gorge

Lochington

Clermont/Rubyvale Rd

Tambo Rd

Rubyvale

Springsure

Sapphire

Rolleston

Anakie

Toprain

Duaringa

Orion

Bauhinia

Dingo

Bluff

Big Bend

Willows Gemfields

Comet

Bogantungan

Local buy and supply
Supporting our local economy and small business is
important to us and throughout the year CHDC has continued
to liaise with business owners to prepare and inform them on
how to do business with council.
As a result, our spending within the local region shows
steady growth.

Our local spend
Local
spend $M

32

Outside
region
spend $M

Total
spend $M

2014

36.7

66.4

103

2015

37.1

69.4

106.5

2016

40.1

57.9

98

2017

53

49.6

102.6

2018

46.2

64.7

111
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Australia Day 2018 celebrations in Emerald.
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Disaster management and preparedness
Prevention

Preparedness

Our emergency management and community resilience

The emergency management dashboard on the corporate

department implemented and progressed several disaster

website had more than 14 000 views during the response to

mitigation and community safety projects this year.

TC Debbie.

Building regional resilience

Installation of a direct microwave link into the Emerald

The Resilient Queensland 2018-21 Strategy was released by
the Queensland Reconstruction Authority with a target that

SES facility to improve direct connectivity between
council facilities.

by 2022 every local government will be part of a regional

Held a two-day workshop to review the local disaster

resilience plan.

management plan to bring it in line with the Queensland

We have been advocating to look at disaster risk, response
and recovery efforts with a regional lens given that disaster
events affect neighbouring LGAs.
The state government is keen to explore opportunities
to begin a pilot in our region and has undertaken some
preliminary discussions with officers in Isaac, Central
Highlands, Livingstone, Banana and Rockhampton councils
and the Queensland Reconstruction Authority.

Regional Flood Modelling
Draft modelling report for lower MacKenzie, Upper
Comet, Medway and Borilla Creek.
LiDAR (light detection and ranging) is being acquired over
Borilla Creek AL and Serpentine AL to develop accurate
synthetic rating curves for each of these gauges.
High resolution LiDAR data is being acquired over
Emerald township area to update flood models and refine
impacts and improve accuracy of evacuation planning

Emergency Management Assurance Framework, Standards
for Disaster Management in Queensland, and revised
Queensland Prevention Preparedness, Response and
Recovery Disaster Management Guidelines.
Seventeen training courses were conducted for council
staff and local disaster response agencies with 181 people
attending.
Community safety upgrade program:
Emerald Downs radio equipment replacement and aerial
installations.
Replaced four-wheel-drive road accident rescue
appliance.
Automated sand-bagging machine and preparation and
dispatch area at Emerald.
New SES operational facility at Blackwater and Duaringa.
Upgraded hardstand areas at SES Emerald and Capella.
Installation of new radio antennas at the Emerald Downs
site to improve council's and public radio networks.

information.
Funding approved jointly with Isaac Regional Council
to undertake accurate data capture of TC Debbie flood
heights in the Isaac River sub-basin and develop a
calibrated flood model in 2018-19.

Response
Multiple storm operations throughout the region with nearly
all areas being impacted from mid-February into March.
We deployed staff and equipment to Isaac Regional Council

Hazard Mitigation and Risk Reduction:
Fourteen installations and upgrades to the flood warning
network were carried out during the year.
Council and CQROC continue to explore a collaborative local
government approach and more cost-effective operations
and maintenance model to manage the flood warning
network assets in the region.

34

for two weeks to assist with the clean-up following a
significant weather event 21 February 2018.
Springsure rainfall event 26 February 2018. We joined
emergency services and community members rallying to
the aid of the Springsure community following a severe
downpour that saw water rise to levels not experienced
before through the centre of town and surrounding
rural areas.
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Help was required in Springsure after a severe weather event caused local flooding.
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Calendar of Events
July 2017

National Tree Day community planting
NAIDOC week celebrations
Ag-Grow
Central Highlands Art Awards
Blackwater Fun Day
Springsure Firies Camp Oven Cook-off.
Human-power vehicle demonstration race – Emerald
4 Paws for a CQ Cause

August 2017

Arts in August
Gemfest
Senior’s Week
Relay for Life
Springsure Biennial Art Competition
Gigs and Digs Festival – music event

September 2017

Disability Action Week
CQ University Open Day
Ladies and Tradies Race Day – Emerald
Pioneer Village Heritage Day – Capella
Springsure Cup Race Day
Combined emergency services day
Comet Show
Saratoga Spectacular – Blackwater

October 2017

Central Highlands Business Excellence Awards
Garage Sale Trail
Emerald Trifecta Triathlon
Gems of Youth Art Awards – Emerald
Emerald Oktoberfest

November 2017

Remembrance Day and official dedication of Springsure cenotaph
Nogoa November
CQ Pet Rescue Adoption Day

December 2017

Light Up Your Town - Christmas light competition
Lochington Cricket Day
New Year’s Eve Races – Emerald
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January 2018

Australia Day festivities in Blackwater, Capella, Emerald and Rolleston

February 2018

Doin’ it for Dolly Rodeo – Springsure
30 years Bauhinia Bicentennial Art Gallery Art and Photo Competition
Central Highlands Sports Forum and Awards Dinner

March 2018

Clean Up Australia Day event
International Women’s Day
Central Highlands Regional Council 10th anniversary
Queen’s Baton Relay
Emerald Street Party
Springsure St Patricks Day races
Eat Street Market
Sunflower Festival

April 2018

ANZAC Day ceremonies
Mayoral Student Leaders Summit
Emerald Boots and Ballgowns B&S Ball
Emerald Triathlon
Battle of the Bush Country Races
Glow Run - Blackwater

May 2018

Western Queensland Local Government Association Conference and Race Day
May Day Rodeo – Blackwater
ROMAC Cycle Fest – Emerald
Market Day – Blackwater
Springsure Mountain Challenge
Volunteers Shine at the Gemmies – Community Open Day
Biggest Morning Tea
Capella Show

June 2018

Central Highlands Youth Week
Parkwave Festival
Springsure Show
Emerald Show
Wings Wheels and Rugby – Rolleston
Buckland Recreation Club Fun Day
Emerald Junior National Finals and CQ Bodyworx Rodeo

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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All staff enjoyed the inaugural Whole of Organisation Day in October 2017.
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Our Council
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HOW COUNCIL WORKS
The chief executive officer and executive
leadership team. drive the business of council and

The community elects the councillors and mayor
and provides input through the community plan,
consultations and community reference groups to

offer councillors advice.

determine the region’s priorities.

The Australian and Queensland

Committees: Infrastructure

Governments provide

and Finance, Governance

authority to council under

and Leadership,

the Local Government

Communities.

Act 2009 and endow
funding for various
programs.

Our standing

Council establishes

committees consider

operational and

the strategic direction

strategic priorities that

for the region and make

align with the community

recommendations to

plan, corporate plan and

council in relation to specific

operational plan.

operational areas.

The Central Highlands Development
The Audit Committee provides an independent

Corporation manages the economic and

external review of our governance and internal

tourism facets of the local government area. Board

control framework.
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members comprise of councillors and the CEO.
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OUR organisation
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Scott Mason

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS • WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY

GENERAL MANAGER
CORPORATE
SERVICES

GENERAL MANAGER
COMMERCIAL
SERVICES

Jason Bradshaw

Michelle Webster

Financial Management

Quarry Operations

Town Planning

Disaster Management

Rating

Saleyard Operations

Flood Mitigation

Procurement

Land Development

Development
Assessment

Records Management

Airport Operations

Information Services

Native Title

Payroll
Organisational
Development
Recruitment
Learning and
Development
Asset Management
Geographic Information
Systems

GENERAL MANAGER
COMMUNITIES
Daniel Fletcher

Strategic Land Use
Planning
Building and Plumbing
Services
Ranger Services
Waste Management
Services
Environmental Health
Public Assets and
Facilities
Libraries
Customer Service

Plant and Fleet
Management

Call Centre

Governance

Community Planning
and Development

Legal Compliance
Corporate Planning and
Reporting
Risk Management

Arts and Cultural Services
Sport and Recreational
Facilities

GENERAL MANAGER
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND UTILITIES
Gerhard Joubert

Technical Services
Project Design
Project Management
Contract Administration
Road Infrastructure
Agreements
Infrastructure Services
Depots and Workshop
Operations
Infrastructure
Maintenance
Capital Construction
Water Utilities
Water and Sewerage
Treatment
Water and Sewerage
Networks
Water and Sewerage
Infrastructure

Cemeteries

Internal Audit
Corporate Strategy

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Our services
We offer services to around 29 000 people
and 15 000 rateable properties in an area of
nearly 60 000 square kilometres.
We employ 418 staff to administer in excess
of $800 million in assets, including ten
library branches, six aquatic centres and
seven customer service centres.
We maintain 4632 kilometres of roads and
numerous parks and gardens, including the
impressive botanic gardens in Emerald, the
linear parkland in Capella and the Japanese
Gardens in Blackwater.

Our signature youth event - the Parkwave Festival held in Blackwater.

A-Z of services
Advocacy

Major economic project development

Art galleries

Park and community hall bookings

Cemeteries

Parks and gardens maintenance

Community consultation

Pest and weed control

Community grants

Planning and building

Communications – media, public relations and social

Playgrounds maintenance and building

media

Plumbing inspections

Community housing

Quarries

Culture – citizenship, sister city relations, heritage and

Ranger services – animal management, livestock control,

history

pounds

Customer service

Roads, bridges, culverts and footpaths

Disaster management and planning

Sporting and recreation areas – planning and

Economic development – business support
Emerald Airport and landing areas

Sporting and active recreation club support

Emerald Saleyards

Stock route management

Environmental management – feral animal control,

Street lighting and signage

weeds, flying foxes, mosquitoes, swooping birds
Events – Australia Day, ANZAC celebrations,
commemorative and celebratory events
Flood mitigation planning
Food and personal appearance (hairdressers, tattooists,
beauty salons etc.) compliance and registration
Indigenous cultural support
Information technology – support and maintenance
Library services
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maintenance

Streetscape and tree management
Swimming pools
Swimming pool fence safety compliance
Tourism development – visitor information centres
Waste and recycling services
Water and wastewater management
Workplace health and safety
Youth services
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Our Organisation
LIVING OUR VALUES
ONE-TEAM APPROACH

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT CULTURE
WORKING SAFELY

The inaugural Safety and Wellness Activation Team team-building event at Fairbairn Dam.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Central Highlands Regional Council is one of
the largest employers in the region. We strive
to be an employer of choice. Our people are
chosen for their ability, experience, dedication
to quality service delivery, and conformity with
our values. We support their endeavours by
providing a safe and healthy workplace where
self-improvement and innovation are fostered
and rewarded.

Living our values
We have developed a strong vision and mission statement
and corporate values to guide us in the pursuit of excellence.
These values guide our behaviour and attitude and shape
the outcomes we deliver.
The human resources team coordinate and deliver learning
and development activities to improve the capability of
our people.

Transformational leadership
We provide a positive and supportive working environment

Service areas

for our people. We are an equal opportunity employer
that values culture and diversity. Our values inform our

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND CALL CENTRE

culture and we are working hard to transform into a
leader of workplace culture in the future by embarking on
transformational change.

PAYROLL

HUMAN RESOURCES

This transformation has five key aspects that influence
the way we work and deliver services to our communities:
technology, customer service, governance, safety, and

RECRUITMENT

service planning delivery.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Developing the right culture and providing strong leadership
is an integral part of being an effective organisation that
recognises ‘our people are our most important asset’.

SAFETY AND WELLNESS

Summary of key activities
Provide excellent customer service to ensure
professional service delivery.
Continuously advance work practices and

A great place to work
We are recognised as an employer of choice in our region.
Our programs in health and safety, career development,
diversity, work and family, and learning and development
give us a positive workforce position and engender a
supportive and productive workforce.

business systems to ensure a skilled, motivated

We are dedicated to building a better region and our

and community-focused workforce to drive a

employees are proud to make our region a great place to

coordinated and connected organisation.

live and work.

Create and sustain a positive and future-focused
organisational culture that demonstrates and
supports council’s values.
Develop and implement effective systems to
manage risk to enable the efficient delivery of
council services.
Sustain a productive, efficient and safe workforce
that is responsive to council and community needs.

Supporting a skilled, motivated and
community-focused workforce.
We are committed to building the capacity of our
workforce by providing opportunities for employees to
attain and maintain qualifications and participate in skills
development programs.
A range of professional development and learning
opportunities ensure our employees have the skills and
knowledge to deliver the highest quality services to
our community.
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We value the safety and wellbeing of
our people.
This year, to support our ‘Growing our Own’ strategy, we
employed 24 trainees, apprentices, cadets and co-op
students and all were provided with a combination of
employment and structured learning opportunities.
The opportunity to develop our future workforce from the
entry level is part of building the capability and capacity for

Highlights of 2017-18
Blackwater was the first council in Queensland to be
awarded a five-star tidy towns rating.
Our 1300 242 686 customer service number received
21 332 calls and 89% were resolved at first point
of contact.
For the first time we nominated 10 trainees and

succession planning and a sustainable future.

apprentices in the Queensland Training Awards, achieving

Performance appraisals and learning and development plans

three finalists in the ‘Trainee of the Year’ category and

design and develop the organisation-wide learning and

one in the ‘Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander’ category

development program that includes opportunities to support

for the Central Queensland region.

employees in: inductions and onboarding; systems and
applications; professional, personal and core competency
development; as well as mandatory training to maintain
employees’ compliance obligations.

Responsive and efficient service delivery
systems.
Our human resources and safety and wellness teams have
implemented SitePass – a management system to manage
all workers’ licences, online learning (including inductions,
policy and procedural learning), external training records, and
site attendance.
The induction program follows the same process for all new
workers, although the process can be tailored to the industry,
operation, and tasks to be performed. More importantly,

Trainee ranger Michelle Doughty was named the Central
Queensland Bob Marshman Trainee of the Year for 2018
and went on to represent the region at the state finals.
The Central Highlands Regional Council Certified

Agreement 2018-2021 was delivered through an open,
collaborative and engaged process in partnership with
employees and unions.
The new Industrial Relations Act, 2016 and Queensland

Local Government Industry Award-State 2017 were
implemented.
We rolled out the Switch on Safety program.
The safety and wellness activation team (SWAT)
was formed.

workers compliance obligations are now facilitated and
managed through SitePass enabling greater flexibility and
autonomy across a range of technologies, also allowing
workers to scan and maintain their own details.

A positive and future-focused culture that
demonstrates and supports our values.
We understand that our people are our greatest asset
and, with a team of empowered, and skilled workers that
demonstrate a future-focused culture, we will continue to
provide the highest quality services to our community.
Our goal is to have an engaged, customer-focused
workforce that delivers high-quality services to our
community. The human resources team provides leadership
and support for all employee matters and attends to
compliance with industrial instruments, including the

Queensland Local Government Industry Award 2017 (Stream
A, B & C) and our new Central Highlands Council Certified

Agreement 2018-2021.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Challenges of 2017-18

Outlook for 2018-19

Customer Service

Customer service team

Customer service delivery was impacted by reduced

We will develop a customer service strategy and action plan

capacity and skill shortage this year, which contributed to a

to present our commitment to customer service excellence

delay in response time and ultimately performance against

and outline key actions to meet the objectives of the

our standard. Recruitment and training continued throughout

corporate plan.

the year to address these issues.

The customer service charter will be reviewed to ensure our
standard of service meets the expectation of our customers

Human Resources
The human resources team’s greatest challenge this year
was negotiating the new certified agreement. By taking a
collaborative approach with employees, council and unions,
the negotiations and communications process ran smoothly
and achieved a great outcome.

and can be monitored and assessed to provide data to
enable continuous improvement.

Human resources team
New technology will move the human resources team from
using a very manual, time consuming process to a more
efficient online system. We will focus on more self-service
and move towards achieving higher quality outcomes overall.
The coming year will see a renewed focus on learning and
development. The human resource team will be accountable
to improve and develop employees. In the first instance
we are focusing on a leadership development program
for middle and senior management. The program will be
a practical and effective approach to build and enhance
people management capability, to ensure employees
are fully engaged, aligned and focused on the delivery of
organisational strategy and objectives.

Safety and wellness team
Our six key focus areas for the next 12 months are actions
from the Work Health and Safety Management Plan and
include: health and safety by design, health and safety
capabilities, leadership and culture, enforceable undertaking,
health and wellbeing, and digital safety systems.

Strategies, plans and policies
Employee Code of Conduct 2018
Central Highlands Regional Council Certified Agreement
2018-2021
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Statistics and trends
Total workforce
Year

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Internal

243

279

213

226

223

221

External

265

206

222

234

225

197

Total

508

485

435

460

448

418

Year

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Total

125

96

59

106

102

79

Year

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Male

332 (65%)

290 (60%)

290 (67%)

309 (68%)

293 (65%)

253 (61%)

Female

185 (35%)

172 (40%)

154 (33%)

160 (31%)

164 (35%)

165 (39%)

Year

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Total

126

100

108

86

108

121

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

25

20

25

19

23

19

15-24

25-35

36-45

46-55

56-65

65+

2016-17

39

98

88

115

100

8

2017-18

36

83

86

99

108

6

Recruitment

Gender Balance

Terminations

Employee turnover
Year
%

Age Demographics
Age Group

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Customer requests by category
Category

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Animals

596

537

375

Assets and facilities

729

621

592

1276

811

736

246

221

759

1900

1679

1644

Parks and recreation

721

696

788

Rates

990

807

775

Roads

1051

1120

1184

Sewerage

169

155

184

Waste management

530

489

548

2502

2285

2481

3

7

4

10,713

9428

10,070

Development compliance
Health and environment
Local laws

Water
Fleet
TOTAL

AGEING WORKFORCE TREND
120

Employee Numbers

115
110
105
100
95
90
85
56 yrs and over by year
56yrs over 12/13

56yrs over 15/16

56yrs over 13/14

56yrs over 16/17

56yrs over 14/15

56yrs over 17/18

Whole of Organisation Day 2017.
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Case Study

Growing our own

Growing our own – talent retention by building our

programs to encourage new employees to remain

future employees from the start!

or stay close to home and work in their local

There are many factors and challenges that

community.

impact the recruitment and retention of skilled

We provide invaluable on-the-job experience

workers within our region: national and state-wide

along with a nurturing, learning environment that

skills shortages, competition from the resource

encourages people to work diligently towards

sector, career progression opportunities, or simply

nationally recognised qualifications.

the lack of knowledge around the employment
opportunities available within local government.

Investment in staff with ongoing training and
professional development contributes to currency,

We have implemented a range of tools to build a

compliance and competency of our employees.

skilled workforce from the ground up – Growing

It enhances staff retention rates and supports

our Own.

succession planning frameworks.

Programs have been introduced to support our

This work is coordinated by Aleisha Catip, who

commitment to provide career pathways and

goes above and beyond to work with trainees,

training opportunities to internal and external

apprentices and supervisors to ensure that

stakeholders.

programs are completed.

This is made possible with collaboration between

This tailored approach to learning and

the secondary schools, universities and our

development requires a lot of work and attention

learning and development team.

to detail. Aleisha’s effort is testament to her

Activities include attending secondary school
career and information days and the delivery of
structured work experience, cadet, and graduate

dedication and sets a shining example of what
working for this council means and how much of
a difference one can make in someone’s life; by
simply giving them a start.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Staff profile

Tash Todd – Personnel Officer

I’ve been happily employed with council for a total

After six months in customer service, I applied for

of seven years and have had the privilege to work

a position in human resources and I’ve been the

in a number of departments and positions.

personnel officer here since 2014.

I started in the recovery centre after the 2010-11

My role is quite diverse and I work with a great

floods and found it very rewarding to help our

team. The main area of my responsibility is

community during such a devastating time.

recruitment and the onboarding of our employees.

I left Emerald at the end of 2012 and moved to

My favourite part of the job is meeting new

the Sunshine Coast. I’ll never forget at my work

employees and welcoming them to the

send off the mayor at the time, Peter Maguire,

organisation. Council has provided me with the

said to me, ‘Once you cross the Nogoa [River]

opportunity to develop my professional skills in

you always come back.’ I laughed at the time, but

a number of areas including human resources,

eight months later I found myself back in Emerald

disaster management, and safety, for which I

working for council in the position of customer

am thankful.

service officer.

It really is a great place to work and, working for
local government is a rewarding career.
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Performance Report – Key Priority Area 7 – A Workplace of Excellence
Key performance indicators

COMPLETED

LIVING OUR VALUES
Achieve 80% positive customer
satisfaction.
Customer requests response is
timely and responsive within set
standards.
Continuous improvement
culture
Consolidate storage and
disposal of physical records.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
CULTURE
Achieve milestones of business
transformation through cloudbased software solutions
project.
Employees using new cloudbased storage and information

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Develop workforce metrics
to enhance organisational
performance and cultural
outcomes.
Negotiate and implement a

NOT PROCEEDING

Develop enterprise risk
management reporting.
Provide regular reports to
council on the risk-based
insurance portfolio.

new enterprise agreement for

WORKING SAFELY

employees.

Implement safety leadership

ONE-TEAM APPROACH

program.

Improve enterprise risk
management systems.

Implement strategic contracting
to achieve procurement
efficiencies.
Investigate improvements to
inventory management.
Develop and implement a
workforce strategic plan.

WORKING SAFELY
Training delivered in
accordance with training plans.
Achieve 60% employee
engagement in wellness
programs.
Achieve productivity targets
in employee performance

collaboration tools.

management systems.

Nil

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Health and safety report
Our safety values

Lost Time Injury Statistics

All incidents are preventable.

There has been a positive trend in our safety performance

Everyone has a right to come to work and do their jobs
effectively and go home safely.

this year and the performance indicators compare favourably
to other local governments of a similar size.

Every person has the authority to stop the job.

19% reduction in lost time injury statutory claims

No job is more important than my ‘Top 4’.

43% reduction in lost time injury frequency rate

I am responsible for safety.

18% reduction in lost time duration rate

I will not walk past an unsafe act or condition.

15% reduction in lost time incident rate

A safe workforce

LOST TIME INJURY STATISTICS 2017 VS 2018
(FINANCIAL YEARS)

This year we partnered with Actrua Performance Culture to
take our safety leadership to the next level with the Switch

30

on Safety program to create a shared belief that, ‘all incidents

35

are preventable’. The program was delivered to councillors,

20

management, employees, and some contractors.

15

29.50

27.00
22.00

21.70

21.38

12.47

10

Participants considered the top four things in their life that

5

are most important to them. These things were referred to as

0

their ‘Top 4’. It provided an opportunity for people to make a

4.22 3.58

LTI Claim LTI Frequency Rate LTI Duration Rate LTI IncidentRate
2017

personal commitment to the organisation and to themselves

2018

to stay safe at work for their ‘Top 4’.

Sprains and strains were the most common types of injuries

The CEO made a personal commitment for safety to be our

with 49% resulting in musculoskeletal disorders affecting

number one priority and reflected this commitment in the

the upper limbs. Shoulder injuries accounted for 43% of

Work Health and Safety Policy.

the incurred worker’s compensation costs in 2017-2018.

A significant effort has been invested to simplify the safety
management system and to standardise work practices.
In April, we engaged an independent external auditor to
conduct a full safety management system audit against
the principles of AS4801 Safety Management Systems and
by using the National self-insurer WHS audit tool. We have
made a commitment to action all the recommendations from

Management of musculoskeletal disorders in the workplace
is a priority for our injury prevention program.
A key element of our health program is the identification of
health risks associated with specific tasks for our workers.
Each position has its own safe systems of work plan along
with targeted injury prevention initiatives based on the
identified risks.

the audit by October 2018.
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Enforceable undertaking

Are you safe to start?
An authority to work system ensures all workers are ‘safe

A serious workplace accident, which occurred on 3

to start’ prior to commencing a task. The system bundles

December 2014 involving a contractor for Central Highlands

together all hazard management tools into one simple and

Regional Council, has seen us enter into an enforceable

easy-to-understand process.

undertaking (EU) with the Deputy Director-General, Office of

It encourages consultation and communication and attracts

Industrial Relations.

a team approach to identify and control hazards in the

An EU operates as an alternative to a court-imposed

work place. Our team leaders and supervisors are excited

sanction for an alleged contravention of the Work Health

to have a simplistic tool to assist them to meet their safety

and Safety Act 2011 and is a legally-binding commitment to

obligations and ensure it is safe to start work for themselves

implement effective health and safety initiatives.

and their teams.

In 2014, workers of a contractor engaged by council were
carrying out trench excavation work for the installation of

Health and Wellness
Our all-inclusive injury prevention and management program
is a three-pronged approach, focusing on injury prevention

sewer pipes, when the trench collapsed causing serious
injury to one man.

and management, and job specific training to reduce injury

The incident was a terrible reminder about the importance

rates and manage rehabilitation and return to work.

of being safe at work. And it’s with the utmost sincerity that

Our employees have taken ownership of the promotion of
a healthy workplace by forming the SWAT in November
2017 and it has already successfully completed several

all of us at Central Highlands Regional Council acknowledge
with regret the incident

that resulted in injury to the worker

and distress to his family.

engagement activities. One event was a staff fun day at

Entering into this undertaking and implementing its activities

Fairbairn Dam that brought workers together from all levels

will result in wide-reaching and ongoing positive impact

and locations to partake in team building activities.

on the health and safety of our workers, contractors, and

SWAT initiatives will focus on the four key areas of: lifestyle

members of the community.

management, physical activity, work/life balance and

We all have a duty of care to ensure any person we engage

emotional health and wellbeing.

to conduct activities in any capacity goes home safely at
the end of the day. A complete overhaul of our contractor
management system is underway that will encourage our
contract partners to meet the same high safety standards as
those of our workers.
Everyone at Central Highlands Regional Council is united
behind our number one priority—a relentless focus on safety
and wellbeing.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Our Leaders
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Councillors and mayor

Kerry Hayes

Gail Godwin-Smith

Paul Bell

MAYOR

DEPUTY MAYOR

Cr Paul Bell AM has served local

Cr Hayes served three terms with the

This is Cr Gail Godwin-Smith’s second

government for thirty-three continuous

previous Emerald Shire Council from

term with Central Highlands Regional

years since first being elected in

1997 to 2008, before serving on the

Council and her first as deputy

1985. His local government career

newly amalgamated Central Highlands

mayor. Coming from a cattle and

includes nine years as mayor, four as

Regional Council from 2008 to 2012.

grain property south of Rolleston,

the president of the Australian Local

she is passionate about agriculture,

Government Association and eight as

education, health, economic

president of the Queensland Local

development, infrastructure investment

Government Association.

After a short break from local
government, he was elected as mayor
in March 2016. Cr Hayes has been the
managing director of the Emerald Land

and community liveability.

Cr Bell has a strong history of board

and Cattle Company since 1988. His

A graduate of the Australian Institute of

leadership including the health,

key focus is economic development,

Company Directors, Cr Godwin-Smith is

energy, rail, superannuation and

controlling costs, effective community

on the board of the Australian Local

community service sectors. He is chair

engagement and improving liveability

Government Women’s Association

of the Central Queensland Hospital

across the region.

Qld, a local government board director

and Health Service and the Central

of the Fitzroy Basin Association and

Highlands Healthcare Ltd Boards and a

Central Highlands Healthcare Ltd, a

director of the Central Highlands (Qld)

ministerial appointment to the board

Housing Company.

Cr Hayes has held numerous council
board positions for sectors such as the
saleyards, vegetation management and
the CBD revitalisation and planning. He
was also chair of the flood recovery
committees in 2008 and 2010.

E: mayor@chrc.qld.gov.au
P: 0438 828 335

of the Rockhampton Girls Grammar
School and the Queensland Great
Artesian Basin Advisory Council and a
member of AgForce Queensland, the
Cattle Council of Australia, Rolleston
SES and a volunteer first responder for
the Queensland Ambulance Service.

In 2005, Cr Bell was awarded a Member
(AM) in the General Division of the
Order of Australia. He has a Bachelor
of Business Administration and is a
member of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors. His success
in developing partnerships with

E: ggodwin-smith@chrc.qld.gov.au

government and private enterprise has

P: 0400 860 850

seen accelerated investment for roads,
water and community infrastructure.

E: pbell@chrc.qld.gov.au
P: 0418 791 596

56

Central Highlighlands Regional Council Annual Report 2017-18

Charlie Brimblecombe

Megan Daniels

Alan McIndoe

Cr Brimblecombe is in his second term

Cr Megan Daniels brings a variety

Cr McIndoe is no stranger to the

with the Central Highlands Regional

of skills and experience to her first-

spotlight having represented both

Council. Having spent more than 40

term as councillor. With a Bachelor

Queensland and Australia in rugby

years in the area, the Duaringa local

of Business – Agribusiness, she has a

league. But in 2016, he pulled on a

is passionate about bringing families

professional profile in the not-for-profit,

different kind of jersey, representing his

back to the region to build strong

banking and agribusiness sectors in

community as a first-term councillor.

communities.

Queensland and overseas.

With experience working for council

An Emerald local with family ties to

the area having been raised in the

as a water treatment plant operator,

agribusiness in Capella and Comet, she

area from the age of two and returning

improved infrastructure and utilities

has a strong interest in natural resource

after his sporting career 20 years ago.

are also a priority for him. Outside of

management, economic development

He is a project manager and small

his local government career, Charlie

and ensuring the liveability of large and

family business owner, as well as an

is a volunteer ambulance driver, SES

small communities. Her roles within

experienced life coach and a coach

member, a karate teacher and a rural

council and externally allow her to work

for the Emerald Brothers Junior Rugby

firefighter.

with the wider community to ensure

League Club. He is also the patron of

E: cbrimblecombe@chrc.qld.gov.au

the Central Highlands is a great place

the Central Highlands Men of League

P: 0417 758 819

to work and do business.

committee.

Cr Daniels is a graduate of the

Cr McIndoe is a strong advocate for

Australian Institute of Company

community wealth and health, primary

Directors, director of Access

and secondary industries, and building

Accommodation, the Emerald

unity within the region.

Neighbourhood Centre, CHDC, deputy

E: amcindoe@chrc.qld.gov.au
P: 0457 944 446

director of CHRRUP, member of the

This Emerald man has strong ties to

Central Highlands Regional Council
Saleyards Steering Committee and
chairperson of the Communities
Standing Committee.

E: mdaniels@chrc.qld.gov.au
P: 0436 629 053

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Gail Nixon

Christine Rolfe

Gai Sypher

After 19 years with the Bauhinia Shire

This is the first term for Cr Christine

Long-time Capella resident Cr Gai

Council, twelve as mayor, and eight

Rolfe, who lives on a cattle property

Sypher began her second term as

with Central Highlands Regional

near Springsure. She is heavily involved

a councillor in October 2017. She

Council, Cr Gail Nixon is in her 29th year

in local, state and national agri-politics

previously served as a councillor for

in local government.

holding positions as board member

four years from 2012 and enjoyed an

of Queensland Agricultural Training

18-year long career with the Central

Colleges, immediate past vice-

Queensland University as a community

president and treasurer of AgForce

engagement practitioner.

A born and bred Springsure local, Cr
Nixon also helps manage her family’s
small transport and fuel business.
She is treasurer of the Ivy Anderson
Age Home Committee, which has

Queensland and past vice-president of
the National Farmers Federation.

Cr Sypher was born and bred in the
rural sector and brings experience

raised vital funds for the assisted

In her local community she is a

in community and stakeholder

living complex, and a director of

member of the Springsure and District

engagement, strategic planning,

the Central Highlands (Queensland)

Aged Care and has held committee

project management, governance,

Housing Company. She also served

positions on several community

management and education.

as deputy mayor from 2012 to 2016. Cr

organisations. Cr Rolfe is passionate

She holds a Bachelor of Arts with

Nixon’s interests include community,

about education, tourism, agriculture

majors in sociology, welfare and

agriculture, health, mental health,

and resource sectors. She is well-

aboriginal studies.

aged care, tourism and jobs for school

versed in corporate governance

leavers.

and has been an elected member

E: gnixon@chrc.qld.gov.au

of the Central Queensland Regional

P: 0419 642 603

Committee of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors. She is a
Commissioner of Declarations and
holds qualifications in business and
agriculture.

Cr Sypher holds positions as chair of
the board of management Central
Highlands Science Centre, chair
of board of directors Yumba Bimbi
Support Services, executive committee
member Regional Development
Australia Fitzroy and Central West,
deputy chair CTM Links Support

E: crolfe@chrc.qld.gov.au

Services, committee member Capella

P: 0438 444 618

and Blackwater Community Reference
Group and Rubyvale Progress
Association.

E: gsypher@chrc.qld.gov.au
M: 0499 322 121
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David Lacey
Cr David Lacey is from Capella
and grew up on a cattle and grain
property just north of his home town
before completing a diesel fitting
apprenticeship in the mines. With a
diverse background, the local business
owner has a passion for the land,

CEO Scott Mason and Mayor Kerry Hayes welcome Cr Gai Sypher to the team.

business, health, fitness and building
the local sporting community. He
has held various volunteer positions
over the years, including with the
local rugby union club, the Capella
community reference group and the
Capella Scouts.
Cr Lacey resigned from Central
Highlands Regional Council in July 2017
to pursue a career interstate.

(Resigned July 2017)

Cr Gail Godwiin-Smith with the winner of the 2017 Light up Your Town competition.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Councillor remuneration (LGR 2012 S186)
COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION 2017-18
Name of Councillor

Allowances $

Superannuation $

Total Remuneration
$

Mayor Kerry Hayes

124 989.58

15 576.30

140 565.88

Cr. Gail Godwin-Smith

81 365.49

10 124.74

91 490.23

Cr. Paul Bell

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

Cr. Charles Brimblecombe

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

Cr. Megan Daniels

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

6 850.48

822.06

7 672.54

Cr. Alan McIndoe

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

Cr. Gail Nixon

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

Cr. Christine Rolfe

66 399.90

8 274.88

74 674.78

44 981.55

5 704.62

50 686.17

656 586.50

81 877.00

738 463.50

Cr. David Lacey

Cr Gai Sypher
TOTAL

Councillor other expenses (LGR 2012 S186)
OTHER COUNCILLOR EXPENSES
Name of Councillor

Council Motor Vehicle

Accommodation
& Meal Costs
(includes
deputations and
hospitality) $

Seminar,
Conference
& Course
Fees $

Travel Costs
(Conferences
& Seminars) $

Mobile
Devices
& Phone
Charges $

Total Other
Expenses $

7 142.11

2 018.87

7 901.91

1 763.83

18 826.72

Yes

Cr. Gail Godwin-Smith

4 343.87

4 099.81

3 533.65

382.27

12 359.60

Yes

Cr. Paul Bell

1 244.16

2 254.34

1 563.51

710.98

5 772.99

Cr. Charles

1 108.22

4 117.98

608.67

435.20

6 270.07

161.00

717.99

3 099.22

581.04

4 559.25

0.00

0.00

0.00

368.57

368.57

Cr. Alan McIndoe

1 438.52

2 801.26

723.41

2 648.76

7 611.95

Cr. Gail Nixon

1 832.36

945.25

391.55

1 418.21

4 587.37

Yes

Cr. Christine Rolfe

6 919.24

4 738.08

6 331.24

3 188.14

21 176.70

Yes

Cr. Gai Sypher

1 974.75

1 807.99

810.82

403.35

4 996.91

Yes

26 164.23

23 501.57

24 963.98

11 900.35

86 530.13

Mayor Kerry Hayes

Pool
Vehicle
access
available

Vehicle allocated
for exclusive use

Yes
Yes

Brimblecombe
Cr. Megan Daniels
Cr. David Lacey

TOTALS
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Yes

Yes

The 2017-18 Central Highlands Regional Council with CEO Scott Mason (centre front).

Standing Committee Representatives
FINANCE AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

LEADERSHIP AND
GOVERNANCE

COMMUNITIES

Mayor Kerry Hayes

Cr Megan Daniels

Cr Gail Godwin-Smith

Cr David Lacey (until July 2017)

Cr Charles Brimblecombe

Cr Christine Rolfe

Mayor Kerry Hayes

Cr Alan McIndoe

Cr Charlie Brimblecombe

Cr Gail Nixon

Cr David Lacey (until July 2017)

Cr Christine Rolfe

Mayor Kerry Hayes

Cr Megan Daniels

Cr Paul Bell

Cr Gail Nixon

Cr Charles Brimblecombe

Councillor meeting attendance 2017-18 (S 186C)
Standing Committee

General Meeting

Mayor Cr Kerry Hayes

33

24

Cr Gail Godwin-Smith (deputy mayor)

24

24

Cr Paul Bell

10

21

Cr Charles Brimblecombe

33

24

Cr Megan Daniels

24

24

3

3

Cr Alan McIndoe

12

24

Cr Gail Nixon

21

24

Cr Christine Rolfe

23

24

Cr Gai Sypher (from October 2017)

14

15

Cr David Lacey (resigned July 2017)

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Council hosted a vist by Senator Matthew Canavan (top row far right), Senator Bridget McKenzie (top
row second from right) and former Senator Fiona Nash (front row centre) in 2017.

Regional collaboration
Our councillors and executive staff value the opportunity to represent council’s position on various issues and to add the
Central Highlands’ perspective to the regional conversation.
This is a list of the groups and committees that we met with during the year:
Group

Representative

Central Queensland Regional Organisation of Councils

Mayor Kerry Hayes (Chair)
Cr Gail Godwin-Smith
CEO Scott Mason

Western Queensland Local Government Association

Mayor Kerry Hayes (Chair)
CEO Scott Mason
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Central Queensland Senior Officers Network

CEO Scott Mason

Central Queensland Region Engagement Committee

CEO Scott Mason

Queensland Great Artesian Basin Advisory Council

CEO Scott Mason

Queensland Water Directorate Technical Reference Group

CEO Scott Mason

LGAQ Water and Sewerage Advisory Group

Cr Charlie Brimblecombe

LGAQ Roads and Transport Advisory Group

Cr Christine Rolfe

LGAQ Resource Regions Advisory Group

Cr Paul Bell

LGAQ Regional Economic Development Advisory Group

Mayor Kerry Hayes

Central Highlands Accelerate Agribusiness (CHAA)

Mayor Kerry Hayes
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Representing our region
It is important for the council to be represented at various forums and conferences throughout the year to keep up-to-date
with best practice, learn about new technology, advocate for facilities and services for the community, and keep abreast of
the current political climate.
This is an account of councillors’ representation during 2017-18.
Event

Attendee

$ Registration Fees /person

National Sports Convention

Cr McIndoe

1232

LGAQ Bush Council’s Convention

Cr Rolfe

1170

Charters Towers – August 2017

Cr Brimblecombe

IPWEA Western Roads Symposium

Cr Rolfe

Melbourne – July 2017

Nil

Longreach – September 2017
LGAQ Annual Conference

Cr Hayes

Gladstone – October 2017

Cr Brimblecombe

1580

Cr McIndoe
Cr Rolfe
Cr Bell
ALGA National & Local Roads

Cr Rolfe

1170

Albany Western Australia - November 2017
Sister city trip to Japan

Cr Hayes

February 2018

Cr Rolfe

LGMA Annual Conference

Cr Godwin-Smith

1176

Cr Brimblecombe

1010

Gold Coast – September 2017
LGAQ Financial Sustainability Summit
Gold Coast – May 2018
WQLGA Annual Conference

All councillors

220

Emerald – May 2018
ALGA National General Assembly

Cr Hayes

Canberra – June 2018

Cr Godwin-Smith

1344

Cr Rolfe
Cr Sypher

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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CEO and Executive Leadership Team

Scott Mason

Jason Bradshaw

Daniel Fletcher

Scott Mason commenced his local

GENERAL MANAGER
CORPORATE SERVICES

GENERAL MANAGER COMMUNITIES

government career with Monto Shire

Having held a number of senior

Council in 1993 progressing to CEO at

February 2017 from Logan City Council

positions, including chief executive

Gayndah Shire Council in 2003.

where he held the position of manager

officer, Jason has lead a productive

community services.

From 2007, Scott served as CEO at

local government career spanning

Diamantina Shire Council, the second

more than two decades. Jason joined

largest local government area in

the Central Highlands Regional Council

Queensland, and in 2013 accepted the

in December 2015 as the general

position of CEO for Central Highlands

manager corporate services, bringing

Regional Council.

with him valuable in-depth experience

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Scott is passionate about local
government and actively supports
cooperative regional initiatives.
He was awarded the LGMA Manager
of the Year Award for Leadership and
Management Excellence in 2010. He
is a 2010 graduate of the Australian

councils, including rural, coastal and
city, and has played a pivotal role in
driving organisational reform within
Queensland local government.

and management, and is a member

two terms as president.

of professional associations including

council for five years in the capacity of
local government sector representative.
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He has worked for a variety of

Central Queensland LGMA, including

served on this ministerial advisory

services, parks and recreation, and
community development.

quo and the conventional approach

graduate qualifications in business

term of three years. He previously

services, community and customer

governance and management.

and has fulfilled roles of office for the

Advisory Council in June 2018 for a

Daniel leads planning, environmental

He deliberately challenges the status

Jason has undergraduate and post

Queensland Great Artesian Basin

As general manager communities,

in the fields of finance, corporate

Applied Management Colloquium

He was appointed Chair of the

Daniel Fletcher joined council in

CPA Australia; Local Government

and is passionate about creating strong
relationships with all stakeholders
to deliver livable, attractive and
economically sustainable communities.
With a Bachelor Psychology and
Bachelor Criminology and Criminal
Justice, Daniel continues to study,
completing his Higher Degree
Research Master in public sector
integrity.

Managers Australia (QLD); Australian

Daniel is an active member of Smart

Institute of Management; Australian

City Council Australia and New Zealand

Institute of Company Directors; and the

Leadership and Policy Taskforce, LGMA

Governance Institute of Australia.

and has mentored teams through
the Local Government Management
Challenge.
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Gerhard Joubert

Michelle Webster

GENERAL MANAGER
INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES

GENERAL MANAGER COMMERCIAL

Senior Management
Remuneration (S201)

SERVICES

Gerhard Joubert joined the council

Remuneration packages paid to

Michelle Webster has 23 years’

in January 2016. He has more than

senior management (s201 LA 09)

experience in Queensland local

30 years’ experience as a civil

government with six years at an

engineering executive starting in South

Remuneration

executive level.

Range

Africa working for the Department
of Transport in Cape Town, gaining
experience in planning, design and
construction of highways for more
than 10 years before migrating to
Australia and joining local government
in Queensland.
His portfolio includes hazard
mitigation, disaster management and
emergency services, technical services,
infrastructure services and water
utilities.

She is the senior executive responsible
for the strategic and operational

$100 000 -

business planning of the Emerald

$200 000

Saleyards, Emerald Airport, quarries

$200 000 -

and land development.

$300 000

Michelle brings to

$300 000 -

the organisation qualifications

$400 000

Number of
contracted senior
employees
0

4

1

in accounting, management, business
and planning. She is also the holder of
a Bachelor of Commerce degree, is a
graduate and member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors, a

He has completed a Bachelor of

board member of the Australian

Engineering Civil and is a member of

Livestock Markets Association,

the Institute of Engineers Australia;

and an associate member of CPA

a Chartered Professional Engineer; a

Australia.

Fellow of the Institute of Public Works
Engineers Australia; and a Registered
Professional Engineer Queensland.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Glossary of terms
ANNUAL REPORT

BUDGET

CHEMP

An overview of the activities of council

Refers to the Central Highlands

Central Highlands Economic

for the financial year. This report gives a

Regional Council Budget for 2017-18.

Masterplan.

BBRRT

CHRRUP

Bowen Basin Regional Road and

The Central Highlands Regional

Transport Group.

Resources Use Planning Cooperative

comprehensive easy-to-read summary
of what your council has been doing
within the community, including a
comprehensible community financial
report and a complete financial

BOR

summary.

Building our Regions fund.

ARIP

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Advancing Regional Innovation

Represents expenditure on a capital

Program.

project.

ASSET

CAPITAL WORKS

An item that has potential or actual

Works undertaken to create a new

value to an organisation.

asset or space, or to change the use,
function or layout of an existing asset

ASSET MANAGEMENT
A systematic approach to managing
assets through all lifecycle phases.
This involves applying a combination

or space.
CENTRAL HIGHLANDS 2022
COMMUNITY PLAN

is an independent community-owned
organisation dedicated to increasing
the sustainability of natural resources.
CHQHC
Central Highlands Queensland Housing
Company.
COUNCIL
Refers to Central Highlands Regional
Council.
COMMUNITY
The people living, working and visiting
the Central Highlands.

A 10-year plan providing a long-

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

term ‘road map’ for the Central

Expands on community consultation to

Highlands, setting out goals, priorities

include wider processes of education,

and aspirations for our 13 unique

advocacy, communication and

place communities as well as the

participation that also contribute to

whole region.

council decision-making.

CEO

CORPORATE PLAN

Chief Executive Officer

Sets out the council’s strategic

infrastructure assets over the lifecycle

CHAA

direction for the coming five years and

of the asset in the most cost-effective

Central Highlands Accelerate

is based on the outcomes and goals in

manner in order to provide a specified

Agribusiness

the Central Highlands 2022 Community

level of service.

CHACAC

AUDIT

Central Highlands Arts and Cultural

An examination of the records,

Advisory Committee

statements, systems and procedures of

CHBEA

an organisation together with its stated

Central Highlands Business Excellence

claims for performance.

Awards

BLACKSPOT PROGRAM

CHDC

An Australian Government initiative to

Central Highlands Development

reduce crashes on Australian roads.

Corporation. A not-for-profit

BMA

organisation that is the lead economic

C-RES

BHP Mitsubishi Alliance – the largest

and tourism development agency for

A cost neutral entity that delivers

coal producer and supplier of seaborne

the Central Highlands region.

the local buying program for all BHP

of engineering, financial and other
technical practices to the management
of infrastructure, costs, opportunities,
risks and performance.
ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN
A plan that combines technical
and financial techniques for the
management of one or more

metallurgical coal. Operates seven

Plan. It’s the tool we use to consider
the priority of projects and services and
balance their delivery with available
resources.
CQIP
Central Queensland Inland Port.
CQLGMA
Central Queensland Local Government
Management Association.

Minerals Australia assets nationwide.

Bowen Basin mines.
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CRG – COMMUNITY REFERENCE
GROUP
A group of community representatives
established in each of the region’s
thirteen townships under the Central
Highlands 2022 Community Plan.

LGIP

QRA

Local Government Infrastructure Plan.

Queensland Reconstruction Authority.

LGMA

R2R

Local Government Management

Roads to Recovery, an Australian

Association.

Government infrastructure
investment program.

The aim of these groups is to engage

NDRRA

with their communities and develop

National Disaster Relief and Recovery

RADF

individual action plans to advance their

Arrangements. A joint funding

Regional Arts Development Fund.

own communities as well as the Central

initiative of the Australian and state

Highlands.

governments to provide disaster

CUSTOMER SERVICE CHARTER
Outlines the principles and standards
relating to the services provided by
council staff.
ECM
Electronic content management.
EHP
Queensland Government’s Department

relief and recovery payments and
infrastructure restoration to help
communities recover from the effects
of natural disasters.
ONECOUNCIL
A software solution designed by
technologyone for local government.
OPERATIONAL PLAN

REMPLAN
A web-based tool providing detailed
demographic, economic and
community data for businesses and
community groups.
SES
State Emergency Service.
SME
Small to medium enterprise.

The operational plan is the detail of the

STAKEHOLDER

corporate plan. It shows what projects,

A person or organisation with an

services and activities are current for

interest in the outcome or output or is

E-NEWS

the financial year and the progress

affected by services, activities, policies,

Electronic newsletter.

of each as at the end of each quarter

services, programs, or strategies.

GIW

(three-month period).

TIDS

Great Inland Way.

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE

Transport Infrastructure Development

GOVERNANCE

Money spent on the ongoing costs of

Scheme.

The system by which council business

running council and its services.

TOTO

is controlled and directed, especially

OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION PLAN

Turn on Tech One – the project to

with regard to regulation of decision-

Evaluates existing council-managed

implement the One Council system

making procedures.

open space, sport and recreation

provided by technologyone.

INFRASTRUCTURE

facilities and provides a united vision

WOO

The physical and organisational

for future planning and development.

Whole of Organisation Day

structures and facilities (roads,

Under review.

buildings, water treatment plants)

PCYC

needed for the operation of Central

Police-Citizens Youth Club.

of Environment and Heritage
Protection.

Highlands’ communities.
LDCC
Local Disaster Coordination Centre.

WOW
Wheel of Wellbeing
YOUTHINC

PDA

Council’s youth development service

Priority development area.

based in Blackwater.

POLICY

LDMG

A statement formally adopted by

Local Disaster Management Group.

council or the chief executive officer

LGAQ

that describes the council’s position on

Local Government Association of

a particular issue.

Queensland.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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NAIDOC Week 2017 at Blackwater.
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Strong Vibrant
Communities
ACTIVE AND INCLUSIVE COMMUNITIES
SUPPORT DIVERSE COMMUNITIES
RESPECTING OUR CULTURES

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
PUBLIC ASSETS AND FACILITIES

LIBRARIES

COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
SPORT AND RECREATIONAL ENGAGEMENT
PARKS AND RECREATIONAL SERVICES

CEMETERIES
ARTS AND CULTURAL SERVICES
SPORT AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

YOUTH AND INDIGENOUS DEVELOPMENT

Summary of key activities
Provide and maintain accessible community

Lead active community planning and engagement by

services and facilities that meet the needs of our

encouraging community participation and input in to

diverse communities.

council’s decision-making.

Position the community at the heart of the
advocacy strategy.

Lead and influence community participation in healthy
and active lifestyles.

Preserve, maintain and provide access to our
region’s history.

Facilitate opportunities for learning, social activities,
community events, grants and funding programs.

Promote the heritage, arts and cultures of
our communities.

A visit to council by St Pat's school children.
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Highlights for 2017-18
Central Highlands Youth Week ran from 15 - 24 June 2018

Sport and recreation
Adopted the Game Plan – a plan for organised sport in the
Central Highlands.
Attained funding from the Queensland Footy Facilities
Fund to upgrade the change rooms and amenities at
McIndoe Park.

with nine events hosted in six communities attracting more
than 1500 young people and families.
In March 2018, the Central Highlands Youth Strategy 2018-

2023 was endorsed to increase youth development services
within all communities across the region.

Hosted the Commonwealth Games Queen’s Baton Relay that

Community development

went through seven towns across the Central Highlands in

As part of the Drought Communities Programme, community

March 2018.

activities and training were delivered across 13 communities

Held the 2018 Central Highlands Sports Forum and Sports

to strengthen the resilience of drought affected communities.

Awards Dinner with more than 100 people attending the

The activities enabled people to connect, develop skills

dinner and regional clubs improving their governance skills at

to enhance their wellbeing, and increase their capacity to

the annual Central Highlands Sports Forum.

support others, participate in volunteering and be active

Gained funding from the Get out Get Active women’s

members of the community.

program to deliver a 12-week program for fitness classes

Three initiatives were delivered with different partners: 14

across the region.

WoW workshops and activities were provided by Centacare
in 11 communities with a total of 280 participants.

Arts and culture
Successful, well-attended Arts in August 2017 activities.
The RADF saw 13 projects receive a total of $65 573.

UnitingCare Community delivered Lifeline ‘Counselling by
Chance’ workshops in three communities with 31 participants.
Committee governance workshops were provided by Leisa

The annual Central Highlands Art Awards attracted a range of

Donlan to develop new skills, plan and implement effective

entries and was well-attended.

governance procedures to encourage volunteering and 54

An action plan to support the creative cultural futures

people attended two, one-week blocks.

strategy was drafted.

Library Services

The Central Highlands Regional Council Advisory Committee
terms of reference was updated to reflect changes in
the program.

In partnership with the State Library of Queensland and
Telstra, the library service delivered 64 Tech Savvy Seniors
sessions to 388 participants in Blackwater, Capella, Emerald,

Youth development

Rolleston, Springsure and the Sapphire Gemfields.

Around 4800 youth and community members participated

Delivered 424 First 5 Forever events, programs and outreach

in youth program initiatives. This represents 87% of the total

sessions with 8794 participants across the region.

youth population in the region engaging in the program.

Robotics technology was distributed across all nine library

Initiatives included the regional student leader’s summit,

branches in the form of kits with scheduled rotations.

skate park workshops, Youth Week 2018, community

Results of the ‘Your Library, Your Say’ survey found 80%

engagements, movie nights, Youthinc committee meetings

of respondents rated library customer service as good or

and leadership development camps.

excellent, and 87% rated programs and services as important

The 2018 Student Leaders Summit was held in Springsure

or very important.

with around 205 students and teachers attending.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Indigenous development
NAIDOC Week 2017, there were eight events held with 770
participants in Blackwater, Capella and Emerald.
We were proud to support the Department of Education
and Training’s (Central Queensland Region) regional student
challenge conducted in Emerald in August 2017 involving
11 schools.

Outlook for 2018-19
Fulfilling the actions of the Game Plan, including improving
sporting infrastructure with budget secured for regional field,
electrical and water upgrades.
Going online with the Club Resource Hub.
Completion of the McIndoe Park amenities and change

We hosted two reconciliation workshops in October 2017
in Emerald and Blackwater with 37 participants, including

rooms that will help leverage high-level sporting events to
come to Emerald.

elders and representatives from the community, government

Completion of the sport and recreation facility audits for

and corporate sector.

sport and recreation program funding.

We celebrated National Reconciliation Week 2018 in May

International relationships will continue to flourish with the

with five events.

sister city exchange and partnership with Ichinoseki, Japan.

Approximately 22 women attended the Indigenous Women’s

A community development framework will be drafted and

Workshop in June 2018 in Blackwater. Participants travelled

presented to council for their feedback and endorsement

from Barcaldine, Woorabinda, Emerald and Blackwater.

before being implemented.

Challenges in 2017-18
Sport and recreation

The first-year plan of the youth strategy will be implemented
with support from two new community development officers.
The heritage management framework, Springsure Hospital
Museum conservation plan and creative cultural and

We formed a new sport and recreation team this year and it

heritage futures action plan will be presented to council for

was a huge task to make contact with more than 150 regional

their feedback before being endorsed and implemented.

sport and active recreation organisations.

Upgrades to the Emerald Art Gallery and Bauhinia

Community development

Bicentennial Art Gallery will improve our exhibition spaces.

Maintaining relationships and connections with communities

The library strategy and action plan will be presented

across the broad geographic area is an ongoing challenge

to council for its feedback before being endorsed and

for community development and engagement.

implemented.

Attracting volunteers to assist with community activities and

An upgrade to the library management system will see

events continues to be a challenge with the same group of

improvement in how our community engages with our

dedicated people always coming forward.

collection.

Drafting a large number of strategic documents to support

The reconciliation action plan will be presented to council for

the community engagement portfolio.

its feedback and endorsement before being presented to
Reconciliation Australia for its endorsement.
The community engagement policy will be presented
to council for its feedback before being endorsed and
implemented.
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Strategies, plans and policies
Central Highlands Youth Strategy 2018

Statistics and Trends
Community Grant Applications
Year

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Received

47

68

62

61

78

59

Successful

28

30

29

36

42

39

Library Services
Year

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

10 153

11 057

12 179

12 941

New members

1123

915

833

1046

Wi-fi use

3425

5381

3613

N/A

n/a

77 852

67 360

68 966

93 353

70 282

70 869

56 705

Attendees to programs

n/a

7869

15 985

3662

First 5 Forever attendees

n/a

n/a

5792

5378

Membership

Total collection
Total loans

Central Highlands Art Awards 2017.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Case Study

Have your Say website

In April 2018, we launched the Have Your Say,

We are now using Have your Say as an online

Central Highlands website. This community

option for community consultations that are held

engagement platform features a range of online

tri-annually across the region.

consultation tools designed to involve the
community with our decision-making process.
The library team were the first to use this industry-

This investment in technology encourages more
community members to have a say about matters
that affect them.

leading software with a library survey to help
them develop a strategic plan for a modern library
service.
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Staff profile

Karen Newman – Arts and Cultural Officer

My name is Karen Newman and I am the arts

Regional art awards are always something I enjoy

and cultural officer. I was born and bred in the

because they are such a great opportunity to

Central Highlands and started working for local

showcase artist’s talent from near and far.

government in 2007 as the Springsure library
manager. I’ve been in my current role since 2011.

Heritage has been a focus over the last year as
we adopted a heritage management framework

I enjoy working with community groups on arts,

and drafted a conservation management plan

cultural and heritage projects and events.

for our national and state heritage register-listed

I manage the RADF submissions for projects that

Springsure Hospital Museum.

enhance the region’s arts, cultural and heritage

I feel privileged to be involved in planning

development.

and supporting significant milestone events

The CHACAC administration and project delivery
is another part of my role, along with annual
community development workshops and assisting

within the community because they add value
to the liveability, and economic and aesthetic
development of the Central Highlands.

the regional galleries.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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NAIDOC Week 2017.

Performance Report – Key Priority 1 – Strong Vibrant Communities
Key Performance Indicators

COMPLETED

Strong diverse communities
Develop a regional youth
action plan.

Respecting our cultures
Complete audit of local history
collections.
Complete heritage
management plan.

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Continue to implement the

Creative Cultural Futures
Strategy 2016-2026.
Deliver the RADF program.

Active and inclusive
communities
Review Central Highlands

NOT PROCEEDING

Deliver community programs
and events.
Promote awareness of key
social influences through events.
Enhance library services and
visitation.
Deliver First 5 Forever program.

community plan.
Deliver CRG roadshow.

Strong diverse communities
Make information directory
available in the region.
Adopt a liveability strategy.
Implement actions from a
liveability strategy.

Identify community issues for
advocacy.

Respecting our cultures
Develop conservation
management plan for

Develop draft reconciliation
action plan.

Active and inclusive
communities
Create libraries action plan.

Springsure Hospital Museum.

Nil
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Building and Maintaining
Quality Infrastructure
WELL-PLANNED AND CONNECTED COMMUNITIES
AFFORDABLE AND WELL-SERVICED INFRASTRUCTURE

Bitumen resealing in Emerald.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
TECHNICAL SERVICES

PROJECT DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT

DEPOTS AND WORKSHOPS OPERATIONS

WATER UTILITIES

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

Summary of key activities
Develop and implement a robust infrastructure plan
through effective long-term asset management practices.
Implement an effective open space and recreational plan.
Implement a decision-making framework for the
prioritisation of shovel-ready projects.
Plan and deliver essential infrastructure that supports a
sustainable future.

Develop efficiencies in water and wastewater operations.
Develop a roads and transport strategy to ensure the
efficient and effective use of resources.
Deliver waste, recycling and re-use strategies across
the region.
Implement energy efficient practices for assets
and facilities.

Develop a strategy for our land and property assets.

Springwood Road at Rolleston.
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Highlights for 2017-18

Challenges for 2017-18

Technical services

Loss of key staff in the technical services team.

The Capricorn Highway and Bonnie Doon Road intersection
upgrade as part of the CQIP development. Design was
completed and all outstanding matters relating to statutory
approvals with Department Transport Main Roads (TMR) and

Delay in the CQIP project because of external planning,
funding and legal issues.
Retention and recruitment of office and field staff to
deliver of capital and maintenance programs.
Delivery of NDRRA restoration works from Tropical

Aurizon were resolved.

Cyclone Debbie with day labour in addition to capital and

Infrastructure services

maintenance programs.

Successfully delivered $4.7 million (of the $42.5 million
program) in flood restoration works on the council road
network under NDRRA using day labour and contract
delivery and working proactively with the QRA to finalise the
remaining program.

Unexpected delays in projects due to unforeseen cultural
heritage, environmental and wet weather impacts.
Retention and recruitment of water treatment and
network staff.

Completed the TMR-funded pave and seal project on Fitzroy
Developmental Road (Taroom - Bauhinia).
Constructed two new bridges on the Carnarvon National
Park Access Road, complementing the 14 kilometres of new
sealed road completed last year.
Commenced construction of the Springwood Road
realignment project, which is a major private works project
including two new bridges and 10 kilometres of new road
formation.
Completed $2.5 million of projects under the TIDS;
$3.1 million R2R; and $1.5 million BOR.

Water Utilities
Completed an effluent disinfection system at the Park
Avenue sewage treatment plant in Emerald that achieves an
improved environmental outcome with the irrigated recycled
water and compliance with our environmental authority.
A pressure booster pump system was installed for the water
supply to Rolleston. The project was undertaken with the
assistance of the Queensland Government through the
Works for Queensland program.
The construction of the Black Gully wastewater treatment
plant upgrade commenced.
The first external audit of the drinking water quality
management plans was undertaken.

Carnarvon Gorge Road sealing was completed in 2018.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Outlook for 2018-19

Waste and recycling
(consistent data unavailable prior to 2016-17)

Implementing an outsourced project management office
model to improve capital works project planning, design
and delivery of significant council contracts.
The remaining NDRRA flood restoration works to be

Households with kerbside waste
collection service
Year

completed with a focus on combining restoration with

2016-17

2017-18

9742

9572

Number of households

maintenance to achieve value for money. Delivery will
be via hybrid crews incorporating council day labour and
local contractors.

Waste Services statistics (tonnes)
Year

Continue the collaboration with neighbouring councils

2016-17

2017-18

towards a regional model for the operation and

Waste to landfill

9199

12 590

maintenance of early-warning flood monitoring systems.

Waste received through transfer

3408

3787

2391

565

10 898

11 294

1359

1298

stations

Strategies, plans and policies

Green waste received
Commercial and industrial waste

Three-year capital works plan.

received
Kerbside recycling

Statistics and trends

Community Housing

Water consumption 2017-18
Total water
Location

consumption
(kL)

OCCUPANCY RATES
Usage

(L/P/D)

Population

70%

Anakie

27 830

778

98

Bauhinia

15 763

1727

25

1 546 323

847

5004

Blackwater/

90%
80%

Bluff

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

Capella

332 783

901

1012

Comet

30 699

550

153

Dingo

23 399

317

202

Duaringa

133 957

1911

192

Emerald

3 722 788

726

14 047

Rolleston

31 337

308

279

Sapphire/

221 438

500

1214

Springsure

265 790

839

868

Tieri

513 909

1248

1128

10%
0%
2015

2016

2017

Staﬀ Housing

66%

78%

83%

Community Housing

83%

71%

85%

Rubyvale
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Springwood Road at Rolleston.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Case Study

Blackwater Sewage Treatment Plan Irrigation upgrade

The area of land under irrigation for land disposal

The $2.3 million second stage of the project is

of recycled water from the Blackwater sewage

jointly funded by the Queensland Government’s

treatment plant was significantly expanded

Building our Regions program.

this year.

Commissioning of the system was undertaken

The project developed new areas for irrigation

in June 2018.

at the plant behind the Hunter Street sports
complex and around the Blackwater golf course,
which enabled the plant to comply with legislative
requirements.
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Staff profile

Josh Adams – treatment supervisor

I’m Josh Adams, the treatment supervisor for

Some challenges faced are rain events that

water utilities. Along with the supervision of our

change the water quality and treatment, which can

skilled and capable team of 16 operators, my role

fluctuate hourly.

incudes the day-to-day oversight of 19 water and
waste water treatment plants throughout 13 towns
in the region.

The vast local government area causes a
challenge and there is a need to rely on vigilant
operators to continuously monitor and report the

My team ensures that we meet our customer
service standards and enable compliance with
both the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines and
our environmental duty of care.

situation.
I encourage my team to be accountable, which
gives them a sense of ownership in their job.
They take pride in their roles and that improves

My role is a mix of proactive and reactive firstresponse to compliance, safety and continuous
improvement issues identified by operators and
management.

workplace morale and productivity.
Highlights for us this year include many
operational projects such as; flow-paced chlorine
disinfection systems installed in Tieri and Capella

I enjoy the challenge of this position and rely on

water treatment plants and the Blackwater

my 21 years’ experience in the water industry

Irrigation upgrade to manage waste water effluent

to help.

from the treatment plant.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Performance Report – Key Priority Area 2 –
Building and Maintaining Quality Infrastructure
Key Performance Indicators

COMPLETED

Well-planned and
connected communities
Identify shovel-ready projects
for immediate delivery.
Implement an effective open
space and recreational plan.

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Plan and deliver essential
infrastructure that supports
a sustainable future.
Advocate for regional transport
infrastructure.
Assess essential infrastructure

NOT PROCEEDING

Develop a roads and
transport, and flood
mitigation strategy ensuring
the efficient and effective
use of resources.
Resource plan to optimise

Adopt the Game Plan.

for maintenance, upgrades and

service delivery in roads and

Implement a decisionmaking framework for the
prioritisation of shovelready projects.

renewal.

transport.

Establish a prioritisation process
for projects at initiation stage.
Adopt forward capital
works plans.

Achieve 90% of capital works
program.
Infrastructure charges
framework supports future
investment plans.
LGIP is current.

Develop a strategy for our
land and property assets.
Develop a facilities, buildings
and other assets hierarchy.

Optimise opportunities to
collaborate on flood mitigation
resourcing.

Deliver waste, recycling and
re-use strategies across the
region
Upgrade Rubyvale/Sapphire
and Rolleston transfer stations.

Implement energy efficient
practices for our assets and
facilities
Upgrade Emerald office to solar.
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Borilla St roundabout under construction.

Well-planned and
connected communities

Develop a strategy for our
land and property assets.

Align capital works programs

Establish a retention and

with asset management plans.
Implement an effective open
space and recreational plan.
Adopt bikeway and pathway
strategic plan.

Plan and deliver essential
infrastructure that supports
a sustainable future.
Ensure compliance with
environmental authorities
for water and wastewater
infrastructure.

disposal plan for under-utilised
assets.
Adopt a regional housing
strategy.

Deliver waste, recycling and
re-use strategies across the
region
Deliver capital works program
for waste services.
Implement waste recycling and
re-use strategies.

Develop efficiencies in
water and wastewater
operations

Implement energy efficient
practices for our assets and
facilities

Deliver efficiency dividends on

Complete an energy audit of

endorsed action plans.
Establish sustainable effluent

council buildings and facilities to
identify savings.

re-use for regional
communities.

Nil

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Supporting Our
Local Economy
CENTRAL HIGHLANDS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
FACILITATE INVESTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES
SUPPORT LOCAL BUSINESS AND EMERGING INDUSTRIES

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Highlights in 2017-18
After celebrating 20 years of service, CHDC has grown

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Summary of key activities
Support CHDC to facilitate networks and

into one of the most pre-eminent economic development
units in the nation through the organisation’s proactive
and innovative approach to building capacity, skills and
opportunity for the Central Highlands.
The 2017-18 financial year can be described as one of
progress and achievement for CHDC as it worked to put
comprehensive regional planning into action.

partnerships between local business, industry groups

It marked the start of implementation of the 2017-2022 Action

and government.

Plan, a five-year direction to guide CHDC, the council and

Promote the Central Highlands as a region for
tourism and development opportunities.
Encourage a diverse supply of housing affordability
Advocate and support the development of the
Central Highlands as a regional hub.
Facilitate opportunities for existing businesses and
emerging industries to consolidate and grow.
Continue a ‘local buy’ strategy for council business to
support local communities.

CHDC Board
June 2018

Highlands Economic Masterplan (CHEMP).
Among a considerable list of accomplishments this financial
year, CHDC has worked proactively to:

and choices.

July 2017 –

other partners towards the 30-year aspirations of the Central

Engage more than 1000 guests at various CHDC
held events.
Conduct more than 640 SME visits.
Deliver more than 950 hours of tourism operator support.
Attract more than $769 000 in funding.
Welcome more than 34 000 visitors through the visitor
information centre.

Councillor Kerry Hayes (Chair)
Mr Scott Mason (Secretary)
Councillor Megan Daniels
Councillor Christine Rolfe

Partner with more than 40 businesses to deliver programs
and events.
Reach more than 67 000 people for its Central Highlands
Agriculture – More Than You Expect! video showcase.

The 6 CHDC Goals

Central Highlands Business Excellence
Awards Gala Dinner

1. Advocate for sustainable regional and

In October 2017, CHDC hosted the biennial Central Highlands
Business Excellence Awards Gala Dinner, concluding the

economic growth.
2. Proactively market and promote the Central
Highlands as a ‘region of choice’.
3. Enhance workforce development.
4. Support business development, innovation
and capacity.

year-long CHBEA workshop program. The third iteration
of the event, we welcomed more than 240 local business,
government and industry representatives, key stakeholders
and special guests to Emerald to recognise and celebrate
the important contribution that the vibrant business
community makes to our region.

5. Support community organisations to develop skills
and knowledge.
6. Sustain, refresh and grow our organisation.

A record year for applications saw close to 60 businesses
recognised across 11 categories, with 5000 votes received
for the People’s Choice Award. For the first time, CHDC’s Hall
of Fame Award was announced, with outstanding business
H.E.M.E. picking up honours.
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Our full list of winners:

Collaboration & Innovation
In late 2017, CHDC was successful in securing $500 000 over

Award

Business

Emerging Business of the

Sandstone Park Carnarvon

Year Award

Gorge

Hospitality Services Award

Fair Dinkum Meats

Manufacturing and Industry

H.E.M.E.

Collective, ARIP will help address gaps in the innovation
ecosystem with a focus on identifying tools and resources

GeoRadar

that can assist the business community.
Fair Dinkum Meats

Emerald Land and Cattle
Company (Livestock)

Tourism Award

Training, Knowledge and

In less than twelve months, the program has already
helped deliver a range of innovation events and activations,

Services Award
Agribusiness Award

Delivered in partnership with Central Highlands Regional
Council, BMA, C-Res, CQUniversity and Rural Business

Award
Retail and Lifestyle

grow and promote entrepreneurship and innovation across
the Fitzroy region.

Award
Professional Services

three years as part of Advance Queensland’s ARIP to help

Miners Heritage Walk in

including:
Central Highlands Digital & Telecommunications Audit &
Action Plan (DTAAP)

Mine

AgTeCH17: Build It, Use It, Profit

4T Consultants

Economic Futures Forum
CHAA Roadshow

Development Award

Paddock to Port supply chain tour

Young Business Leader of

Emerald Land and Cattle

the Year Award

Company (Livestock)

People’s Choice Award

New Beginnings Personal

across the region were selected to represent Fitzroy at the

Training

international innovation and tech forum, Myriad Festival.

CHDC Business of the Year

H.E.M.E.

CHRC Hall of Fame Award

H.E.M.E.

As part of CHDC’s ARIP deliverables, ten businesses from

More Than You Expect: Agribusiness Video
In August 2017, CHDC launched the region’s first holistic
agribusiness showcase with the video Central Highlands:

Central Highlands Economic Masterplan &
Agribusiness Capability Statement

producers, growers, researchers and supply chain enablers,

Two critical documents were launched to underpin the

the video proudly displayed the region’s exceptional breadth

strategic movement and growth of the region: the Central

of industry and profiled a snapshot of high-profile businesses.

Highlands Economic Masterplan and the Agribusiness
Capability Statement.

More Than You Expect. Featuring more than 15 local

The short documentary was produced in collaboration with
the Department of Agriculture and Fisheries as part of a

The CHEMP contains 36 action items over four distinct
economic pillars to form a 30-year strategy for the region
that will see the Central Highlands move forward with
purpose and vision.

powerful funding partnership totalling more than $100 000.
Since its release, the video has had more than 29,000 views
on Facebook and a further 5 300 on YouTube, reaching more
than 67 000 people.

The Agribusiness Capability Statement delivered in
partnership with the Department of Agriculture & Fisheries
and the Central Highlands Regional Council provides an upto-date profile of the region and its agricultural activity.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Outlook for 2018-19
Using the CHEMP as the region’s foundational economic

A new tourism marketing strategy will take a broader and

development document, activities to be delivered during the

more proactive approach by establishing three working

next financial year include:

groups to forge a stronger link between activities by CHDC

The region’s first innovation audit, to understand, identify
and optimise the region’s innovation ecosystem including
opportunities for synergy with neighbouring regions and
areas for growth and expansion.
The second business confidence survey to analyse trends in
SME attitudes across all industry sectors for both short and
long-term confidence in the region’s economic opportunities.
Exploration of transformation infrastructure that supports
development and growth of local industry, including the
Airport AirHub Masterplan, the meat processing plant and
the entertainment and evacuation centre, underpinned
by the ongoing collation and distribution of the Central
Highlands development register.
More than 12 events are planned for the upcoming calendar

and the industry. The aims of the strategy will be to improve
operator and product readiness; boost visitor attraction to the
region; and develop a consistent message and marketing.
CHDC will continue to ensure local businesses are
capable, vibrant and skilled for the next wave of jobs and
opportunities within our region and beyond. A business
development and investment attraction manager will lead
a new team comprising of several key roles, supported by
more than $1.3 million of successful funding applications.
This includes:
A three-year, $516 000 funding commitment from the Local
Buying Foundation to appoint a business facilitator who will
deliver targeted, one-on-one support program for SMEs
across the region.
A two-year, $350 000 funding arrangement from the

year including:
HACKCQ, September 2018: Central Queensland’s firstever hackathon to support entrepreneurship and the
establishment of new, high-growth businesses.
Export Ready Incubator, September 2018: a multi-level,
10-month incubator program to assist 20 exporters at
every stage of their development, included start-ups,
from pre-export to expanding into new markets.
Meet the Food Innovators Forum, November 2018: Peter
Lewis will host an interactive forum designed to connect,

Department of Small Business, Education and Training
(DSBET) to appoint a skills development coordinator who
will look at core and critical gaps in the region’s existing
workforce with a focus on VET education, future jobs and
industry growth.
A three-year, $500 000 funding arrangement with Advance
Queensland to appoint a regional innovation coordinator as
part of the ARIP, delivered in partnership with the council,
CQUniversity, BMA, C-Res and Rural Business Collective.

educate, transform and stimulate investment in primary
and secondary processing and food retail sectors.
Central Highlands Business Excellence Awards program,
from February 2019: the fourth iteration of the CHBEA will
see workshops facilitated across the region to improve
business sustainability and capability.
Three industry forums, from July 2018: A range of
targeted, SME-focused industry forums designed to
educate local businesses on movements in industry
and commercial opportunities and grow capability and
connections.
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Statistics and trends
Tourism
$220 million contribution to the economy, down 4% from
2016-17.
7.3% of the region’s total employment, making it the third
largest industry with more than 1200 FTE jobs.
Length of stay steady at four nights, with an estimated
spend of $113 per day (domestic visitors).
 6000 visitors for Gemfest, up 50% from 2016.
34 137 customers in the visitor Information centre, down
3.5% from 2016-17.

Development Register (March 2017 edition)
$7.1 billion conservative estimate of current projects
within the region
Over 3000 construction roles for planned mining
developments, supported by an additional 2700
operational jobs
Estimated spend on completed projects increased by
155% from $40 million (March 2017) to $104.5 million
(July 2017).

Agriculture
1.37 million head of cattle in the region, largest herd size
by local government area in Australia
$540 million value of beef production
$103 million value of broadacre cropping production
140 000 ha of desi chickpea crop, contributing 30% of
Queensland’s exports in 2015-16
15% of the national mungbean crop, worth $22 million
$58 million value of cotton lint production, with
8.9 bales/ha
$40 million value of citrus production
4000 tonnes of seedless watermelon
68% of produce is exported.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Case Study

AgTeCH17

CHDC held the inaugural AgTeCH17: Build it,

The AgTeCH17 full day forum focused on early

Use it, Profit on 8 November 2017 in Emerald –

stage and commercial applications of automation

encouraging farmers to consider how they use

(robotics and drones), Big Data and precision

new agricultural technologies to increase business

agriculture. Facilitated by renowned journalist

profitability and productivity.

Peter Lewis, the panel presenters covered a

Approximately 240 people from across Australia
attended the sold-out event, which was supported
by more than 20 trade, business and platinum
sponsors including the Central Highlands Regional
Council, GrainGrowers, the Department of

range of commodities, backgrounds and skill sets.
Break-out small group conversations across a
range of topics at the end of the day facilitated
the dual purpose of networking and learning with
likeminded participants.

Agriculture and Fisheries, and Telstra. The event

In light if AgTeCH17’s success, the Mungindi

was a necessity for producers, consultants and

Cropping Group hosted its own AgTeCH18 using

industry members with an interest in automation,

the same format in cooperation with CHDC on

data-enabled and precision agriculture, those

21 March 2018. It was also a sell-out with more

who want to see commercial applications in the

than 280 attendees. This signature event will

field or those interested in finding out more about

continue to be held in Emerald and Mungindi on

all things agricultural technology from some of

alternate years.

the leading minds in agriculture, machinery and
technology.
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Central Highlands (Qld) Housing Company Limited
The Central Highlands (Qld) Housing Company Limited

CHQHC Board

(CHQHC) is a not-for-profit organisation established to

Councillor Kerry Hayes (Chair)

provide a local response to critical housing needs in our
region. Its activities are strategically focused and seek to

Councillor Paul Bell AM

promote better access to housing in the Central Highlands.

Councillor Megan Daniels

The company targets low to moderate income households,

Councillor Gail Nixon

including key workers such as childcare workers, mechanics,

July 2017 –

hospitality staff, retail workers, teachers, and nurses or

June 2018

health workers.

Scott Mason

It is limited by guarantee, was registered in 2012 and was

Neil Peacey

initially coordinated in close consultation with legal advisors

Pat Lyons

observing corporate and commercial law requirements. The

Lisa Caffrey (resigned – position

council plays a role in the governance of the company by

currently vacant)

board membership and meets on a quarterly basis.

Our Vision

Our Principles

Shaping local housing solutions for the Central Highlands.

collaborative
innovative

Our Mission

solution focused

We will influence the supply and diversity of housing in
our region.

practical
proactive

We will support a range of flexible strategies providing real
housing opportunities and choice.

future driven

Our Objectives
The objectives of the company are:
To pursue innovative housing solutions responding to
local needs.
To coordinate a response to housing issues in our region.
To form inventive and mutually beneficial linkages and
partnerships with key stakeholders.
To build a strong, sustainable and effective housing
company.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Highlights of 2017-18
Occupancy rate is sitting at 100% with all 12 properties tenanted.
Fact sheet developed, allowing distribution through different networks within the Blackwater community.
Information about the company uploaded to the council website.

Challenges of 2017-18
Resignation of independent director in December 2017. Loss of a very experienced, knowledgeable community member. The
success of the CHQHC relies on the right group of people; therefore, the board seeks individuals due to their background,
skills and experience and how the addition of an individual builds the collective capability and effective functioning of the
company.
An offer for independent directorship has been forwarded to a member of our community.
Increasing the supply of affordable and appropriate housing throughout our region. At present, our affordable housing is only
available in Blackwater.

Outlook for 2018-19
Engagement of suitably qualified and experienced organisation or consultant to review the Strategic Action Plan 2015-2018
and assist the company to move forward in line with its mission and vision.

Performance Report – Key Priority Area 3 – Supporting our Local Economy
Key Performance Indicators

COMPLETED

Facilitate investment and
employment opportunities
Facilitate opportunities for
business through industry

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Develop scholarship program.
Review and enhance the
economic development
incentive framework.
Advocate housing choice

engagement.
Support investment enquiries,
trade missions and delegations.
Increase visitations and tourist

through the Central Highlands
(Qld) Housing Company.
Lobby government to recognise
Emerald as a sub-regional hub

numbers.
Develop partnerships with

for services.

NOT PROCEEDING

Support local business and
emerging industries.
Provide funding to CHDC for
business and industry support.
Increase business listings in the
business directory.
Local buy policy revised and
updated.
Report to council monthly on
local spend.

agricultural industry to increase
awareness of workplace health
and safety.

Facilitate investment and employment opportunities
Revise the Central Highlands marketing strategy.
Adopt an events strategy.
Nil
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Protecting Our People
and Our Environment
WELL-MANAGED AND PROTECTED COMMUNITIES
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Combatting the hymenachne outbreak on the Nogoa River in Emerald.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
TOWN PLANNING

DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT

BUILDING AND PLUMBING SERVICES
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
EMERGENCY SERVICES

RANGER SERVICES

STRATEGIC LAND USE AND PLANNING

DISASTER MANAGEMENT
FLOOD MITIGATION PROJECT

Summary of key activities
Ensure the region’s sustainability through integrated,
well-planned development.
Employ efficient development planning processes and
practices.

Promote community safety and wellbeing.
Collaborate with stakeholders to manage the built and
natural environment.
Ensure an effective regulatory role through education and

Implement initiatives for flood mitigation and to plan,

enforcement.

prepare, respond, recover and build resilience from
disasters for the communities of our region.

Waste services at Lochlees landfill site in Emerald.
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Highlights of 2017-18
Town planning

Challenges in 2017-18

Commencement of the Planning Act 2016.

All service areas in this key priority area

Five applications for solar farms were decided by the
development assessment team.
The planning team made submissions to the Queensland Solar

Farm Guidelines, the Draft Social Impact Assessment Guideline
– Strong and Sustainable Communities, and the Queensland
Mountain Bike Strategy.

experienced challenges in recruitment and
retention in 2017-18.

Planning and Development
The absence of strategic planners has
delayed the completion of the liveability
strategy and has reduced the teams’
capacity to provide timely strategic advice to

Building and plumbing services

stakeholders. The challenge for the team has

The plumbing team made a submission to the Queensland

Plumbing and Drainage Bill 2018.

been to progress the strategic documents
without the continuity of knowledge.

The building team has conducted a first pass audit of all
buildings in the Central Highlands region in association with
Queensland’s Non-Conforming Building Materials Audit
Taskforce. The audit identified buildings that might contain nonconforming building materials.

The transition to the Turn on technologyone
(TOTO) project has stretched resources,
but this has been minimised due to good
planning on behalf of the TOTO team. The
department is excited by the efficiencies that

Environmental Services

the roll-out of new technology will bring.

Highly successful Clean Up Australia Day event in Emerald on

Environmental Services

2 March 2018.

Response to the downturn in the Australian

Construction of the Sapphire Rubyvale Transfer Station.

recycling market.

Anti-litter fencing completed at Blackwater Landfill to

Queensland Government announcement of a

improve our environmental compliance and reduce animals
wandering onsite.
Creation of a resource recovery role to drive significant waste
projects.
Successful management for water and food safety activities at
the Emerald Show, Eat Street Market, Ag-Grow and local rodeos.
Major food-borne outbreak contained at the Emerald Town Hall
in January 2018.

waste levy.
LGAQ announcement of zero waste to landfill
by 2028 target.

Ranger Services
Reaching an agreement for structure and
governance of the Rubyvale Miners Common
Committee. Resolved with communication
and consultation over time.

Ranger Services
Collaboration with Duaringa community and state government
for successful flying fox dispersal.
Nogoa November event to combat the hymenachne outbreak
on the Nogoa River in Emerald. Received two grants to upgrade
our water facilities on stock routes.
Rangers completed a stock route water facility audit.
Positive feedback from schools on rangers’ participation in the
PetPep program for responsible pet ownership education.

Disaster Management
A report on the disaster management activities can be found on
page 34.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Outlook for 2018-19

Statistics and trends

Development and Planning

Ranger Services

The development and planning team are looking forward

Complaints

to finalising:
Planning Scheme Amendments - completing proposed

Type

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

amendments to the Central Highlands Regional Council

Attack – animal

109

89

58

Planning Scheme 2016.

Dog registration issues

209

330

74

Completion of the liveability strategy.

Overgrown unsightly

398

519

266

Completing zone card fact sheets to provide guidance

allotments
816

697

1486

to customers on the uses within each of the current
planning schemes zones.

Wandering stray or
nuisance animals

Completing the standardised conditions that have been
tested in terms of legal validity.

Impounded animals
2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

85

115

186

Released to owner

180

310

320

Euthanized

126

100

118

Environmental Services
Become waste levy ready.
Community education on waste and recycling program
roll-out to leverage the successful ABC television’s War

Adopted

on Waste program.
Supporting the Queensland Government’s container
refund scheme introduction.
Renewing contracts for kerbside collection and recycling
services.

Ranger Services
Community education of flying fox management.
Developing a roaming cat strategy and
management plan.
Completing an annual inspection program to focus on
responsible pet ownership and local law compliance.

Environment Services – statistics 2017-18
Licensed food premises inspected.
Licensed Premises (fixed and mobile).

219

Routine inspections.

223

Follow-up inspections.

8

Improvement notices issued.

1

Complaints received.

6

Complaint inspections performed.

10

Surrender of licences.

10

Strategies, plans and policies

Temporary caterer’s permits (assessed and

Regional Economic Development Incentive Policy (REDI)

Market stall licences (assessed and

Local Government Infrastructure Plan (LGIP)
Temporary Local Planning Instrument (TLPI) 01/2017
(Material Change of Use – Renewable energy facilities in

100

approved).
6

approved).
Event food inspections (Emerald Show,
Ag-Grow and Gemfest).

irrigation areas)
Amendment to the flying fox management plan.
Biosecurity Plan 2017-2020 adoption.
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Case Study

Early flood warning network

The flood warning network is an essential part of

associated with the telephone outage that often

our disaster mitigation program.

happens during severe weather events.

There are many rural homesteads and small

Last year, we finalised a flood warning network

townships on the floodplain and, in times of severe

investment plan with the Queensland and

weather, people and property is in danger of flood.

Australian governments that provides a funding

To improve our resilience and confidence to
prepare for flood events we have a network of
flood warning rain and river height gauges.
In 2008, we had just seven automated rain
gauges. Now we are the proud owner of 57 flood
ALERT gauges (23 rain, 31 rain/river and 3 river).
These complement 18 other flood ALERT gauges
installed by the Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) and
the Emerald radar.

commitment to enable us to develop our flood
warning network to its full capacity over the next
few years.
Already, our flood warning network is recognised
as one of the most comprehensive within
Queensland because it provides near-real-time
rainfall and river height information on the BOM
website for anyone to see. This information is also
essential for the BOM to use in its forecasting,
and for emergency and disaster management

The ALERT network communicates using

planning and response.

dedicated VHF radio, which overcomes issues

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Staff profile

Michelle Doughty – Ranger

I’m Michelle Doughty, a ranger from the

Rangers get the second highest number of

Emerald office.

enquiries from the public daily. We can get more

I started with council in February 2017 as a trainee

than 150 jobs per month.

and was fortunate to obtain a full-time position

The most challenging part of my role is conflict

in the ranger services team after completing

resolution and obtaining compliance.

my Certificate III in Conservation and Land
Management.

The achievement I am most proud of this year
was being part of the Nogoa River hymenachne

This was not by accident, it was a career path I

weed control program that involved many hours

actively pursued because I’m passionate about

spraying from a boat up and down the river,

conservation and land management.

planning, mapping areas, and observing progress.

The team progresses and maintains positive
relationships between council and the community,
while we promote responsible pet ownership in
accordance with legislative requirements.
I feel I give back to my community in many ways
through my work: I provide customer service to

Seeing progress and preventing infestations in
the region and surrounding areas was a great
satisfaction.
I also won the Bob Marshman Trainee of the Year
award for Central Queensland this year, which is
another fantastic achievement.

people, and I help preserve and manage areas of
significance for future generations.
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Performance Report – Key Priority Area 4 –
Protecting our People and our Environment
Key Performance Indicators

COMPLETED

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Well-managed and
protected communities.

Comply with Inspector General

Manage natural hazards and

Establish local community

protect natural environment and
heritage.
Manage planning scheme LGIP
and PDA plans.
Implement planning scheme.
Comply with development
process timeframes.
Make consistent planning

Emergency Management audit.
support groups and networks.
Promote WoW workshops
throughout the region.

Environmental sustainability.
Implement Stock Route Network

Management Plan 2015-2020.

NOT PROCEEDING

Ensure developments comply
with legislation.
Respond to compliance
complaints for development and
planning, and ranger services.
Deliver education and
enforcement programs for
environmental health, waste
services and ranger services
compliance.

Improve asbestos management
in the workplace.

scheme and policy decisions.

Well-managed and
protected communities.

Deliver a food licence inspection

Adopt MOU with regional

Environmental sustainability.

councils to improve earlywarning flood monitoring
system. Adopt evacuation plans.

program.

Map pest animals and weeds
targeted for control programs.

program for pest management.
Develop a flying fox biodiversity
area plan for Duaringa.
Develop and adopt a hazards
risk register/plan.

Implement strategy and control

Nil

Feral cat management.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Staff members Aidan Arnold and Lisa Conway using one of council's Microsoft Surface Hubs.
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Leadership and
Governance
LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNICATION
ADVOCATE FOR THE REGION
ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTEGRITY
FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
GOVERNANCE

INFORMATION SERVICES

PROCUREMENT

ASSET MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL SERVICES

RECORDS MANAGEMENT

SAFETY

RISK MANAGEMENT

Summary of key activities
Clearly define the functions, services, roles and
responsibilities of council.
Practice effective internal and external communication.
Advocate for improved services and infrastructure.
Advocate for secure and sustainable water supplies for

Maintain high standards of corporate governance.
Ensure transparency and accountability through
integrated performance management reporting.
Ensure the long-term financial sustainability of the region
through prudent financial management and budgeting.

the region.

Highlights of 2017-18
Corporate Communications

Launch of the Gemfields Interpretive Trail.

The corporate communications team rolled out the regional

Whole of Organisation Day celebrations.

communications strategy actions this year to ensure the

Garage Sale Trail.

communities across the region were kept up-to-date with

Attendance at LGAQ Media and Communications Forum

the decisions, activities, news and views of their local council.
A variety of different channels are used to deliver information

and Social Media for Government conference.
Western Queensland Local Government Association
conference.

that include:
CQ News – media releases and advertising

Light Up Your Town Christmas celebration.

community newsletters

Change management capacity building through the
TOTO project.

mail-box drops
email newsletter

Governance

website

This year we conducted a periodic review of council’s

social media – Facebook, Twitter and Instagram.
Highlights throughout the year include:
Publication of the 2016-17 Annual Report.
Commonwealth Games Queen’s Baton Relay
celebrations.

enterprise risk management framework, risk management
policy and strategic risk register in accordance with ISO
31000:2009 Risk Management – Principles and Guidelines.
A strategic risk register was developed that documents
identified risks and assigns them to members of the
executive leadership team for mitigation action.

Brand refresh and logo adopted by council.
Establishment of the gratitude wall for internal
communications.
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Emerald hosted the 2018 Western Local Government Association of Qld conference.

Financial Services

Information Management

Proactive debt management saw the reduction in trade and

Championing information management practices and

other receivables, including amounts owed for rates and

procedures as part of the TOTO initiative.

utility charges.

Commencing works on the transition of our ECM to the cloud

Long-term financial planning linking to long-term asset
management plans.
Monthly reporting to council of financial performance against
budget along with quarterly reviews of budget forecasts.
Regular monitoring of budget performance with monthly
reports provided to managers along with detailed analysis of
key risk areas.

as part of the TOTO project.

Insurance
In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, S107, the
council has insurance in place for public liability, professional
indemnity and WorkCover.
Councillors are covered under relevant council insurance
policies while discharging civic duties. Insurance cover
will be provided for public liability, professional indemnity,

Procurement
Local preference policy reviewed and amended to increase
local weighting to 15%.

councillor’s liability and personal accident.
We will pay the excess for injury claims made by a councillor

Update of APET 360 Central Supplier Register when
awarding tenders to show price of winning tenderer.
Presentations with CHDC on local procurement spend.

resulting from the conduct of official council business and on
any claim made under insurance cover.
We will cover costs incurred through injury, investigation,
hearings or legal proceedings into the conduct of a councillor

Total of local spend for 2017-2018 being $45 419,368 or 40%.

or arising out of (or in connection with) the councillor’s

Procurement policy changed to reflect usage of contractors

performance of his/her civic functions.

and suppliers from outside the region.

If it is found the councillor breached the provisions of the

Local Government Act 2009, the councillor will reimburse us

Asset Management

with all associated costs incurred by council.

Major revision and update of asset management plans.

Information Services

Council also has in place additional insurance cover that are
relevant to council activities and duties.

Delivery of project millstones of the TOTO project.
Implementation of Microsoft’s Windows 10.
Introduction of Microsoft’s Office 365.
Completion of the new Information Communication and
Technology (ICT) Services Catalogue.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Challenges of 2017-18

Outlook for 2018-19

Corporate Communications

Corporate Communications

Continuous changes to Facebook that impact the

Several projects are on the agenda for corporate

effectiveness of local government’s use of this social media.

communications in 2018-19, including an internal

Providing meaningful reporting on the effectiveness of social
media.

communications strategy, a corporate website content
audit and update, support for the transformational change
projects, the addition of an events management resource,

Changing the culture of the organisation to be mindful of

and the consolidation of procedures and processes to aid

promotional or news opportunities from day-to-day activities

succession planning.

and projects.

Financial Services

Financial Services

Broader information reporting capabilities from the

The distraction factor of maintaining business-as-usual while
having staff offline working on the TOTO project.
Maintaining a balanced budget in the face of competing
demands for expanding operational and capital works
programs.

introduction of OneCouncil.
Streamlined management reporting and better
predictive analysis.
Automation of banking processes for system payments to
reduce the risk of fraud.

Ensuring decision makers have the information required to
inform them of all the issues prior to committing to a course
of action.

Ongoing review of organisational policies and procedures to
optimise utilisation of resources and minimise costs.

Responding to decisions made at government level that

Procurement

have a direct impact on our budget, including discontinuation

The mining industry activity is increasing and it is anticipated

of grant programs, environmental policy, timing and

that if will be difficult to source local contractor suppliers as

frequency of revenue sharing arrangements and so forth.

they join the mining workforce.

Procurement

Information Services

Continued local support of contractors in a

The continued support and successful completion of the

competitive market.

TOTO initiative and other transformational objectives along
with the implementation of the new ICT Service Catalogue

Asset Management

including relevant processes and procedures that will

Creating service plans for all council services.

support its operational success.

Information Services

Information Management

Dealing with staff change saturation as we progressed

The successful completion of the TOTO initiative and the

multiple organisational wide technology changes it a

successful transition of ECM to the cloud. This will include

relatively short timeframe.

the implementation of cloud-based document storage

Information Management

capabilities.

Realignment of strategic activities to fully support the
TOTO project and other business objectives and innovation
opportunities.
Working to understand new software capabilities to ensure
the safe and responsible storage of information to audit
standards.
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The Queen's Baton Relay at Anakie.

Strategies, plans and policies

Statistics and trends

Strategic asset management policy and roadmap.

Average number of monthly website users for

Information Management Strategic Plan 2017-2022.

www.centralhighlands.qld.gov.au

Total asset management plan and seven individual asset
management plans.
Plant and vehicle policy and 10-year replacement

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

7456

8856

8328

Average number of media releases prepared each month.

strategy.
GIS strategy.
Project decision policy and framework.
Review and improvement of the transport and water and
sewerage business process models (asset management
decision-making framework).
Local preference policy updated.

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

11

14

14

Average number of Facebook posts per month
2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

49

55

31

Procurement policy updated.
Information Communication and Technology Strategic

Plan 2017-2022.
Information communication and technology services
catalogue.

Average combined Facebook engagement/month
(reactions, shares and comments)
2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

1959

2432

2874

Information communication and technology policy

Plant and vehicle replacement strategy

framework.
Information Management Strategic Plan 2017-2022.

Year

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Items

21

55

47

of plant
replaced

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Performance Report – Key Priority Area 5 – leadership and governance
Key Performance Indicators

COMPLETED

Leadership and
communication

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

Advocate for our region
Establish planning documents

Meet publication deadlines and
audience recognition for internal
communications.

for infrastructure priorities.
Lobby to secure funding
for regional water supply

Produce internal and external
communications guidelines.
Provide regular analysis of
communication channels.
Revise council branding.
Produce a regional signage
manual.

improvements.

NOT PROCEEDING

Achieve a minimum compliance
with self-insurance audit
program.
Implement an effective internal
audit plan, corporate risk and
business continuity reporting.
Manage complaints

Accountability and integrity
Develop a system for legislative
compliance.
Provide regular reports to
council on workplace health and

management system.
Report financial information to
council and government on time.
Receive unqualified audit
opinion.

safety.

Leadership and
communication

Advocate for our region
Align infrastructure project

Provide a council services
catalogue to clarify the role
of council against other
governments.

planning with the liveability
strategy.
Complete water supply
agreement with SunWater for

Undertake a service planning
pilot project.
Undertake an action plan for

bulk water usage.

Accountability and integrity
Adopt revised corporate

service planning.
Revise social media policy.

Develop and implement a
project management framework.
Establish performance
reporting aligned to individual
performance plans.
Improve integrated management
reporting system.
Financial sustainability
Align capital budget with asset
management plans.

governance framework.

Nil
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Case Study

Plant and vehicle auction

Our inaugural public auction of surplus goods and

more than 500 people attended, either in person,

equipment was held on 25 November 2017 and

online or via the telephone.

was a great success.

More than 200 lots were listed, ranging from

The decision to hold an auction was made

vehicles to various tractors, small and medium

following a plant and vehicle audit and inspection

trucks, a street sweeper and loaders, and

of the depots.

everything was sold. Buyers originated from as

The event was held in Emerald to give local
people the opportunity to buy and benefit.
Auctioneers, Tomkins, conducted a national
marketing and advertising campaign and, despite
the day also be the state government election,

far afield as Western Australia and Far North
Queensland.
All items fetched well above the reserve price with
the highest price of the day being $116,000 paid
for a wheel loader. Total gross proceeds from the
auction was approximately $767,000.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Staff profile

Elizabeth Bullock –
Acting Coordinator Strategic Asset Management

My name is Elizabeth Bullock and I am the acting

A major undertaking for the asset management

coordinator strategic asset management.

team over the last year is the full update of the

I started my career in local government in 2005
in a technical support role as my background is in

involved close collaboration with all departments

civil engineering and technical services.

and covered plans on all council-owned

Up until the last year, I’ve always been based in a

110

organisation’s asset management plans. This

fixed assets.

role that related to road engineering; from putting

Comprehensive risk profiles were added for each

out traffic counters and road logs, to design

asset class in the most current version of the plans

and GIS.

and we’re working on further improvements.

But, at the end of 2017, I took advantage of an

The current focus of the team that I work with is

opportunity to move into the world of corporate

to facilitate the condition assessment of critical

services. This change expanded my knowledge

assets. The outcomes will help design more

across many more asset classes and I have begun

accurate work programs, analysis, modelling,

to fully understand the complex nature of asset

and be useful for the next update of the asset

management throughout the organisation.

management plans.
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Commercial
Services

Historic aircraft at Emerald Airport.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Service areas
SHEPTON QUARRY

LAND DEVELOPMENT

EMERALD SALEYARDS

EMERALD AIRPORT

Summary of key activities
Optimise management of the commercial business units.

Highlights of 2017-18
Emerald Airport

Quarry Operations

Enrichment treatment to runway of Emerald Airport runway

Extending our internal and external customer base.

reconstruction. The technical assessment of the existing
pavement defects warrants further investigation.
Infrastructure upgrades that included fencing at Rolleston
and Springsure.

Continuing stormwater management to ensure
environmental compliance and expanding the capacity to
store stormwater for the use in quarry operations.
A positive overall operating result as the quarry business

Strong operating and financial investment in Emerald
Airport as a community asset and a regional airport of state
significance.

made a profit this financial year.
Transition to the new quality policy ISO 9001.

Land Development

Emerald Saleyards
The Emerald Saleyards constructed a full-deck weighbridge

Adoption of the vacant land management strategy

that was completed and operational in April 2018 that makes

Adoption of the vacant land management plan and business

the weighing process more efficient.

process model.

Significant improvements were made to the concreting of

Commencement of the actions from the vacant land

the crush yard and drainage around the double-decker ramp.

management strategy.

Major upgrades that included the concreting of eight selling
pens and two delivery lanes.
This year, the Emerald Saleyards was one of five saleyards
in the nation to enter into agreement with Livestock
Exchange to trial a new version of software. This is currently
still ongoing with significant milestones met and much
improvement with the processing of pre-sale scanning
and operational matters on the day of sale with such
enhancements as wi-fi technology.
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Challenges of 2017-18

Outlook for 2018-19

Emerald Airport

Emerald Airport

Maintaining a strong financial position in an environment of

In the next 12 months the Emerald Airport is looking forward

declining economic conditions and passenger numbers.

to completing the runway reconstruction project ; starting the

Managing an increasingly complex compliance and
regulatory regime. We are introducing aviation security
screening changes by Dec 2020; a new platform for issuing
aviation security identity cards; and staff training and concept
development to accommodate new screening regulations.
Operational assessment for the provision of an adequate

general aviation upgrade project, including area taxiways and
aprons through an Australian Government grant of $1.416M
from the Building Better Regions Funding program; reviewing
the Emerald Airport Master Plan 2013; upgrading the CCTV
security with digital cameras and hardware; and stage one of
a project to upgrade the apron flood lighting re-lamping to
compliant lux levels for passenger aircraft.

number of general aviation charter aircraft parking. We are
seeking expert consultants to design additional parking

Emerald Saleyards

positions with the current sealed pavements at or near

Continuous improvements with the Livestock Exchange

the terminal.

trial process will see the transition to an electronic form of

There has been a difficulty in appointing airport reporting

the Masterbook, which records every transaction during the

officers. Recruitment is continuing.

sale process.

The pilot’s rest room has had operational issues out of staff

Additional facility improvements including, major lighting

shift hours. A new facility was provided adjacent to the Shell

upgrade, double-decker dump ramp, hay shed and

refuelling lease site.

finalisation of the new draft.

Emerald Saleyards

Quarry Operations

The construction of the full-deck weighbridge and the

A positive outlook for the quarry business with Shepton

commencement of the new draft facility created logistical

installing a bus tie within the crushing operation. This will

problems on pre-sale and sale days with the need to work

allow the fixed crushing plant to run solely on generator

in conjunction with contractors so that access to the scales

power this will eliminate the need for mains power to run the

can be maintained for sale operations. These difficulties were

crushing plant. This project alone is predicted to save the

overcome by use of portable panels and regular contact with

quarry business $40,000 annually at the current operating

the contractors.

capacity.
PLC programming to hook the pug mill into the crusher

Quarry Operations

program once completed and operational this will allow the

Staying competitive in an already competitive market. We

quarry to better deliver optimum moisture content road base

have worked on relationship building, which has proven to be

material, which will have operational savings both to the

effective for the business.

quarry business and further to the customer not having to
mix gravel on site to optimum moisture for the road building

Land Development

process.

Resourcing to complete actions in accordance with adopted
timeframes.

Pre-coat plant upgrade will enable Shepton to supply precoated aggregates to the market, extending its product
portfolio and another source of revenue for the quarry
business.

Strategies, plans and policies
Vacant land management strategy

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Statistics and trends
Cattle numbers through the Emerald Saleyards
2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

96 608

116 772

90 234

102 462

Passenger numbers at Emerald Airport
2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

232 488

216 107

208 284

206 748

Shepton Quarry material sales volume (tonnes)
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2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

93 106

93 706

95 475

118 591
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Case Study

Weighbridge and software upgrade at Emerald Saleyards

In December 2017, the Emerald Saleyards

the vendors provided significant lines and drafts of

commenced the construction of full-deck

cattle and the ability to weigh full pens was a great

weighbridge to provide significant improvements

improvement.

in efficiencies in the sale weighing process and
private weigh process.

The Emerald Saleyards has also spent many
months working with Livestock Exchange on the

The weighbridge was completed in January

trial and further development of an upgraded

2018 with the construction and installation of the

software program. This has created efficiencies in

weighing cage in March 2018.

the pre-scanning process and the sale weighing

This improvement has provided significant
animal welfare and workplace health and safety
improvements and provides major efficiencies in

process brought about by new wi-fi technology
and the use of an iPad as opposed to the old PDA
(Palm Data Appliance).

time and handling of both the sale process and

Further development is ongoing with Livestock

private sale weigh processes.

Exchange and it is anticipated that the iPad will be

The benefit of the new weighbridge was evident
at well-attended weaner and feeder sales where

used in the coming months for the Masterbook
recording during the sale process.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Staff profile

Joe Newman – Site Senior Executive Shepton and
Mungabunda Quarries

I am Joe Newman the site senior executive for the

I enjoy my work as no day is the same and every

Shepton and Mungabunda quarries.

day I am met with new challenges. My small team

I have two, more than competent full-time
employees under my supervision. Carolyn King
the weighbridge and administration assistant, and
Peter Jones our all-round plant operator, and a
range of contractors on an as-needed basis.
We provide aggregate and road base in-house to
council’s infrastructure and waste service areas,
and commercially to mines, TMR and the public.

of competent and enthusiastic staff make each
day easier. As like many other council employees,
I cover a large area of the region. I meet new
people daily and work with them on the same goal
– making our region better.
The highlight of my year is being part of a great
team that has a terrific working relationship.
Together, we have turned the quarry business
around from a $1.2 million loss to a profit.

I am responsible for compliance under

We have built strong relationships with other

environmental and mining legislation and

departments in our organisation and with external

for forward planning pit-development and

stakeholders. A lot of work has been completed in

progressive rehabilitation of the sites. Maintenance

new and improved ways of operation that will be

scheduling, control of production and sales are

implemented in the next financial year.

also part of my role.
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Performance Report – Key Priority 6 (Commercial Services)
Capital Projects

69%

COMPLETED

27%

CARRIED OVER/NOT ACHIEVED

4%

NOT PROCEEDING

Key Performance Indicators
Compliance with all legislative and safety obligations.
Communication and engagement with key stakeholders.
Financial sustainability measures achieved for Emerald Saleyards.
Shepton Quarry environmental licensing.
Current quality assurance certification for Shepton Quarry.
Maintenance and endorsement of airport masterplan, business plan and risk registers.
Endorsement of business plan.
Business plan, risk registers and compliance reporting for Shepton Quarry.
Identified actions from Vacant Land Management Strategy.
Nil

Blackwater International Coal Centre.

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Legislative Disclosure
Requirements

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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Local Government Act 2009

Councillors (s186)
Councillor remuneration (LGR 2012 s186) – refer to page 60.

Identifying beneficial enterprises (s41)

Councillor expenses & facilities (LGR 2012 s186) – refer to

No beneficial enterprises conducted this year.

page 60.

Identifying significant business activities (s45)

Councillor meeting attendance 2017-18 (s 186c) – refer to

Council conducted two significant business activities during

page 61.

2017-2018: water services and sewerage services.

Complaints in accordance with Section 186(f) of the Local

The competitive neutrality principle was applied to these

Government Regulation 2012.

significant businesses. There were no other significant

Complaints about the conduct or performance of

business activities commenced during the reporting period.

councillors for which no further action was taken

For a full list of business activities refer to Note 28 ‘National

under section 176C(2) of the Act.

Competition Policy’ of the Financial Statements on page 164.

Complaints referred to the department’s chief

Senior Management Remuneration (s201)
Refer to page 60.

Complaints referred to the mayor under section

General purpose financial statements

Complaints assessed by the chief executive officer

Refer to page 123.

and Corruption Act.

Refer to pages 16-20

panel.

Particular resolutions (s185)
Expenses reimbursement

No resolutions were made

policy (s250)

to amend the expenses
reimbursement policy.
No resolutions made.

Nil

Complaints heard by the tribunal.

Nil

Complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act

Nil

applied.
Complaints in accordance with Section 176C of the Local

Government Act 2009 (revised 2015).
Regional Conduct Review Panel orders and

Nil

recommendations.
Tribunal Orders and recommendations.

Nil

Mayor or departments chief executive orders

Nil

reprimanding a councillor on inappropriate conduct.
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Nil

as being about corrupt conduct under the Crime

Complaints heard by a regional conduct review

(s206)

Nil

executive under section 176C(4)(a) of the Act.

Community Financial Report

current physical asset.

Nil

176C(3)(a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the Act.

Local Government Regulation 2012

different type of non-

Nil

executive under section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the Act.

Complaints referred to the department’s chief

Amount set for each

Nil
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Complaint orders/recommendations summary reported in accordance with Section 186(e) of the Local Government

Regulation 2012
The name of each councillor that was

Description of misconduct or

subject to an order under section 180

inappropriate conduct.

Summary of order or recommendation.

and 181.
Nil

Nil

Nil

Administrative Action Complaints (s187)
Central Highlands Regional Council aims to ensure excellent standards of service and has a policy and procedure in place
to efficiently and effectively investigate and, where appropriate, take corrective actions and/or revise a decision when a
customer is dissatisfied.
We are committed to deal fairly with administrative action complaints and to demonstrate this we have implemented a
system where administrative action complaints are initially dealt with by a manager through an internal review process.
If the complaint remains unresolved, the complainant is advised of their option of appeal to the Queensland Ombudsman.
Outcome of administrative action complaints.
Number of complaints made under the administrative actions complaints process.

Nil

Number of administrative action complaints resolved under complaints management process.

Nil

Number of unresolved complaints under the administrative actions complaints process during 2017-2018.

Nil

Number of unresolved complaints under the administrative actions complaints process from 2016-2017

Nil

(previous financial year).

Overseas travel (s188)
Councillor

Employee

Position

Destination

Purpose

Cr Kerry Hayes

Mayor

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

4418.51

Cr Christine Rolfe

Councillor

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

2324.81

General Manager

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

3292.34

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

3987.97

Michelle Webster

Cost ($)

Customer and
Commercial Services
Daniel Fletcher

General Manager
Communities

Sandra Hobbs

General Manager CHDC

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

3292.34

William De Vreede

Procurement Officer

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

3013.26

Nicole Rickards

Administration Officer

Japan

Sister City exchange visit

3013.26

Total

centralhighlands.qld.gov.au

23,342.49
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Grants to community organisations (s189)

residence. This is in addition to the 20% that is given by the
Queensland Government. The remission does not apply to

Refer to pages 28-29

special rates, special levies and water consumption.

Other contents (s190)
Chief Executive Officer’s report on page 13.

Entities whose objectives do not include making
a profit

Council has no commercial business units.

Concessions equivalent to 100% of general rates may be

There was no joint government activity supplied by another

allowed to certain eligible entities whose objects do not

local government for which special rates or charges

include making a profit. All rebated rates are initially levied

were levied.

and a rebate provided automatically when rates are levied
so that each organisation can assess the level of council

Invitations to change tenders (190e)

rebate provided. Eligible entities include: community groups,

There were no invitations to change tenders this year under

churches, other community organisations and sporting clubs.

Section 228 (7) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Other concessions

List of registers (s190f)

Mining Claims – upon application council may consider a

electoral gifts

refund of the net general rate for a mining claim overlapping

interests of councillors and relatives of councillors
interests of senior managers and relatives of senior

a residential tenure.
Quarries – concessions may be available to ratepayers
within quarry categories relating to development approval,

managers
interests of chief executive officer and relatives of chief
executive officer

development contributions and actual vs approved level of
production.

register of access to registers of interest

Other rebates

delegation of powers to standing committees and chief

Consideration may be given by council to grant a class
concession in the event that all or part of the local

executive officer
delegation of power by the chief executive officer

government area is declared a natural disaster area by the
Queensland Government and/or where an extreme event

roads map

occurred that affected all or part of the property.

cost recovery fees
register of business interests

External audit

local laws

The annual external audit of council’s financial statements

town planning – existing uses, subdivision approvals,

was conducted by BDO on behalf of the Queensland

consent approvals, permitted developments.

Audit Office in 2017-18. The external auditors attend
Audit Committee meetings to present findings and

Concessions for rates and charges (s190g)
Expenditure on a service, facility or activity for which special

recommendations. The external audit management letter
and responses are also provided to the Audit Committee.

rates were levied during the financial year.

Competitive neutrality (s190 i,j)

Council provided the following concession for rates and

There were no investigation notices given in the financial year

charges for the 2017-18 financial year.

under S49 for competitive neutrality complaints.

Pensioners

RADF grants 2017-18

A 50% remission is granted to pensioners that are legally
liable to pay rates providing that an owner of the premises

Refer to page 30-31.

meets council’s definition of a pensioner and the premises
for which they are claiming a rebate is their principal place of
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note
Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Rates and levies
Sales of goods and major services
Sales of contract and recoverable works
Fees and charges
Rental and levies
Interest received
Other recurrent income
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total operating revenue

3 (a)
3 (b)
3 (b)

81,036,621
10,884,150
16,383,155
2,811,582
997,045
4,168,717
1,624,694
13,759,378
131,665,342

4 (b)

28,049,721
28,049,721
149,674,737

29,938,608
29,938,608
161,603,950

5

1,188,387
150,863,124

190,952
161,794,902

6
7
8
14

(38,212,904)
(46,194,727)
(4,805,548)
(34,285,984)
(123,499,163)

(38,798,674)
(52,460,117)
(3,927,560)
(30,497,842)
(125,684,193)

9

(2,660,554)
(126,159,717)

(6,887,220)
(132,571,413)

24,703,407

29,223,489

9,632,822
9,632,822

176,396,596
176,396,596

34,336,229

205,620,085

Total revenue
Capital income
Total income
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits
Materials and services
Finance costs
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Capital expenses
Total expenses
Net result
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income

18

Total comprehensive income for the year

2017
$

80,813,414
9,767,777
10,299,295
3,239,520
996,275
3,916,108
1,500,418
11,092,209
121,625,016

4 (a)

Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

2018
$

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018
Note
Current Assets
Cash assets and cash equivalents
Cash Investments
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Non-current Assets
Prepayments
Equity investments
Property, plant and equipment

Non-current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Borrowings

99,853,551
37,304,581
21,824,038
8,774,904
167,757,074

99,867,855
27,396,658
20,806,049
8,168,581
156,239,143

11 (b)

431,858
18,807
1,417,562,521
1,418,013,186
1,585,770,260

577,072
18,705
1,391,587,248
1,392,183,025
1,548,422,168

15
16
17

16,851,665
5,098,506
4,178,254
2,358,132
28,486,557

15,955,988
4,794,512
3,805,885
319,047
24,875,432

15
16
17

6,496
12,548,490
58,933,088
71,488,074
99,974,631

4,194
14,100,815
57,982,328
72,087,337
96,962,769

1,485,795,629

1,451,459,399

477,001,396
1,008,794,233
-

467,368,574
870,357,847
113,732,978

1,485,795,629

1,451,459,399

14

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS
Community Equity
Asset revaluation surplus
Retained surplus (deficiency)
Reserves

2017
$

10
13
11 (a)
12

TOTAL ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Borrowings
Other

2018
$

18
19
20

TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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Balance at end of year

1,485,795,629
1,451,459,399

1,008,794,233

870,357,847

-

-

-

-

(4,410,740)

4,410,740

-

-

19

(33,755)

197,937

-

-

19

6,938,370

-

19

86,175,780

-

19
-

29,223,489

2,329,038

24,703,408

-

22,948,521

205,620,085

-

(1,656,556)

-

29,223,489

836,311,445

-

34,336,230

2,163,726

18

-

24,703,408

870,357,847

Retained surplus
(deficit)
Note 19
2018
2017
$
$

178,053,152

29,223,489

24,703,408

7,469,096

1,245,839,314

2017
$

1,451,459,399

2018
$

14

Note

Total
Note 20

-

-

(4,410,740)

(197,937)

(86,175,780)

(22,948,521)

-

-

-

-

113,732,978

2018
$

2017
$

113,732,978

-

4,410,740

33,755

(6,938,370)

(2,329,038)

-

-

-

-

118,555,891

Reserves

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Transfers (to) from retained earnings
and externally restricted capital reserves
Transfers (to) from retained earnings
and internally allocated capital reserves
Transfers (to) from retained earnings
and externally restricted operating reserves
Transfers (to) from retained earnings
and internally allocated operating reserves

Total comprehensive income for year

Net result
Other comprehensive income for the period
Revaluations:
Property, plant & equipment
Change in value of future of
rehabilitation costs

Balance at beginning of year

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

477,001,396

-

-

-

-

-

467,368,574

-

-

-

-

-

176,396,596

(1,656,556)

2,163,726
9,632,822

178,053,152

-

290,971,978

7,469,096

-

467,368,574

Asset revaluation
surplus
Note 18
2018
2017
$
$

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note
Cash flows from operating activities :
Receipts
Receipts from customers
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions
Interest received
Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest expense
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

25

2018
$

2017
$

119,887,502
9,060,360
3,477,572

116,635,522
13,769,469
4,399,798

(98,119,646)
(3,237,229)
31,068,559

(93,095,593)
(3,417,586)
38,291,610

27,226,268
(51,252,342)

33,300,495
(68,441,493)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for equity investments
Net transfer (to) from cash investments
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

17
17

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year

10

(102)

289

(9,907,924)

34,505,107

1,528,108
(32,405,992)

754,609
119,007

5,000,000
(3,676,871)
1,323,129

(3,496,514)
(3,496,514)

(14,304)
99,867,855
99,853,551

34,914,103
64,953,752
99,867,855

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
1

Significant accounting policies

1. 1

Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 and
have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009
and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
These financial statements comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include
requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these financial
statements do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and
impairment gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of nonreciprocal grant revenue.
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
where stated.

1. 2

Constitution
The Central Highlands Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local
Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in Australia.

1. 3

New and revised Accounting Standards
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), that are relevant to its
operations and effective for the current reporting period.
This year Council has applied AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting
standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107 for the first time. As a result
Council has disclosed more information to explain changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities ('debt reconciliation') and is presented in note 17.
Some Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been issued, but are not yet
effective. Those standards have not been applied in these financial statements. Council will
implement them when they are effective. The standards that may have a material impact upon
Council's future financial statements are:
Standard and Impact

Date Council will apply the Standard

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

1 July 2018

This standard replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
will change the classification, measurement and disclosures of financial assets.
The standard introduces a new impairment model that requires impairment provisions to be
based on expected credit losses, rather than incurred credit losses.
Based on assessments to date, council expects a small increase to impairment losses however
the standard is not expected to have a material impact overall.
AASB 16 Leases

1 July 2019

Council currently has no leases on its balance sheet and is in the process of reviewing and
identifying all leases to determine if they meet the requirement of this standard. A lease
liability will need to be initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be
made over the lease term and a corresponding right-of-use asset will also be recognised over
the lease term.
At this stage Council is not in a position to quantify the impact arising from this standard,
however, it is not expected to be material.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
1. 3

New and revised Accounting Standards (continued)
Standard and Impact

Date Council will apply the Standard

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

1 July 2019

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

1 July 2019

AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities

1 July 2019
1 July 2019

AASB 15 will replace AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and a number
of Interpretations. AASB 2016-8 provides Australian requirements and guidance for not-forprofit entities in applying AASB 9 and AASB 15, and AASB 1058 will replace AASB 1004
Contributions. Together they contain a comprehensive and robust framework for the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of income, including revenue from contracts with
customers.
Council has commenced reviewing the way capital and operating income is measured and
recognised and it is expected that the main impact of these standards will be the timing of the
recognition of grants. At this stage Council is not in a position to quantify the impact arising
from these standards, however, it is not expected to be material.
1. 4

Estimates and judgements
Where necessary judgements, estimates and assumptions have been used in preparing these
financial statements. Those that have a significant effect, or risk of causing adjustment to
council's assets or liabilities relate to:
Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - note 14.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - note 14.
Provisions - note 16.
Contingencies - note 23.

1.

5

Rounding and comparatives
The financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1.
Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures
in the current reporting period.

1. 6

Taxation
Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation
except for Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’). The net amount of GST
recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.
The Council pays payroll tax to the Queensland Government on certain activities.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
2 Analysis of Results by Function
(a) Components of council functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2 (b) are as follows :
Executive Management
As well as providing organisational leadership and oversight, the Executive Management function has
responsibility for corporate communication, public affairs, workplace health and safety and risk management.
The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are included in this function and the objective of this
function is to be open and accountable and deliver community driven outcomes.
Corporate Services
The main function of Corporate Services is to provide finance, treasury, procurement, information technology,
human resource management, asset management services and governance across all of Council. Internal Audit
is also included in this function. The objective of the Corporate Services function is to provide accurate and
timely information to enable Council to make sound informed decisions and meet all statutory requirements.
Communities
The primary goal of the Communities function is to ensure that the Central Highlands region is a vibrant, well
planned and connected community that provides well designed, managed and maintained community
facilities, in order to facilitate growth and to ensure the effective delivery of cultural, health, environmental
and recreational services. This function includes the following areas: Planning and Environment, Parks and
Recreation, Community and Customer Service and Community Planning and Engagement.
Infrastructure and Utilities
The Infrastructure function is responsible for the maintenance and construction of Council's Road Network
infrastructure, and the supply of water and sewerage services shown separately below. The primary objective
of this function is to ensure that the Region is serviced by a high quality and effective road network.
Corporate Revenue & Expenses
This function has responsibility for the recognition of rates, corporate revenue, recoveries and corporate
expenses that are not allocated to other specific function of Council. The goal of this function is to provide
oversight of Council's corporate revenue and expenses.
Commercial Services
Commercial Services represents the activities relating to the executive oversight of Council's Business Units:
Aerodrome, Quarries, Saleyards and the Land Management activity also sits within this function. The
objective of this function is to ensure Council's business units are operating effectively.
Saleyards
The Saleyards function is responsible for the provision and maintenance of saleyard facilities. The primary
objective is to support local producers by providing efficient facilities to enable them to sell their livestock.
Aerodrome
This function is responsible for the operation and maintenance of Council's airport facilities across the region.
The main goal of this function is to ensure the community is serviced with commercial air travel facilities and
to enhance the regions accessibility and development potential.
Quarries
The primary objective of this function is to provide high quality products for road, civil and site works. This
function is responsible for the operation and business support function of the quarries.
Waste Management
This function is responsible for the provision of Council's waste collection, recycling service and refuse tip
facilities. The main goal of this function is to protect and support the community and natural environment by
continually pursing waste reduction, recovery and recycling initiatives.
Sewerage
This Sewerage function is responsible for the provision of Council's sewerage connection, collection, disposal
and treatment services. The objective of this function is to support a healthy and safe community through
sustainable sewerage services.
Water
This function is responsible for the provision of Council's water supply including quality measurement,
connection and treatment services. The objective of this function is to support a healthy and safe community
through sustainable water services.
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Analysis of results by function (continued)

Executive Management
Corporate Services
Communities
Infrastructure and Utilities
Corporate Revenue & Expenses
Commercial Services
Saleyards
Aerodrome
Quarries
Waste Management
Sewerage
Water
Total

Programs

For the year ended 30 June 2017:

Executive Management
Corporate Services
Communities
Infrastructure and Utilities
Corporate Revenue & Expenses
Commercial Services
Saleyards
Aerodrome
Quarries
Waste Management
Sewerage
Water
Total

9,718
3,834,030
2,348,448
11,758,174
53,640,075
47,893
1,153,398
7,368,893
1,245,486
7,126,498
7,574,953
14,425,241
110,532,807

2018
$
3,260,719
22,244,502
10,000
50,000
71,581
2,274,263
138,656
28,049,721

2018
$
564,362
153,077
21,317
449,631
1,188,387

2018
$

16,545
154,250
480,122
4,522,154
8,583,807
1,250
1,250
13,759,378

2017
$
8,126
5,372,262
2,514,606
14,117,368
51,479,850
35,305
1,023,390
7,474,737
5,764,079
6,867,242
7,889,528
15,359,471
117,905,964

2017
$
32,499
5,929,469
22,959,423
15,565
725,743
8,709
267,200
29,938,608

2017
$
190,952
190,952

2017
$

Gross program income
Recurrent revenue
Capital revenue
Grants
Other
Grants
Other

8,600
178,000
306,080
4,338,841
6,260,688
11,092,209

2018
$

24,671
5,749,963
8,924,197
41,598,945
60,063,657
35,305
1,038,955
8,200,480
5,764,079
6,867,242
7,899,487
15,627,921
161,794,902

2017
$

Total
income

18,318
4,576,392
5,915,247
38,494,594
59,910,763
69,210
1,203,398
7,440,474
1,695,117
7,126,498
9,849,216
14,563,897
150,863,124

2018
$

(b) Income and expenses, defined between recurring and capital and assets, are attributed to the following programs:
Gross program income
Total
Recurrent revenue
Capital revenue
income
Grants
Other
Grants
Other
Programs

2
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(13,878)
(410,327)
(1,800,313)
(96,441)
(15,250)
(27,545)
(296,800)
(2,660,554)

2018
$

Capital

(5,931,598)
(7,130,166)
(26,984,479)
(43,964,318)
3,308,449
(1,011,234)
(1,165,745)
(5,574,218)
(5,771,898)
(6,116,082)
(6,960,850)
(18,382,054)
(125,684,193)

2017
$

Recurrent

(139,118)
(25,889)
(351,805)
(5,562,692)
(400,272)
(407,444)
(6,887,220)

2017
$

Capital

Gross program expenses

(5,194,938)
(10,027,699)
(27,069,849)
(43,665,296)
(140,543)
(757,233)
(1,302,522)
(5,576,739)
(1,136,460)
(6,354,571)
(7,065,589)
(15,207,724)
(123,499,163)

2018
$

Recurrent

Gross program expenses

(5,931,598)
(7,269,284)
(27,010,368)
(44,316,123)
3,308,449
(1,011,234)
(1,165,745)
(5,574,218)
(11,334,590)
(6,116,082)
(7,361,122)
(18,789,498)
(132,571,413)

2017
$

Total
expenses

(5,194,938)
(10,041,577)
(27,480,176)
(45,465,609)
(140,543)
(757,233)
(1,398,963)
(5,591,989)
(1,136,460)
(6,354,571)
(7,093,134)
(15,504,524)
(126,159,717)

2018
$

Total
expenses

(5,906,927)
(1,603,654)
(23,989,751)
(25,324,796)
63,372,106
(975,929)
(142,355)
1,900,519
(7,819)
751,160
929,928
(3,021,333)
5,981,149

Operating
surplus/(deficit)
from recurrent
operations
2017
$

(5,176,620)
(6,015,669)
(24,415,321)
(27,568,281)
59,760,220
(709,340)
(149,124)
1,792,154
109,026
771,927
509,364
(782,483)
(1,874,147)

Operating
surplus/(deficit)
from recurrent
operations
2018
$

(5,906,927)
(1,519,321)
(18,086,171)
(2,717,178)
63,372,106
(975,929)
(126,790)
2,626,262
(5,570,511)
751,160
538,365
(3,161,577)
29,223,489

2017
$

Net
result
for period

(5,176,620)
(5,465,185)
(21,564,929)
(6,971,015)
59,770,220
(688,023)
(195,565)
1,848,485
558,657
771,927
2,756,082
(940,627)
24,703,407

2018
$

Net
result
for period

156,007
152,760,110
182,988,679
797,065,735
3,166,243
5,734,234
8,794,904
41,064,747
7,969,615
7,562,670
135,523,546
205,635,678
1,548,422,168

2017
$

Assets

16,732
165,436,862
183,202,582
807,787,022
2,493,022
5,839,633
8,851,328
39,261,236
9,791,982
8,177,945
149,782,313
205,129,603
1,585,770,260

2018
$

Assets

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note
3

2018

2017

$

$

Revenue analysis
Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, at the
time indicated below.
(a) Rates and levies
Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating/levying
period, the amount is recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received,
otherwise rates are recognised at the commencement of the rating period.
General rates
Special rates
Water
Water consumption
Sewerage
Waste management
Rates and utility charge revenue
Less: Discounts
Less: Pensioner remissions
Net rates and utility charges*

57,531,109
2,349,729
5,174,723
8,926,502
8,230,706
6,060,668
88,273,437
(6,829,973)
(630,050)

59,411,337
2,224,436
5,420,676
7,567,297
7,899,362
6,027,098
88,550,206
(6,880,779)
(632,806)

80,813,414

81,036,621

8,463,069
1,836,226

16,383,155
-

10,299,295

16,383,155

1,245,486
7,368,893
1,153,398

2,386,023
7,474,737
1,023,390

9,767,777

10,884,150

*Internal rates and charges have been eliminated

(b) Sales revenue
The council generates sales revenues from a number of services including Airport,
Quarry, Saleyards (Sale of goods and Major Services) and contracts for road and
earthworks (Sale of Contract and Recoverable Works).
Sales revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer, which is generally when the customer has taken undisputed
delivery of the goods.
Where consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other
liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.
Revenue from the Sale of Contract and Recoverable Works relates predominately to
Department of Main Roads contracts. It generally comprises a recoupment of material
costs together with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract
revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the reporting date and is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity.
The revenue shown for the Sale of Goods and Major Services does not include
revenue earned when Council purchases Quarry material from its quarry businesses.
These internal transactions have been eliminated in the preparation of the financial
statements.
Sale of contract and recoverable works
Main Roads Contracts
Other Recoverable Works
Total sale of contract and recoverable works
Sale of goods and major services
Quarry materials*
Airport charges
Saleyard services
Total sale of goods and major services
*Internal sales of quarry materials have been eliminated. Refer note 28 for details of internal quarry sales.
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Note
4

2018

2017

$

$

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations that are non-reciprocal in nature are
recognised as revenue in the year in which Council obtains control over them.
Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the
various performance obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled. Council
does not currently have any reciprocal grants.
Non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on
the date of acquisition. Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the
recognition thresholds, are recognised as capital revenue and as non-current assets.
Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses.
Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works,
stormwater, water and wastewater infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as
capital revenue when the development becomes "on maintenance" (i.e. the Council
obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and
there is sufficient data in the form of drawings and plans to determine the
approximate specifications and values of such assets.
Developers also pay infrastructure charges for trunk infrastructure, such as pumping
stations, treatment works, mains, sewers and water pollution control works which are
treated as capital revenue. These infrastructure charges are not within the scope of
AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance obligation associated with
them. Consequently, the infrastructure charges are recognised as income when
received.
(a)

Recurrent - grants, subsidies, contributions

and donations are analysed as follows:
General purpose grants
Commonwealth subsidies and grants
State Government subsidies & grants
Contributions and Donations
Total recurrent revenue

9,269,521
19,500
1,761,364
41,824
11,092,209

12,947,559
41,480
746,394
23,945
13,759,378

3,564,289
23,985,201
114,947
305,609
27,970,046

7,538,975
21,992,390
184,565
205,178
29,921,108

79,675
79,675

17,500
17,500

28,049,721

29,938,608

In June 2018 Council received an amount of $4,676,055, representing an advance payment of 50%
of the 2018/19 Financial Assistance Grant.

(b)
Capital - grants, subsidies, contributions
Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific
projects for the replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets and/or
investment in new assets. It also includes non-cash contributions which are usually
infrastructure assets received from developers.
Capital revenue is analysed as follows:
(i) Monetary revenue designated for capital funding purposes:
Commonwealth government grants
State Government subsidies & grants
Other Non-Government Contributions
Contributions (refer below for conditions)
(ii) Non-monetary revenue received:
Donations from third parties at fair value
Total capital revenue
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Note
4

2018

2017

$

$

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations - Capital revenue (continued)
Conditions over capital contributions
Non-reciprocal contributions (headworks) which were recognised as capital
revenue during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that
they be expended in a general specified manner by the contributor, but had not
been expended at the reporting date:
Contributions for Infrastructure

5

6

Capital Income
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Gain arising from recognising assets that were not previously recognised
Change in discount rate - Quarries provision for rehabilitation
Change arising from revision of future restoration expenditure - Quarries
Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salaries
Councillors' remuneration
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements*
Superannuation

14
16
16

24

Other employee related expenses
Less : Capitalised employee expenses
Total employee benefits

305,609
305,609

205,178
205,178

177,078
561,678
340,013
109,618
1,188,387

190,952
190,952

38,212,904

30,117,496
680,855
5,397,540
3,763,670
39,959,561
2,522,753
42,482,314
(3,683,640)
38,798,674

2018
Actual FTE
9
9
221
203.71
197
193.70
427
406.41

2017
Actual FTE
9
9
233
214.51
240
234.00
482
457.51

148,000
149,987
3,892,183
18,042,307
4,665,041
7,344,276
1,853,805
740,906
3,240,104
64,858
2,512,926
3,105,746
434,588
46,194,727

142,500
149,251
3,393,034
17,883,158
5,093,122
10,443,310
2,595,471
788,140
4,869,009
93,998
2,460,177
4,233,217
315,730
52,460,117

27,961,724
657,860
6,228,399
3,502,557
38,350,540
3,036,435
41,386,975
(3,174,071)

* A provision for sick leave was initially recognised at 30 June 2018 through an adjustment to the
sick leave expense. Further details in relation to this liability can be found at note 16 (b).

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of
carrying out their duties.
Total Council employees at 30 June:
Elected members
Administration staff
Depot and outdoors staff
Total full time equivalent employees
7

Materials and services
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland *
Internal Auditor Office
Administration Supplies, Insurance and Subscriptions
Consultants and Contractors and Other External services
Electricity, Water and Telephone
External Works Materials and Services
Grants, Precepts, Sponsorships and Donations
Legal Fees
Repairs, Maintenance and Operational expenses
Rentals - Operating leases
Airport Operations - materials and services **
Quarry Production and Operations - materials and services **
Saleyards Operations - materials and services **

* Total audit fees for the audit of the 2017/18 financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland are $148,000. An amount of $50,119 was paid by
30 June and the balance of $97,881 has been recognised as an accrued expense at the balance date.
** This line item includes all materials and services expenditure classifications relating to the business unit.
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Note
8

9

Finance costs
Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury Corporation
Bank charges
Impairment of receivables and bad debts written off
Rehabilitation of Refuse sites - change in PV over time
Rehabilitation of Quarry sites - change in PV over time

16
16

Capital expenses
Loss on write off of capital assets:
Site Improvements
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Road and bridge network
Water
Sewerage
Works in progress

14

Loss on impairments of property, plant and equipment:
Plant and equipment (Quarry Crushing Plant)
Total impairment losses

2018

2017

$

$

3,237,229
283,393
930,636
265,361
88,929
4,805,548

3,417,586
250,306
7,259
193,806
58,603
3,927,560

96,441
176,627
585,462
295,030
19,038
1,487,956
2,660,554

6,007
296,058
394,559
334,244
322,141
1,353,009

14

Impairment losses treated as an expense
Quarries provisions for rehabilitation of land not controlled by Council:
Change in discount rate
Change arising from revision of future costs

16

Loss on assets previously recognised incorrectly
Total capital expenses

-

4,637,705
4,637,705

-

4,637,705

-

(93,477)
1,018,463
924,986

-

(28,480)

2,660,554

6,887,220

2,167,100
97,686,451

788,788
99,079,067

99,853,551

99,867,855

37,304,581

27,396,658

137,158,132

127,264,513

10 Cash assets and cash equivalents
Cash assets are comprised of Cash, cash equivalents and cash investments.
Cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand, cash at Council's transactional
banks (Westpac and the National Australia Bank), cash and cheques receipted but not
yet banked at the year end, and deposits held at call with the Queensland Treasury
Corporation (QTC) in the cash fund accounts.
The QTC deposits are capital guaranteed and part of an asset management portfolio
that invests with a range of high credit rated counterparties. Council may be exposed
to credit risk through these investments.
Cash Investments are fixed term investments realisable between three and twelve
months. These investments and their associated credit risk is disclosed at Note 13.
Cash Assets is comprised of:
Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call
Total cash and cash equivalents balance as per Statement of Cash Flows
Cash Investments held

13

Total cash assets
Cash assets are subject to a number of external and internal restrictions that limit
amounts available for discretionary or future use.
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Note

2018

2017

$

$

10 Cash assets and cash equivalents (continued)
These reserve restrictions relating to cash assets include:
Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date:
Unspent capital government grants and subsidies

18,142,072

2,271,270

Unspent developer and other non-government contributions

18,441,188

19,360,078

1,133,738

1,317,173

953,678

197,937

77,425,521

86,175,780

4,676,055

4,410,740

120,772,252

113,732,978

190,687
2,604,961
2,795,648

233,988
759,747
993,735

Funds set aside in capital reserves in relation to mining agreements
Unspent operating and recurrent government grants and subsidies
Internally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date:
Funds set aside in capital reserves for future projects
Funds set aside in operating reserves for future projects
Total externally restricted and internally restricted unspent cash in reserves
Trust funds
In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government
Regulation 2012 , a separate trust bank account and separate accounting records are
maintained for funds held on behalf of outside parties.
Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties may include those funds
from the sale of land for arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of land,
security deposits lodged to guarantee performance and unclaimed monies (e.g. wages)
paid into the trust account by the Council.
The Central Highlands Regional Council performs only a custodial role in respect of
these monies. The monies cannot be used for Council purposes and are not brought to
account in these financial statements.
Trust funds held for outside parties:
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet
to be paid out to or on behalf of those entities
Security deposits
11 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables represent amounts owed to Council at year end.
Settlement of trade receivable amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date
and no interest is charged on the outstanding amount. Interest is charged on
outstanding rates and utility charges at a rate of 11% per annum.
There is a concentration of credit risk for trade and other debtors receivable due to the
geographical concentration of mining and agriculture in the region. In the case of rates
receivables, Council has the power under the provisions of the Local Government Act
2009 to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts, which protects Council
against credit risk in the case of rates defaults.
The collectability of trade receivables is assessed periodically and the carrying amount
is reduced for impairment if Council believes it will not collect all amounts due. The
loss is recognised as a finance costs (note 8). All known bad debts are written off at
30 June and subsequent recoveries of amounts written off in the same period are
recognised as a finance cost and amounts written off in a prior period are recognised
as revenue.
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Note

2018

2017

$

$

11 Trade and other receivables (continued)
(a) Current
Rateable revenue and utility charges
Water charges yet to be levied
Accrued capital grants and contributions
Accrued operating grants and contributions
Bonds and Retentions paid
Accrued interest
GST recoverable
Other debtors *
Less: Impairment provision

3,727,903
6,239,474
1,468,375
2,031,849
41,220
820,916
1,564,899
5,159,741
(11,822)

Prepayments
Total trade and other receivables

5,187,266
6,017,065
724,597
41,220
382,380
1,603,567
6,310,150
(41,937)

21,042,555

20,224,308

781,483

581,741

21,824,038

20,806,049

431,858
431,858

577,072
577,072

*Internal quarry debtors have been eliminated

(b) Non-current
Prepayments
Movement in accumulated impairment losses (trade receivables) is
as follows:
Opening balance
Impairment adjustment in period
Closing balance
Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed
below:
Not past due
Past due - 31 to 60 days
Past due - 61 to 90 days
Past due - Over 90 days
Less impaired
Total

41,938
(30,116)

155,709
(113,772)

11,822

41,937

16,652,257
211,228
2,725,360
2,678,873
(11,822)

16,211,200
22,617
2,579,796
2,611,445
(41,937)

22,255,896

21,383,121

1,915,677
504,521
3,665
2,423,863

1,622,492
116,816
8,887
1,748,195

892,106
892,106

961,451
961,451

12 Inventories
Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and include, where applicable, direct material, direct labour and an
appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads.
Inventories for internal use are valued at cost and adjusted when applicable for any
loss of service potential.
Land purchased by Council for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Proceeds from the sale of this land is recognised as sales
revenue on the signing of a valid unconditional contract of sale.
Inventories held for sale:
Shepton Quarry Stock
Other Quarry Stock
Saleyards Stock
Inventories for internal use:
Stores and materials
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Note

12 Inventories (continued)
Land purchased for development and sale:
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Development costs net of refund of development costs
Valuation adjustments as at 30 June
Balance at end of the financial year
Total Inventories

2018

2017

$

$

5,458,935
-

5,671,176
25,276
(237,517)

5,458,935

5,458,935

8,774,904

8,168,581

37,304,581

27,396,658

37,304,581

27,396,658

13 Cash investments
Cash Investments are fixed term investments realisable between three and twelve
months, held at fixed rates with the National Australia Bank, which is rated AA-.
The rating of this institution is based on Standard & Poors agency ratings. Whilst
these investments are not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is
assessed as remote.
Maturity of these investments is 365 days and the deposits bear interest ranging
from 2.57% to 2.71%.
Fixed term cash investments
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84,082

Total additions in period

* ARS denotes - Asset Revaluation Surplus

84,082

Not depreciated

-

31,015,880

-

-

-

Addition of other assets

Addition of renewal assets

Range of estimated useful life in years

Residual value

Total written down value as at 30 June 2018

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2018

18

9

-

Depreciation on write-offs
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive
income. (refer the ARS*)

Depreciation on disposals

-

-

31,015,880

-

-

-

5

18

9

Depreciation provided in period

Minor correction to opening balance

Opening balance as at 1 July 2017

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Closing gross value as at 30 June 2018

Write-offs
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive
income. (refer the ARS*)

(344,000)

Disposals

-

325,280

4

-

-

31,034,600

Internal transfers from work in progress

Contributed assets at valuation

Additions at cost

Minor correction to opening balance

5

4,215,647

3,457,135

758,512

15 - 65

-

48,643,417

16,023,395

(67,151)

(14,161)

-

1,821,890

-

14,282,817

64,666,812

329,356

(110,603)

-

4,156,765

-

-

-

60,291,294

2018
$

2018
$

Opening gross value as at 1 July 2017

Asset Values

Level 3

Level 2

Fair Value

Fair Value

Site improvements

Fair value category

Land

Basis of measurement

14 Property, plant and equipment

Note
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4,853,952

2,731,884

2,122,068

15 - 150

-

135,386,473

48,321,151

164,760

(126,660)

-

5,087,471

-

43,195,580

183,707,624

1,101,516

(303,287)

-

4,220,745

-

-

-

178,688,650

2018
$

Level 2 & 3

Fair Value

Buildings

4,755,337

123,558

4,631,779

3 - 35

16,937,542

28,402,834

36,613,739

-

-

(3,108,572)

3,610,541

337,582

35,774,188

65,016,573

-

-

(4,115,600)

5,722,657

79,675

-

899,260

62,430,581

2018
$

Cost

Plant and
equipment
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1,410,415

1,342,481

67,934

3 - 20

329,936

2,749,644

4,248,159

-

-

-

613,818

-

3,634,341

6,997,803

-

-

-

186,971

-

-

-

6,810,832

2018
$

Cost

Office furniture
and fittings

23,781,541

9,189,420

14,592,121

6 - Infite

-

764,970,058

244,896,305

508,358

(462,840)

-

14,252,038

-

230,598,749

1,009,866,363

1,702,777

(1,048,302)

-

25,282,146

-

-

-

983,929,742

2018
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Road and bridge
network

1,163,505

438,034

725,471

10 - 100

-

190,866,156

109,315,363

2,027,736

(214,653)

-

4,500,189

-

103,002,091

300,181,519

5,568,192

(509,683)

-

4,208,373

-

-

-

290,914,637

2018
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Water

15,365,459

8,937,392

6,428,067

10 - 100

-

124,287,851

79,757,933

1,479,463

(12,762)

-

3,285,292

-

75,005,940

204,045,784

3,784,930

(31,800)

-

545,673

-

-

-

199,746,981

2018
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Sewerage

-

-

-

7 - 100

-

174,975

20,603

-

-

-

2,074

-

18,529

195,578

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

195,578

2018
$

Cost

Heritage &
cultural

612,128

134,102

478,026

6 - Infite

-

37,366,505

11,685,338

185,433

-

-

1,112,671

-

10,387,234

49,051,843

(719,076)

-

-

1,949,916

-

-

-

47,821,003

2018
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Airport

-

-

-

-

-

53,698,728

-

-

-

-

-

-

53,698,728

-

(1,487,956)

(46,598,526)

56,162,391

-

45,622,819

2018
$

Cost

Works in progress

56,242,066

26,438,088

29,803,978

-

17,267,478

1,417,562,521

550,881,986

4,298,599

(831,076)

(3,108,572)

34,285,984

337,582

515,899,469

1,968,444,507

11,767,695

(3,491,631)

(4,459,600)

-

79,675

56,162,391

899,260

1,907,486,717

2018
$

Total
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-

Depreciation on disposals

-

-

Addition of other assets

Total additions in period
* ARS denotes - Asset Revaluation Surplus

Not depreciated

-

31,034,600

-

-

-

-

9

-

Addition of renewal assets

Range of estimated useful life in years

Residual value

Total written down value as at 30 June 2017

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2017

Impairment adjustment to capital loss

Internal Transfers between asset classes
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive
income. (refer the ARS*)

18

-

Depreciation provided in period

-

-

Depreciation on write-offs

-

Opening balance as at 1 July 2016

9

-

31,034,600

Minor correction to opening balance

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Closing gross value as at 30 June 2017

18

4,464,883

3,668,429

796,454

15 - 65

-

46,008,477

14,282,817

-

(29,154)

-

-

-

1,623,340

-

12,688,631

60,291,294

(698,089)

-

-

-

Disposals

3,995,991

-

-

Internal transfers from work in progress

-

-

56,993,392

-

-

Contributed assets at valuation

9

-

Additions at cost

Write-offs
Internal Transfers between asset classes
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive
income. (refer the ARS*)

-

Minor correction to opening balance

31,034,600

2017
$

2017
$

Opening gross value as at 1 July 2016

Asset Values

Level 3

Level 2

Fair Value

Fair Value

Site improvements

Fair value category

Land

Basis of measurement

14 Property, plant and equipment - prior year

Note
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14,989,516

13,747,495

1,242,021

15 - 150

-

135,493,070

43,195,580

-

750,721

-

-

-

4,619,256

-

37,825,603

178,688,650

3,649,298

-

-

-

13,508,037

-

-

-

161,531,315

2017
$

Level 2 & 3

Fair Value

Buildings

-

4,054,500

4,054,500

3 - 35

10,903,006

26,656,393

35,774,188

4,637,705

-

-

(8,960)

(2,046,876)

4,044,110

-

29,148,209

62,430,581

-

-

(14,967)

(2,610,532)

4,456,863

17,500

-

28,480

60,553,237

2017
$

Cost

Plant and
equipment

-
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362,728

362,728

3 - 20

315,344

3,176,491

3,634,341

-

-

-

-

-

453,521

-

3,180,820

6,810,832

-

-

-

-

759,631

-

-

-

6,051,201

2017
$

Cost

Office furniture
and fittings

36,452,096

13,515,089

22,937,007

6 - 100

-

753,330,993

230,598,749

-

(34,909,173)

-

(443,746)

-

10,931,451

-

255,020,217

983,929,742

67,069,156

-

(739,804)

-

30,515,016

-

-

887,085,374

2017
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Road and bridge
network

1,961,592

684,808

1,276,784

10 - 100

-

187,912,546

103,002,091

-

(23,144,049)

-

(659,446)

-

4,618,666

-

122,186,920

290,914,637

10,812,943

-

(1,054,005)

-

381,400

-

-

-

280,774,299

2017
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Water

3,685,890

2,409,323

1,276,567

10 - 100

-

124,741,041

75,005,940

-

(19,563,200)

-

(419,756)

-

3,149,326

-

91,839,570

199,746,981

19,827,201

-

(754,000)

-

81,768

-

-

-

180,592,012

2017
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Sewerage

-

-

7 - 100

-

177,049

18,529

-

-

-

-

-

2,074

-

16,455

195,578

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

195,578

2017
$

Cost

Heritage &
cultural

2,551,247

1,852,652

698,595

6 - 100

-

37,433,769

10,387,234

-

246,422

-

-

-

1,056,098

-

9,084,714

47,821,003

744,211

-

-

-

149,842

-

-

-

46,926,950

2017
$

Level 3

Fair Value

Airport

-

-

-

-

-

45,622,819

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,622,819

-

(25,275)

(322,141)

-

(53,848,548)

-

68,476,472

-

31,342,311

2017
$

Cost

Works in progress

68,522,452

40,295,024

28,227,428

-

11,218,350

1,391,587,248

515,899,469

4,637,705

(76,648,433)

-

(1,531,908)

(2,046,876)

30,497,842

-

560,991,139

1,907,486,717

101,404,720

(25,275)

(2,884,917)

(2,610,532)

-

17,500

68,476,472

28,480

1,743,080,269

2017
$

Total

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
14

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (a) Recognition
Items of property, plant and equipment with a total value less than $5,000, information and computer technologies (ICT) plant and
equipment assets with a total value of less than $1,000 and infrastructure and building assets with a total value of less than $10,000, are
treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. Where an item of capital expenditure relates to a network asset and has a future economic
benefit, then it will be recognised as a asset regardless of the threshold. Network assets are defined as assets they are interconnected and rely
on each other to provide a service. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised where their cost exceeds the respective
threshold and they provide a future economic benefit.
Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where the Council holds title or a financial lease over
the asset. The Central Highlands Regional Council currently does not have any such land holdings.
Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use under theLand Act 1994 or the
Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the relevant legislation. This land is not
recognised in these financial statements.
14 (b) Measurement
Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss.
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs
incidental to the acquisition, including freight, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other establishment costs.
Property, plant and equipment received in the form of physical contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council
valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as
capital expenditure. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at which time they are
reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate property, plant and equipment class.
14 (c) Depreciation
All assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is commissioned
ready for use.
All classes of assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost of each depreciable asset, less its estimated
residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately
reflects the pattern of consumption of these assets. Land and road formation is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life.
Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful lives
distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is
capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values (where applicable to the asset class) of property, plant and equipment
assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption,
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of
the annual valuation process for assets measured at current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these assets at each
reporting date.
14 (d) Impairment
Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an indicator of
possible impairment exists, the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount.
When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to
the extent available. A provision for impairment loss of $4,637,705 is recognised in the financial statements for the financial years 30 June
2017 and 30 June 2018 in relation to the Shepton Quarry crushing plant.
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14

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (d) Impairment (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.
14 (e) Valuation
(i) Valuation processes
Council's valuation policies and procedures are determined after assessment and consideration of information provided by personnel within
Council with appropriate skills and experience specific to a particular asset. They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an
analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of
reclassification by a registered valuer.
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of asset does not
materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to
determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 to 5 years. This process involves the
valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the
condition of the assets at the date of inspection.
In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers to assess the condition and cost assumptions associated with all property, plant and
equipment assets, the results of which are considered in combination with the table of Indices sourced from an independent professionally
qualified valuation firm. Together these are used to form the basis of a management valuation for infrastructure asset classes in each of the
intervening years.
In the intervening years, management may also engage an independent professionally qualified valuation firm , to perform a "desktop"
valuation. A desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes
in assumptions such as useful life and condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied to each of the asset
classes.
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except
to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on
revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.
On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in
the estimate of remaining useful life. Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they
relate.
In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)
The table on the following page categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13. Council does
not have any assets measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.
The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and
minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in
level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for
Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets
are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. There were no changes made between Level 2 and 3.
Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Page 20

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
14

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (d) Impairment (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.
14 (e) Valuation
(i) Valuation processes
Council's valuation policies and procedures are determined after assessment and consideration of information provided by personnel within
Council with appropriate skills and experience specific to a particular asset. They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an
analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of
reclassification by a registered valuer.
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of asset does not
materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to
determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 to 5 years. This process involves the
valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the
condition of the assets at the date of inspection.
In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers to assess the condition and cost assumptions associated with all property, plant and
equipment assets, the results of which are considered in combination with the table of Indices sourced from an independent professionally
qualified valuation firm. Together these are used to form the basis of a management valuation for infrastructure asset classes in each of the
intervening years.
In the intervening years, management may also engage an independent professionally qualified valuation firm , to perform a "desktop"
valuation. A desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes
in assumptions such as useful life and condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied to each of the asset
classes.
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except
to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on
revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.
On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in
the estimate of remaining useful life. Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they
relate.
In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)
The table on the following page categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13. Council does
not have any assets measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.
The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and
minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in
level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for
Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets
are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. There were no changes made between Level 2 and 3.
Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
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14

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (e) (i) Valuation processes (continued)
The table below presents Council's property, plant and equipment measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2018:

Recurring fair value measurements

Property, plant and equipment
- Land
- Site improvements
- Buildings
- Road, drainage and bridge network
- Water Infrastructure
- Sewerage Infrastructure
- Airport

Note

Total

Level 2

Level 3

(Significant other observable
inputs)

(Significant unobservable inputs)

14

2018

2017

2018

2017

2018

2017

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

31,016
22,477
-

31,035
21,713
-

48,643
112,909
764,970
190,866
124,288
37,367

46,008
113,780
753,331
187,913
124,741
37,434

31,016
48,643
135,386
764,970
190,866
124,288
37,367

31,035
46,008
135,493
753,331
187,913
124,741
37,434

53,493

52,748

1,279,043

1,263,207

1,332,536

1,315,955

(ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets are as follows:
Land (including Airport Land assets) (Level 2)
A comprehensive revaluation of Land assets was performed in the 2016 financial year by a team of independent valuers from Asset Val Pty Ltd.
Management have decided that a desktop valuation was not required this financial year on land assets to determine the fair value as at 30 June
2018.
As part of the comprehensive valuation process Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land in freehold title as well as land used for special
purposes, which is restricted in use under current zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input in the valuation approach is price per square metre.

Site Improvements (including Airport Site Improvement assets) (level 3)
The fair value of Site Improvements was determined this financial year by a desktop valuation performed by management internally as at 30
June 2018. The last comprehensive revaluation of Site Improvement assets was performed as at 30 June 2016 by a team of independent
valuers from Asset Val Pty Ltd. Where there is a market for Council site improvements assets, fair value has been derived from the sales
prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this
valuation approach were price per square metre.
Where Site Improvement assets are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the asset, fair value has been determined on the
basis of replacement with a new asset having similar service potential including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees. The
gross current values have been derived from reference to market data for recent projects and costing guides issued by the Australian
Institute of Quantity Surveyors, Rawlinson's (Australian Construction Handbook). Where a depth in market can be identified, the net
current value of a site improvements asset is the difference between the market value of the asset as a whole (including land) and the market
value of the land component. Where there is no depth of market, the net current value of a site improvements asset is the gross current value
less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported the estimates of average useful life, asset condition and depreciation method
is used to calculate accumulated depreciation expense comprise unobservable inputs (level 3).
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14

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (e) (ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values (continued)
Buildings (including Airport Building assets) (level 2 and 3)
The fair value of Building was determined this financial year by a desktop valuation performed by management internally as at 30 June
2018. The last comprehensive revaluation of Building assets was performed as at 30 June 2016 by a team of independent valuers from Asset
Val Pty Ltd. Where there is a market for Council building assets, fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties
after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach were price per
square metre.
Where Council buildings are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the assets, fair value has been determined on the basis of
replacement with a new asset having similar service potential including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees. The gross
current values have been derived from reference to market data for recent projects and costing guides issued by the Australian Institute of
Quantity Surveyors, Rawlinson's (Australian Construction Handbook). Where a depth in market can be identified, the net current value of a
building asset is the difference between the market value of the asset as a whole (including land) and the market value of the land
component. Where there is no depth of market, the net current value of a building asset is the gross current value less accumulated
depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit useful
lives. Allowance has been made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component, residual value at the time the
asset is considered to be no longer available for use and the condition of the asset. Condition was assessed taking into account both physical
characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality, capability, utilisation and obsolescence.
While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported by market evidence (level 2), the estimates of residual value, useful life and
asset condition that are used to calculate accumulated depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3). Where these other inputs are
significant to the valuation the overall valuation has been classified as level 3.
Infrastructure assets (level 3)
The fair value of Infrastructure assets, except for Airport Roads, was determined this financial year by a desktop valuation performed by
management internally as at 30 June 2018. The last comprehensive revaluation was performed as at 30 June 2017 by a team of independent
valuers from Assetic Pty Ltd to determine the fair value of infrastructure assets.
All Council infrastructure assets were fair valued using written down current replacement cost (CRC). This valuation comprises the asset's
current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or
expired future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and
then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.
The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a
"Greenfield" assumption meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that
may not need to be replaced, such as earthworks. The CRC was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under
individual asset categories below.
Council have adopted a policy that all road and water network infrastructure assets are deemed to be valued at level 3.
Specific valuation techniques used to value Council infrastructure assets comprise:
Roads, Bridges and Drainage
Current replacement cost:
The fair value of Road, Bridges and Stormwater Drainage (Road and Bridge Network Infrastructure), were determined this financial year
by a desktop valuation performed by management internally as at 30 June 2018. Last financial year a desktop valuation was performed by a
team of independent valuers from Assetic Pty Ltd to determine the fair value of Road, Bridge and Stormwater Drainage assets.
All road network infrastructure assets were valued using level 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach. The approach estimated the
replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a
range of factors.
Accumulated depreciation:
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, roads were disaggregated into significant components of short and long life which
exhibited different useful lives. Residual values were reconsidered under the clarification of AASB 116 ad reassigned if needed.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14 (e) (ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values (continued)
Waste Landfill Cells (Other Infrastructure)
Current replacement cost:
Waste landfill cells assets are valued as a part of Site Improvement Facilities assets. Fair values are determined by reference to landfill cell
area and volume specifications, estimated labour and material inputs, services costs, and overhead allocations. Material and services costs
were determined by reference to existing supplier contracts and labour costs by reference to Council's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement.
Accumulated depreciation:
Accumulated depreciation was determined through assessment of the remaining air space for each landfill cell, which was also used to
determine percentage cell capacity used in the year.
Water and sewerage infrastructure
Current replacement cost:
The fair value of Water and Sewerage assets was determined this financial year by management internally as at 30 June 2018. Last financial
year fair values were determined by a comprehensive revaluation performed by Assetic Pty Ltd. CRC is calculated based on expected
replacement costs and in all cases the assets were disaggregated to component level to ensure a reliable measure of cost and service
capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining life.
Accumulated depreciation:
In determining accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or an assessment to determine remaining useful life.
Where site inspections were conducted (i.e. for active assets), the assets were allocated a condition assessment, which was used to estimate
remaining useful life. The condition assessment uses a six point scale with 0 being the lowest and 6 being the highest. A 0 condition
assessment indicates an asset with a very high level of remaining service potential, while a condition assessment of 6 represents an asset at
the end of its useful life.
Where site inspections were not conducted (i.e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site inspections were undertaken), the
remaining useful life was calculated on an age basis after taking into consideration current and planned maintenance records.
(iii) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The changes in level 3 assets with recurring fair value measurement are detailed in Note 14 (Property, Plant and Equipment).
There have been no transfers between level 1,2 or 3 measurements during the year.
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Note

2018

2017

$

$

15 Trade and other payables
Trade creditors and accruals are recognised upon receipt of the goods and
services and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price. Amounts
owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.
A liability for accrued salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the
amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in respect of
employees' services up to that date.
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled
within 12 months are calculated on current wage and salary levels and
includes related employee on-costs.
All annual leave is classified as a current liability as employees are presently
entiltled to receive the accrued balance on termination.
Current
Accruals *
Creditors *
Employee related accruals
Annual leave
Other entitlements

9,562,665
2,328,753
648,923
3,930,877
380,447
16,851,665

8,248,795
2,394,988
637,796
4,191,192
483,217
15,955,988

6,496
6,496

4,194
4,194

12,540,341
12,540,341

11,281,579
11,281,579

*Internal quarry creditors have been eliminated

Non Current
Accrued Expenses
Total trade and other payables
The following sets out the liquidity risk in relation to the above trade
creditors and accruals and represents the remaining contractual cash flows
at the end of the reporting period. Liquidity risk is the risk that Council
will encounter difficulty in meeting the objectives associated with its
financial liabilities.
0 to 1 year
Total contractual outflows
16 Provisions
(a) Long Service Leave
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected
future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs.
The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in
the Council's employment or other associated employment which would
result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are
then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the
result is discounted to present value.
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Note

2018

2017

$

$

16 Provisions (continued)
(a) Long Service Leave (continued)
The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed
securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash
outflows to their present value.
Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council
does not have an unconditional right to defer the liability beyond 12 months,
long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified
as non-current.
(b) Sick Leave
A liability for sick leave is initially recognised in the current period, in
accordance with the Central Highlands Regional Council's Enterprise
Bargaining Certified Agreement 2018-2021 . The liability is measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows in respect of leave
accrued by employees during the prerequisite length of service, up to the
reporting date.
Sick leave will only be payable on termination of an employees' employment
or death, where the prerequisite length of service has been met.
The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected
future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. This
estimate is then adjusted for the rates stipulated in the Central Highlands
Regional Council Enterprising Bargaining Certified Agreement 2018-2021,
which are based on years of service at the Central Highlands Regional
Council and the pre-amalgamated former Shires. This estimate is adjusted
for the probability of employees remaining in Council's employment which
would result in Council being required to meet the liability.
Further adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit
earned to date, and the result is then discounted to present value.
The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed
securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash
outflows to their present value.
Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service, sick leave will
be classified as a current liability. Otherwise the liability will be classified as
non-current.
(c) Provision for Enforceable Undertaking Costs
A provision is made for the total cost of performing the terms and conditions
as outlined in an Enforceable Undertaking submission under theWork
Health and Safety Act 2011 .
The provision represents the present value of the documented costs which
Council has agreed to incur over a three (3) year period, that commenced in
2018.
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2018

2017

$

$

16 Provisions (continued)
(d) Property Restoration
A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse sites and
quarries where it is probable the Council will be liable, or required, to incur
such a cost on the cessation of use of these facilities.
(i) Refuse sites
The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required,
discounted to current day values using the interest rates attaching to
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities with a maturity date
corresponding to the anticipated date of the restoration.
The provisions recognised for restoration are reviewed at least annually and
updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time.
A number of refuse sites are situated on Council controlled land. The
provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs
associated with the closure of these sites, decontamination and monitoring of
historical residues and leaching on these sites.
The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of
environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and
engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual
expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the longterm nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the
provision is the costs that will be incurred.
The first sites where restoration is expected to commence in 2019 are
Capella, Rolleston and Duaringa.
(ii) Quarry sites
Quarry sites are not situated on Council controlled land. The provision
represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with
the closure of the quarry site, reclamation and rehabilitation of the site.
The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of
environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and
engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual
expenditure differing from amounts currently provided.
Due to the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty
in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The provision
recognised for quarry sites rehabilitation is reviewed at least annually and
updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time.
The largest quarry is Shepton quarry and represents a significant portion of
this provision. Restoration at Shepton will be progressive and is estimated to
commence in 2019 and conclude in 2091.
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2018
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$

$

16 Provisions (continued)
Current
Long service leave
Sick leave
Enforceable Undertaking Costs
Property restoration:
(i) Refuse sites
(ii) Quarry sites
Non-Current
Long service leave
Sick leave
Enforceable Undertaking Costs
Property restoration:
(i) Refuse sites
(ii) Quarry sites
Details of movements in provisions:
Long service leave
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Amount provided for in the period
Amount paid in the period
Balance at end of the financial year
Current portion
Non-current portion
Sick leave
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Amount provided for in the period
Amount paid in the period
Balance at end of the financial year
Current portion
Non-current portion
Enforceable Undertaking Costs
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Amount provided for in the period
Amount paid in the period
Balance at end of the financial year
Current portion
Non-current portion

3,588,431
1,043,903
127,966

3,602,466
125,580

287,256
50,950
5,098,506

913,616
152,850
4,794,512

354,900
103,243
127,849

356,288
251,221

8,831,646
3,130,852
12,548,490

10,103,652
3,389,654
14,100,815

3,958,754
683,357
(698,780)
3,943,331

3,753,410
702,284
(496,940)
3,958,754

3,588,431
354,900
3,943,331

3,602,466
356,288
3,958,754

1,147,146
1,147,146

-

1,043,903
103,243
1,147,146

-

376,801
(120,986)
255,815

376,801
376,801

127,966
127,849
255,815

125,580
251,221
376,801
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2018

2017

$

$

16 Provisions (continued)
Details of movements in provisions (continued)
Property Restoration
(i) Refuse sites
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Increase in provision - due to change in time
Increase in provision - change in discount rate
Increase in provision - recognition of new site
Amount expended in year
Increase (decrease) in estimate of future cost
Balance at end of the financial year

11,017,268
265,361
(790,654)
(1,373,073)
9,118,902

9,259,782
193,806
(296,643)
884,296
(92,876)
1,068,903
11,017,268

287,256
8,831,646
9,118,902

913,616
10,103,652
11,017,268

Cash funds committed to meet this liability at the reporting date are:

1,780,512

1,483,798

(ii) Quarry sites
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Increase in provision - due to change in time
Increase (decrease) in provision - change in discount rate
Amount expended in year
Increase (decrease) in estimate of future cost
Balance at end of the financial year

3,542,504
88,929
(340,013)
(109,618)
3,181,802

2,584,182
58,603
(93,477)
(25,267)
1,018,463
3,542,504

50,950
3,130,852
3,181,802

152,850
3,389,654
3,542,504

201,759

112,830

Current portion
Non-current portion
This is the present value of the estimated future cost of restoring the
refuse sites, under the State Government environmental regulations, at the
end of their useful lives.

Current portion
Non-current portion
This is the present value of the estimated future cost of restoring the
quarry sites under the State Government environmental regulations, at the
end of their useful lives.
Cash funds committed to meet this liability at the reporting date are:
17 Borrowings
The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $70,369,853.63
This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. As it is
the intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required
to be made in these accounts.
No assets have been pledged as security by the council for any liabilities,
however, all loans are guaranteed by the Queensland Government.
All borrowings are in $A denominated amounts and expected final
repayment dates vary from 18 April 2026 to 15 June 2038.
There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the
period and principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears.
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2018
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$

$

17 Borrowings (continued)
(a)

Unsecured borrowings
Details of borrowings at balance date are:
Current
Queensland Treasury Corporation
Non Current
Queensland Treasury Corporation
Details of movements in borrowings:
Queensland Treasury Corporation
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Loans raised
Principal repayments
Balance at end of the financial year
Borrowings are classified as :
Current
Non-current
The following sets out the liquidity risk in relation to the above
borrowings and represents the remaining contractual cash flows (principal
and interest) at the end of the reporting period. Liquidity risk is the risk
that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the objectives associated
with its financial liabilities.
0 to 1 year
1 to 5 years
Over 5 years
Total contractual outflows
The contractual outflows are not expected to occur significantly earlier or
be for significantly different amounts than indicated.

Carrying amount
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities
Loans
Balance at the beginning of the year
Cash flows during the period
Balance at end of the year
Total

4,178,254

3,805,885

58,933,088

57,982,328

61,788,213
5,000,000
(3,676,871)
63,111,342

65,284,727
(3,496,514)
61,788,213

4,178,254
58,933,088
63,111,342

3,805,885
57,982,328
61,788,213

7,256,806
29,047,999
48,746,252
85,051,057

6,914,100
27,656,399
50,441,854
85,012,353

63,111,342

61,788,213

61,788,213
1,323,129
63,111,342

65,284,727
(3,496,514)
61,788,213

63,111,342

61,788,213

18 Asset Revaluation Surplus
The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in
value of property, plant and equipment that do not result from the use of
those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of noncurrent assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset
revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within
a class of assets.
Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset
first against the amount remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect
of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense.
When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of
that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred to
retained surplus.
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$

$

18 Asset Revaluation Surplus (continued)
(i) Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Adjustments to property, plant and equipment through revaluations
Change in value of future rehabilitation costs charged to the surplus
Balance at end of the financial year

14

(ii) Asset Revaluation Surplus analysis:
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus is comprised of the
following asset categories:
Land
Site improvements
Buildings
Road and bridge network
Water
Sewerage
Airport

467,368,574
7,469,096
2,163,726
477,001,396

290,971,978
178,053,152
(1,656,556)
467,368,574

14,787,140
8,084,076
22,267,566
250,860,940
92,519,404
85,233,193
3,249,077

14,787,140
5,523,844
21,330,810
249,666,522
88,978,948
82,927,725
4,153,585

477,001,396

467,368,574

870,357,847
24,703,408
895,061,255

836,311,445
29,223,489
865,534,934

22,948,521

2,329,038

86,175,780

6,938,370

19 Retained surplus
Movement in retained surplus
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Net result
Transfers (to)/from Reserves:
Transfers (to)/from externally restricted capital reserves for future
capital project funding, or from reserves funds that have been expended
or closed
20(c)(i)
Transfers (to)/from internally restricted capital reserves for future
capital project funding, or from reserves funds that have been expended
or closed
20(c)(ii)
Transfers (to)/from externally restricted operating reserves for future
project funding, or from reserves funds that have been expended or
closed
Transfers (to)/from internally restricted operating reserves for future
project funding, or from reserves funds that have been expended or
closed

20(d)(i)

197,937

(33,755)

20(d)(ii)

4,410,740
113,732,978

(4,410,740)
4,822,913

Balance at end of the financial year

1,008,794,233

870,357,847

20 Reserves
Council's cash and cash equivalents, including cash investments, are subject to
a number of external restrictions and internally determined allocations that limit
the amount that is available for discretionary or future use. In prior years
council accounted for these restrictions using a system of reserves.
On 26 June 2018, Council passed a resolution to close all existing reserves and
account for these restrictions using an internal management accounting system.
Internal restrictions that have been placed on council's cash and cash
equivalents, are disclosed in Note 10.
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$

$

20 Reserves (continued)
The former reserves operated as follows:
(a) Capital Reserves:
Council's capital reserves represent both externally and internally restricted
funds, from revenue sources, that are accumulated to meet anticipated future
capital asset funding requirements. In each case the amount relates to a
perceived future requirement which is not currently a liability. These
reserves operate as follows:
(i) Externally restricted
Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve
The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash which has been received in respect of capital works where
the required capital works have not yet been carried out. Where nonreciprocal grants, subsidies and contributions are received for specific
capital projects, amounts equivalent to the capital grants received are
transferred from retained surplus to the constrained works reserve. When
the grant monies are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent
amount is transferred out of the constrained works reserve to retained
surplus. The Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any
other reserve or for any other purpose.
Special rates reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of special rates collected that remain
unspent from one year to the next. These funds could be used for
operating or capital expense purposes depending on the source of funds.
This reserve relates to specific roads near the following mines: Gregory
Mine, Kestrel Mine, Capcoal and Oaky Creek.
Tieri Township reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of special rates, general rates and
utility charges (waste, water and sewer) collected, that remain unspent
from year to year. These funds could be used for operating or capital
expense purposes depending on the source of funds.
(ii) Internally restricted
Future capital asset sustainability reserve
Where the council has accumulated unspent cash arising from the funding
of depreciation, but this cash has not been reinvested in capital assets at
the reporting date; the council restricts the future use of this cash to
capital asset purchases only, to ensure the maintenance its capital capacity
to deliver future services. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance
date correspond to the amount of cash that is held for this purpose.
Unspent loan cash reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of loan borrowings unspent from a
prior financial year for future capital works.
Land and improvements reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside from the development and sale of
land. These funds will generally be used to fund development works of
new land developments prior to their sale and for other strategic works
determined as a priority for Council which are of a capital nature.
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$
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20 Reserves (continued)
(ii) Internally restricted (continued)
Aged housing reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future operation and
replacement of retirement facilities across the Council area.
Plant and equipment reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of
Council's plant fleet.
Water reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of
water related assets across the Council area. Generally any surplus
generated by the water business, after allowing for operating and capital
expenses, will be added to this reserve on an annual basis.
Sewerage reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of
sewer related assets across the Council area. Generally any surplus
generated by the sewer business, after allowing for operating and capital
expenses, will be added to this reserve on an annual basis.
Facilities (Business Units) reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of
Quarry, Aerodrome and Saleyards related assets. It also relates to funds
set aside for future works on strategic road links to the Shepton Quarry.
Generally, any surplus generated by the business units of Saleyards,
Aerodrome and Quarry, after allowing for operating and capital expenses
and a return on capital/dividend payment to Council, will be added to this
reserve on an annual basis.
Carry over capital projects reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside from capital works projects not
completed in a previous financial year and remain unallocated.
Future Fund reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for future strategic capital works
that are determined a priority by Council.
Special Projects reserve
This reserve is for future special operating projects or capital projects that
are determined a priority by Council. When surpluses are available, funds
generated from the collection of non-owner occupier general rates are
transferred to this reserve.
(b) Operating Reserves:
Council's operating reserves represent externally and internally restricted
funds that are accumulated within the Council to meet anticipated future
recurrent or operating expenditure needs. In each case the amount relates to
a perceived future requirement which is not currently a liability. These
reserves operate as follow:
(i) Externally restricted
Recurrent projects (Constrained) reserve
This reserve holds operational grants and contributions that were unspent
at balance date.
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20 Reserves (continued)
(b) Operating Reserves (continued):
(ii) Internally restricted
Prepaid grants reserve
This reserve holds any prepaid Financial Assistance Grants paid to
Council.
(c) Capital Reserves:
(i) Externally restricted capital reserves
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended
Transfer to retained earnings due to closure of reserve
Balance at end of the financial year
(ii) Internally restricted capital reserves
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended
Transfer to retained earnings due to closure of reserve
Balance at end of the financial year
(d) Operating Reserves:
(i) Externally restricted operating reserves
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended
Transfer to retained earnings due to closure of reserve
Balance at end of the financial year
(ii) Internally restricted operating reserves
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended
Transfer to retained earnings due to closure of reserve
Balance at end of the financial year
Total Reserves

19
19
19

22,948,521
32,151,614
(17,383,136)
(37,716,999)
-

25,277,559
34,310,923
(36,639,961)
22,948,521

19
19
19

86,175,780
42,573,481
(51,323,740)
(77,425,521)
-

93,114,150
30,981,806
(37,920,176)
86,175,780

19
19
19

197,937
857,026
(101,286)
(953,677)
-

164,182
105,511
(71,756)
197,937

19
19
19

4,410,740
4,676,055
(4,410,740)
(4,676,055)
-

21 Commitments for expenditure
(a) Contractual Commitments
Contractual commitments at balance date but not recognised in the
financial statements:
Technology One Software as a Service Contract over 6 years
Waste & recycling contracts over 5 years

4,410,740
4,410,740
113,732,978

2,920,155
5,124,839
8,044,994

3,554,734
8,115,437
11,670,171

343,846
20,857
773,008
9,137,640
10,275,351

372,393
32,408
1,237,211
19,394,540
21,036,552

(b) Capital Commitments
Commitments for the construction of the following assets, contracted for
at the reporting date, but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:
Plant and Equipment and Furniture and Fittings
Airport
Buildings and Site Improvements
Infrastructure (Road Network, Water and Sewerage)
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$

$

21 Commitments for expenditure (continued)
(b) Capital Commitments (continued)
These expenditures are payable :
Within one year

10,275,351

21,036,552

10,275,351

21,036,552

22 Events after balance date
There were no material adjusting events after the balance date that Council is
aware of.
23 Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:
Potential Claims
Council is currently monitoring a number of personal liability claims that
have been referred to the Insurer. In each case council's liability is limited to
the insurance excess limit on the policy, which is not considered material,
being $7,500.
A judgement handed down in the 2016 financial year against council, in
relation to a town planning certificate, was overturned by the Queensland
Court of Appeal on 16 March 2018. At the date of these financial statements
it was not known whether the Plaintiff will seek leave to appeal the matter in
the High Court. Council's exposure in this case is not considered material
and therefore no value has been attributed to this claim in the financial
statements.
Native Title
The Council has identified a number of parcels of land which may be subject
to Native Title claims in the future. Council's Native Title liability cannot be
quantified due to uncertainty about the number and effect of compensable
acts, both in the past and in the future.
Council currently has no contingent liability claim pending in relation to
Native Title.
Gravel Pits rehabilitation responsibilities
Council has custodianship of approximately 300 gravel pits within the
Region, for which it has a rehabilitation responsibility in future years.
Council's use of these pits, while programmed where possible, is often
sporadic due to the immediate need for material in response to a weather
event or a road failure.
The cost of rehabilitation of 48 of these pits has been quantified and a
provision had been recognised at 30 June 2018 (refer note 16) and these pits
have been registered with the Environmental Authority. The cost of
rehabilitating the remaining pits has not been quantified, however, this cost
is not expected to be material as a large number of the pits are minor borrow
pits and will self rehabilitate over time. Council has adopted a procedure to
undertake annual inspections of all gravel pits.
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$

$

726,028

694,621

23 Contingent liabilities (continued)
Community Housing Assets
The Council has a number of Community Housing properties that are
managed under the Department of Housing and Public Work's Long Term
Community Housing program (LTCHP). There are Capital Assistance
agreements in place which outline the equity ownership of these properties
between Council and the Department. These agreements provide for the
equity proportion to be increased by each year of management by Council.
The Department advised an indicative contingent liability of $3,040,307 in
March 2017, in relation to these properties which was based on market
valuations at that time. Council reports these properties in the balance sheet
at fair value and at 30 June 2018, the fair value of the land and buildings was
$9,614,830.
Local Government Workcare
The Central Highlands Regional Council is a member of the Queensland local
government workers compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government
Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided a bank guarantee
to cover bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence
be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding
liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers compensation authority
may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise.
The Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is:
Local Government Mutual
The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance
pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being wound up or it is unable
to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any
accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool members in the same
proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to
any year that a deficit arises.
As at 30 June 2018 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus
and it is not anticipated any liability will arise.
24 Superannuation
The Council contributes to the LGIAsuper Regional Defined Benefits Fund
(the scheme), at the rate of 12% for each permanent employee who is a
defined benefit member. The rate is set in accordance with the LGIAsuper
trust deed and may be varied on the advice of the actuary. The Regional
Defined Benefits Fund is a complying superannuation scheme for the
purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision)
legislation and is also governed by theLocal Government Act 2009 .
The scheme is a defined benefit plan, however Council is not able to account
for it as a defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB119 because
LGIAsuper is unable to account for its proportionate share of the defined
benefit obligation, plan assets and costs.
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24 Superannuation (continued)

2018

2017

$

$

Any amount by which the scheme is over or under funded may affect future
benefits and result in a change to the contribution rate, but has not been
recognised as an asset or liability of the Council.
Technically, the Central Highlands Regional Council can be liable to the
scheme for a portion of another local governments' obligations should that
local government be unable to meet them. However, the risk of this
occurring is extremely low and in accordance with the LGIAsuper trust deed
changes to council's obligations will only be made on the advice of the
actuary.
The last completed actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at
1 July 2015. The actuary indicated that “At the valuation date of 1 July
2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the
scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date."
The Council is not aware of anything that has happened since that time that
indicates the assets of the scheme are not sufficient to meet the vested
benefits, as at the reporting date.
No changes have been made to the prescribed employer contributions which
remain at 12% of employee assets and there are no known requirements to
change the rate of contributions.
Another actuarial investigation is being conducted as at 1 July 2018. At the
time of signing these financial statements this investigation is still in
progress.
The most significant risks that may result in LGIAsuper increasing the
contribution rate on the advice of the actuary are:
Investment risk - The risk that the scheme's investment returns will be
lower than assumed and additional contributions are needed to fund the
shortfall.
Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or salaries will rise more rapidly
than assumed, increasing vested benefits to be funded.
There are currently 63 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and
any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all 63 entities.
Central Highlands Regional Council made less than 4% of the total
contributions to the plan in the 2017-18 financial year.
Superannuation contributions paid by Central Highlands Regional Council to
the scheme for the benefit of employees

3,420,680

3,685,087

81,877

78,583

3,502,557

3,763,670

Other Superannuation contributions paid to Elected Members
Total superannuation contributions paid by Council to employees
and elected members

2019
$

Contributions council expects to make to the scheme in 2018-19
for the benefit of employees

4,298,578
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25 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash
inflow (outflow) from operating activities
Net result
Non-cash operating items:
Impairment of receivables and bad debts written off
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation of inventory land expensed to materials and services
Change in restoration provisions expensed to finance costs
Investing and development activities:
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions
Capital income
Capital expenses
Payment for land for sale and development costs in the period

8
14
8
4
9

Changes in operating assets and liabilities :
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories (excluding land)
Increase (decrease) in payables
Increase (decrease) in provisions
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash inflow from operating activities

2018

2017

$

$

24,703,407

29,223,489

930,636
34,285,984
354,290
35,570,910

7,259
30,497,842
237,517
252,409
30,995,027

(28,049,721)
(1,188,387)
2,660,554
(26,577,554)

(29,938,608)
(284,428)
6,980,697
(25,276)
(23,267,615)

(1,005,103)
(606,323)
(3,238,500)
(136,410)
2,358,132
(2,628,204)

3,183,919
(636,366)
(1,619,873)
464,001
(50,972)
1,340,709

31,068,559

38,291,610

1,969,310
(1,764,972)
204,338

1,832,390
(1,661,745)
170,645

26 Controlled Entities that have not been consolidated
The Central Highlands Regional Council has two controlled entities that are
not consolidated into Council's financial statements because their size and
nature means that they are not material to Council's operations.
The Central Highlands Development Corporation Ltd (CHDC) was formed
in 1997 with the primary objective to facilitate projects and initiatives across
the region. The Mayor and CEO are Directors and three Councillors also sit
on the board. The Company also has a General Manager.
The draft unaudited financial results at 30 June 2018 are as follows:
Operating Revenue
Operating Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income
Equity
Retained Surplus
Total Equity

911,204
911,204

706,866
706,866

Represented by:
Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets

1,070,798
(159,594)
911,204

884,648
(177,783)
706,865
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$
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26 Controlled Entities that have not been consolidated (continued)
The Central Highlands (QLD) Housing Company Limited was incorporated
on 21 February 2012 with a principal object to provide affordable housing.
The Mayor, CEO and three Councillors are Directors with representation by
three invited community members.
The draft unaudited financial results at 30 June 2018 are as follows:
Operating Revenue
Operating Expenditure

96,949
(121,999)
(25,050)

Total Comprehensive Income
Equity
Retained Surplus
Total Equity
Represented by:
Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets

163,742
(65,989)
97,753

995,299
995,299

1,020,349
1,020,349

1,001,665
(6,366)
995,299

1,026,219
(5,870)
1,020,349
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27 Financial Instruments
Central Highlands Regional Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk
Financial risk management
Central Highlands Regional Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework,
together with developing and monitoring risk management policies.
Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit,
liquidity and market risk.
The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits
and controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.
Central Highlands Regional Council does not enter into derivatives.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
These obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers.
Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment obligations.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar state/
commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies Financial
Arrangements Act 1982 .
No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Central Highlands Regional Council .
The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying amounts of financial assets at
the end of the reporting period:
Note

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - rates and water
Receivables - other
Cash Investments
Equity Investment
Other credit exposure
Guarantee

10
11
11
13

23

Total

2018
$
99,853,551
9,967,377
11,075,178
37,304,581
18,807

2017
$
99,867,855
11,204,331
9,019,977
27,396,658
18,705

726,028

694,621

158,945,522

148,202,147

Detailed information on credit risk in relation to the above financial assets can be found at the note specified above.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Central Highlands Regional Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business and through its borrowings
with QTC and other financial institutions. The liquidity risk in relation to borrowings is disclosed at note 17 and for trade
and other payables at note 15.
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short
and long term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows.
These facilities and detailed information in relation to liquidity risk are disclosed in note 10 (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
and note 13 (Cash Investments). Council does not have any overdraft facilities at the reporting date.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments.
Interest rate risk
Central Highlands Regional Council is not exposed to interest rate risk through investments which are disclosed at
note 10 (Cash and Cash Equivalents) and note 13 (Cash Investments).
The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk can be
minimised. These facilities are disclosed in note 17.
Sensitivity
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount
at reporting date.
The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed
to be 1%) would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The
calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.
2018
Financial assets and liabilities held at
variable and fixed interest rates total:
QTC cash funds - at variable
QTC Loans - at fixed
Net total
2017
QTC cash funds - at variable
QTC Loans - at fixed
Net total

Net carrying Change in profit & (loss) from:
amount
1% increase
1% decrease
$
$
$
97,686,451
976,865
(976,865)
(63,111,342)
34,575,109
976,865
(976,865)
99,079,067
(61,788,213)
37,290,854

990,791
990,791

(990,791)
(990,791)

Change in equity from:
1% increase
1% decrease
$
$
976,865
(976,865)
976,865
(976,865)
990,791
990,791

(990,791)
(990,791)

In relation to the QTC Fixed Rate Loan, these are financial instruments at fixed interest rates which are carried at amortised cost
and are not subject to interest rate sensitivity.
Fair Value
The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction,
less any allowance for impairment.
The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt
obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required
to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC and is discussed below and
disclosed in note 17.
QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value
movements to clients' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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28

National Competition Policy
Council has reviewed its activities and has identified six (6) activities that are business activities.
(a) Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
This requires the application of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO)
and eliminating the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership within that activity.
The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents an activities cost which would not be incurred if
the primary objective of the activities was to make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue
to the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to
be CSO's by the Council.
The Central Highlands Regional Council applies the code of competitive conduct to the following activities:
- Aerodrome
- Quarry
- Sewerage
- Water
- Waste
- Saleyards
(b) The following activity statements are for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct:

Revenue for services provided to the Council
Revenue for services provided to external clients
* Community service obligations
Less : Expenditure
Operating Surplus (deficiency)

Aerodrome
2018
$
7,368,893
166,196
7,535,089
5,742,935

Quarry
2018
$
3,477,282
1,245,487
4,722,769
4,613,743

1,792,154

109,026

Saleyards
2018
$
1,153,398
1,153,398
1,302,522

Sewerage
2018
$
248,980
7,574,953
7,823,933
7,314,569

(149,124)

509,364

Water
2018
$
1,668,538
14,425,241
16,093,779
16,876,262
(782,483)

Waste
2018
$
190,994
7,126,498
7,317,492
6,545,565
771,927

(c) Description of CSO's provided to business activities during the reporting period.
Activities
Aerodrome
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CSO Description
To support the provision of Airport facilities in the council region in order to
ensure the community is serviced with commercial air travel facilities and to
enhance the regions accessibility and development potential.

Page 41

Central Highlighlands Regional Council Annual Report 2017-18

Actual
166,196

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

29 Transactions with related parties
(a) Controlled Entities
Central Highlands Regional Council has two controlled entities. These controlled entities are not consolidated as their size
and nature means that they are not material to Council's operations. All details of these entities are disclosed in Note 26.
The following transactions occurred with the controlled entities:
Contributions, donations,
grants & subsidies paid

Controlled Entity

Central Highlands Development Corporation
Ltd
Central Highlands (QLD) Housing Company
Ltd
Total

2018

2017

$
1,183,420

$
1,292,331

1,183,420

Other
2018

110,000
1,402,331

2017

$
13,946
13,946

22,556
22,556

All funding support given to the controlled entities was agreed to by Council for the 2017-2018 financial year.
There were no wages or allowances paid to Councillors or council staff who sit on the board of these companies.
(b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, council's Chief Executive Officer and all of council's executive leadership team.
Transactions with KMP, in the form of compensation paid for 2017/18, comprises:
2018
$
1,854,048
19,657
144,267
34,265
2,052,237

Nature of Compensation
Short-term employee benefits
Long-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Total

2017
$
2,229,157
18,835
162,530
2,410,522

Detailed remuneration disclosures for KMP are provided in Council's annual report.
(c) Other Related Parties
Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled, or jointly controlled, by KMP or
their close family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.
Details of transactions between council and other related parties are disclosed below:
Additional
Information

Details of Transaction
Employee expenses for close family members of
key management personnel
Fees and charges charged to entities controlled
by key management personnel
Grants provided to entities controlled by key
management personnel
Purchase of materials and services from entities
controlled by key management personnel

29(c)(i)

2018
$

2017
$

150,928

29(c)(ii)

-

120,552
11,398

29(c)(iii)

12,773

11,818

29(c)(iv)

19,595

16,069

183,296

159,837

Total
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29 Transactions with related parties (continued)
(c) Other Related Parties (continued)
(i) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm’s length process. They are paid
in accordance with the Award for the job they perform. The council employs 427 staff of which only 3 are close family
members of key management personnel.
(ii) The fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key management personnel were on an arms length basis in
accordance with the fees and charges adopted by Council.
(iii) The grants provided to entities controlled by key management personnel were on an arms length basis in accordance
with the formal assessment procedures adopted by Council.
(iv) Materials and Services purchased from entities controlled by key management personnel were at arms length and in the
normal course of council's operations.
(d) Outstanding balances
There were no outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period in relation to payables transactions with related parties
and only one outstanding receivables balance with related parties.
Receivables

2018

2017

$

$

Reimbursement of personal expenditure - more
than 90 days overdue

100

-

Total

100

-

(e) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed
Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the Central Highlands Region.
Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties and these types of
transactions have not been included in this disclosure on that basis that they are made on the same terms and conditions
available to the general public.
Some examples of these transactions are: payment of rates, dog registration, use of council aquatic centres and borrowing
books from council's libraries.
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